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This Annual Report goes beyond reporting the progress made in the past year, by demonstrating it.

The children who benefit from your contribution have helped write and illustrate the content of this report,
which has been presented in the format of a child’s workbook. It’s a proud showcase of the skills and learning
they have acquired, as a result of Akshaya Patra’s mid-day meal programme.



i Our Inspiration
His Divine Grace A.C. Bhaktivedanta Swami Prabhupada

faforera: o HEa: Hﬂ“&fiﬁﬂm
HIAIEAG: A qr949: W: 0

dhu are that he is tolerant,

to all living entities.
aceful, he abides by the
istics are sublime.”

“The symptoms of a sa
merciful and friendly
He has no enemies, he is pe
scriptures, and all his character



CONTENTS =

Chairman’s Message — Pg 1

Introduction — Pg 3

The Government and Akshaya Patra — Pg 8
Organisational Highlights — Pg 12

Board of Trustees — Pg 24

Our Stakeholders / Well Wishers — Pg 29 / 30
Akshaya Patra Kitchen Infrastructure — Pg 38
Review of States — Pg 56

Future Plans — Pg 139

Impact Study — Pg 148

Awards And Recognitions — Pg 157

Akshaya Patra in the News — Pg 158
Management Discussion & Analysis — Pg 160
Trustees’ Report — Pg 175

IGAAP Financials — Pg 212

IFRS Financials — Pg 240

FCRA Financials — Pg 266

Looking Ahead — Pg 274

The Akshaya Patra Network — Pg 275

(&

Chairman’s Message Madhu Pandit Dasa 1

Chairman, Executive Trustee

I would like to begin the review of the past fiscal year, 2012-13, by thanking our generous
supporters and partners. Your association with The Akshaya Patra Foundation helped us fulfill
numerous promises and brighten the prospects of tomorrow with a wholesome mid-day meal,
every day. On behalf of the entire Foundation, I offer my sincere gratitude and heartfelt thanks
to each of you who reached out to us and shared our vision, making the last year a fruitful one.

Through our mid-day meal programme, our attempt is to feed the millions of children in India
who have the zeal to learn and achieve, but not the means. By feeding them that one wholesome
meal a day, we give them the motivation and nourishment they need to pursue an education
and a better future. It is our endeavour to reach out to every child at the grass root level of the
society.

The year 2012-13 saw many developments and advancements that indicated our gradual
movement towards achieving our mission of feeding 5 million children by 2020. We served the
billionth meal since inception in July, 2012. It was indeed a milestone achievement that further
motivated us to move ahead with the same enthusiasm and more aspiration.

Research indicates that there is enough food in the world to feed every citizen of every country;
the only hurdle is accessibility. Through our programme, we are striving to bridge that gap by
nurturing the future decision makers of the nation. Today, we serve 1.3 million children in
India across 20 locations in nine states. Every day, the arrival of our mid-day meal distribution
vehicles in 10,050 schools sparks numerous eager and promising smiles. Every day, 1.3 million
children are being nourished with one wholesome meal and lessons full of knowledge.

Our programme endeavours to solve two of the critical United Nations Millennium
Development Goals (UN MDGs). MDG 1 is to end Poverty & Hunger and MDG 2 is to achieve
Universal Education. Our vision, ‘No child in India shall be deprived of education because of
hunger’ addresses these two crucial challenges of hunger and education.




Studies reveal that in India, out of 100 children enrolled in Class I, only 47 reach Class VIIL,
indicating the drop-out rate to be more than 50%. They also indicate that possibly, as many as
60 million children in the age group of 6-14 years are not in school.

The latest statistics show that more than 50% of India’s population is below the age of 25.

Tt is estimated that by 2020 the average age of an Indian will be 29 years. This revelation
immediately directs our thought towards an alarming question - «fhat will be the future of India
if so many people fail to receive basic education?” At this juncture the efforts of Akshaya Patra

acquire their real meaning.

With the implementation of the mid-day meal programme, Akshaya Patra and the Government
have observed a rise in primary school enrolment, stable attendance, improved concentration and
academic performance, countering of classroom hunger, and a gradual decrease in school
drop-out rate. This is also & significant step towards sustaining millions of dreams and hopes of

those who aspire to achieve and grow.

Today, The Akshaya Patra Foundation is at & defining moment. The valuable learning that we
have gleaned from the past decade only drives us to Expand, Excel and Enhance our programme.
This is our foremost aim for the years to come.

Feeding millions of children every day, with the pressing need to expand our programme and
bring more children into its fold, is & mammoth task and requires strategic planning and
resources. 10 achieve the same, We currently invest 82 % of the total revenue generated directly
towards operating cost. We understand that to achieve our mission of feeding 5 million children,

we will need to think in a more innovative and strategic manner.

We are thankful to the many hands that stretched out to support us both financially and morally.
But the enormity of our programme always necessitates the support of the Government and our
contributors, mainly from the perspective of sustainability. Sustainability is the key, so that once
we expand we should be able to continue our work in the newly added locations and also sustain
our services in the existing locations. It's all about sustaining Akshaya Patra’s promise to those
eager eyes that “tomorrow We will come back with a freshly cooked nutritious meal”.

On behalf of The Akshaya Patra Foundation, 1 present you the Annual Report for the Financial
Year 2012-13 with the aim to give you the crux of our programme, our reach, our progresses and

plans, our achievements and our financial credentials.

With the hope that your patronage towards millions of children will continue during this journey,
1 also invite new members to join our cause and help us to provide ‘unlimited food for education’.

et us actively be involved in building a society of hope and promise.
et us together be the reason for healthy smiles and @ meaningful, productive education!
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In June 2000, The Akshaya Patra Foundation started the mid-day meal

programme in Bangalore, Karnataka.@&t the beginning, the Foundation provided
mid-day meals to 1,500 children in five Government schools in Bangalore}

These schools were chosen after detailed research by Venu Vadana Gopal Dasa,
a full-time missionary of ISKCON Bangalore. Reminiscing about the past, he
says, “Once the idea was conceptualised, I went to explore the surrounding areas
in Bangalore and found that the schools in the outskirts and rural areas were in
maximum need of a mid-day meal programme. I visited Government schools in
areas like Peenya, Chikkabidarakalu and Makali and was moved by the plight
of the kids there.”

Venu Vadana Gopal Dasa

He goes on to add, “We then approached these schools and started serving the meals. It was just five
schools that The Akshaya Patra Foundation served at the beginning. It was on 3rd June, 2000 that we

first fed the students of these schools; a total of 1,500 children”. Over a period, the impact of this
initiative was witnessed in the form of increased enrolment, steady attendance and better concentration
during class hours. A visible improvement in the health of the children was also noticed.
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The following are testimonies of the teachers and children from the first five beneficiary schools. It captures the ( ) )
impact of Akshaya Patra’s intervention to provide mid-day meals to the children in Government schools. It also The overwhelming response from the schools brought to fore the need for the programme and led us to increase
brings forth the need and significance of the cooked school meal. our reach to more schools. The partnership with the Government under the Mid-Day Meal Scheme and support

from donors helpe@us further improve and increase our reach from 1,500 children to 1.3 million children, today.

But the initial days of implementing the programme were not smooth sailing for the Foundation. Reiterating the
challenges faced, Venu Vadana Gopal Dasa says, “Our main concern was the lack of vessels for rice and sambar,
and a vehicle to transport the food. We had to hire transport vehicles from outside and send food from

: ] d Master of Government High School, Peenya, who has been The Akshaya Patra Foundation.” At this juncture, Mohandas Pai took the initiative of donating the first vehicle
Venkatachalmah,}]Asffta:}f Heaa\St 203;21;5 says, “The kids were slightly lethargic in school and to transport food to the schools and Abhay Jain promised to get more donors to contribute to the further expansion
ing i or the ) ) .
:E):ykl\:fullr(li tfzfl S;n:oonscious dr\)lring the assembly, since many of th.em would come without of the programme.

g dinner the previous night. But from the time Akshaya Patra started ) ) . . )
eatinig bred S R ’ i d they can be assured of at least one Today, with the partnership of the Government of India and various State Governments, as well as the generosity
providing mid-day meals”, they are very energetic and they of thousands of supporters, Akshaya Patra has grown from one location to 20 locations spread across nine states.
nutritious meal per day. | Venkatachalaiah It has grown from feeding children in five Government schools to more than 10,000 Government schools in the

| Assistant Head Master span of 13 years.

Apart from the regular mid-day meal programme, Akshaya Patra has also taken up other feeding initiatives
such as:

A teacher for the past 15 years at Nammuru Government Higher Primary School, Heggadadevanapura, * Anganwadi feeding

Bangalore North District, Jayalakshmi R says, “In those days, when there was no mid-day meal facility % Feed%ng expecting ant'i lactat}ng mothers

here, some of the kids would get food from home and others who could not afford to get food due to poverty * Feeding programmes in special schools

would stare at the filled lunch boxes of their fellow mates. We as teachers would feel very helpless and * Subsidised lunch for the economically backward
would share our meal with the kids. Kids would even fall sick very often and miss school due to lack of food. % Feed?ng runaway chilflren

But after Akshaya Patra’s intervention in 2000, there was a remarkable improvement in two aspects; £ Feed%ng programmes in old-age homes

the attendance of the students improved and so did their health. Now, I'm glad that there are no *Feeding the homeless

— .
more hungry faces; only smiling tots wherever I look.” Disaster relief

Jayalakshmi R

Teach Apart from the above feeding initiatives, the Foundation also works towards other social initiatives like:
eachner

* After class tuitions

* Life skills programmes

* Community health camps
*Scholarship programmes
* Health check-up camps

Sarita, a student of Government High School, Makali, Bangalore North District We want to further extend the impact of this programme to many more children and steadily tread towards our

has been a beneficiary of the Akshaya Patra mid-day meal programme T O e B O e e

from the time she was in Class Sheeayp, 1L love thE W ishars Patra' hot with the continued support of the stakeholders, we will be able to feed millions of children in the country and play
is] i 1 it is fresh, tasty and steaming hot.

meal. It is just like home-made food since 1 Loy ' .

I have been a beneficiary of Akshaya Patra meal since 1 was a little girl and

still love to eat it every day. Like many of my friends and classmates, I too

depend on this meal to get through the day.”

|

a significant role in wiping out classroom hunger.

Sarita
Class X Student |




The steady support of the Government of India,
the various State Governments and associated
organisations has enabled the programme to
grow from feeding 1,500 children in 2000 to

1.3 million children in 2013. The total
contribution from the Government towards the
Mid-Day Meal (MDM) programme till date is

% 40,668 lakhs vis-a-vis the total income of

T 80,237 lakhs. In the year 2012-13, the
contribution from the Government for MDM was
% 10,366 lakhs vis-a-vis the total income of

3 18,149 lakhs.

WITNESSING THE IMPACT OF THE MDM PROGRAMME,
THE GOVERNMENT HAS INCREASED ITS FOCUS AND
SCALE OF OPERATIONS. It has been sensitive and

responsive to the various factors that impact the
Mid-Day Meal Scheme. To further the positive
factors like quality of raw material, the Government
along with The Food Corporation of India (FCI)
and the Food and Civil Supplies Corporations in
all the states where we operate, ensure that we
receive grains on time. To cope with factors like
inflation or to compensate the increase in prices
due to food inflation, the Government has
increased the cash subsidy rates and thus helped
us sustain and manage our operations to a
reasonable extent.

The Government has also extended support in
terms of resources like land allocation to build
new infrastructure. This significant support will
enable us to expand our operations in newer
locations, thereby positively impacting the
number of children being fed.

The Central Government, through the Finance
Ministry, has encouraged us to seek donations u/s
35 AC and 80 G of the Income Tax Act which has
been of great assistance to us. The Ministry of
Home Affairs, Government of India, has also
accorded us the permission to collect overseas

donations under the Foreign Contribution Regulation |

Act (FCRA), 1976, thus further strengthening our
resource mobilisation efforts. We have equally
reciprocated their trust in us by furnishing the
requisite FCRA returns on time, year after year.

We thank the Government of India and all the
State Governments of Karnataka, Uttar Pradesh,
Rajasthan, Odisha, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh,
Chhattisgarh and Assam for the timely release of
subsidies, which ensure smooth running of the
programme every day. Recognising the impact

of Akshaya Patra’s intervention in the current
serving States, the Governments of other states
are also inviting and extending support to the
Foundation for initiating a mid-day meal
programme in their respective states.

Akshaya Patra acknowledges the success of
working in a Public-Private Partnership venture
with the Government. The Foundation extends its
sincere thanks to the Government of India and all
the State Governments for their unflinching
support in making the Mid-Day Meal programme
a success.

There have been many supporting hands that
came forward to partner with us in serving the
children of today. While it is not possible to name
all those who have been with us down the years,
we record our gratitude and thank each and every
one of them. Akshaya Patra looks forward to their
continued patronage, and hopes to further
strengthen the partnership with the Government
in feeding millions of children. We are sure that
with this support we will soon be able to reach our

mission of feeding 5 million children by 2020.







The state-wise presence of Akshaya Patra
State / Location Type of Kitchen Year of Jumber Number
Establishment of Children of Schools
Andhra Pradesh 60,098 461
Vishakhapatnam Centralised October 2008 5,249 7
Hyderabad Centralised October 2008 54,849 454
Assam 53,649 592
50 Guwahati Centralised February 2010 53,649 592
Chhattisgarh 23,674 160
50 Bhilai Centralised January 2009 23,674 160
Gujarat 400,158 1,653
@ Gandhinagar Centralised June 2007 121,508 666
0 Vadodara Centralised November 2009 113,693 616
Surat Centralised June 2012 165,057 371
Karnataka 460,046 2,627
% Bangalore- HK Hill Centralised June 2000 85,204 487
50 Bellary Centralised July 2006 115,945 575
@ Hubli Centralised July 2004 126,693 789
Mangalore Centralised December 2004 19,043 145
Mysore Centralised August 2004 13,835 63
% Bangalore-Vasanthapura Centralised July 2007 99,326 568
Odisha 80,415 1000
Puri Centralised June 2006 55,835 648
Nayagarh Decentralised March 2007 24,580 352
Rajasthan 129,493 1,682
% Jaipur Centralised February 2004 92,763 1,081
50 Nathdwara Centralised June 2006 25,274 435
Baran Decentralised April 2005 11,456 166
Uttar Pradesh 139,262 1,874
50 Vrindavan Centralised/ August 2004 139,262 1,874
Decentralised
Tamil Nadu (*Pvt. School) 718 1
Chennai Centralised July 2011 718 1
TOTAL 1,347,513 10,050

A look at the year of establishment of each kitchen gives an insight into the need
for and growth of the mid-day meal programme.




Identity

+ The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered as a not-for-profit organisation under the Indian Trusts Act,
1882 (Reg. No 154).

+ The Trust deed is available on request.

+ The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under Section 12A (a) of the Income Tax Act,1961

+ The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under section 6 (1) (a) of the Foreign Contribution
(Regulation) Act, 2010 (FCRA Reg. No. 094421037).

Name & Address of the Main Bankers:
Axis Bank Limited, No. 5/111, 1st Main, 1st Block,
Dr. Raj Kumar Road, Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560010

HDFC Bank Limited, No 51, Kasturba Road, Bangalore - 560001
Name & Address of Auditors:

M/s BSR & Co.,Chartered Accountants,

Maruthi Info-Tech Centre, 11-12/1,

Inner Ring Road, Koramangala, Bangalore - 560071

Visitors are welcome to check the addresses given on the ‘Contact Us’ link on our website - www.akshayapatra.org

Abridged Financials

@ridged Income & Expenditure Statement (3in Lakhﬂ

|
2012-13 2011-12 [ Abrldged Balance Sheet (?m Lai’hs) |
7 . B T 201213 | 2011-12
Total Income 15,888.17 13,626.27 | - ZOU H L 2011-1 J‘
= ssets 5,879.60 5,086.04
Total Expenditure 17,347.32 13,420.52 ‘ Illﬁ Ai“: _ _ il 1
Net Non Current Ass‘p[s‘ 1,189.56 ‘ 767.24
Excess of Income S - T j
over Expenditure (1,459.15) 205.75 | Net CurwntAssets 3 433 187‘7 0/9 1|
F Total Assets J»10 ,502.33 4 % 432 39 1

EVEFTME& 2 2010-(1 201112
‘ Reserves and Surplus ‘ 10,502.33 “ 9,432.39 J 1 .
L S
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES |

i

MADHUPANDITDASA |

CHARMAN,
THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION

A

T.V. MOHANDAS PAI

CHAIRMAN,
MANIPAL GLOBAL EDUCATION SERVICES

CHANCHALAPATHI DASA
VICE CHARMAT

HA
THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION

CHITRANGA CHAITANYA DASA
PROGRAMIE DIRECTOR,
THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION

ADVISOR, GROUP CORPORATE AFFAIRS.
(OF MANIPAL EDUCATION & MEDICAL GROUP

ABHAY JAIN J

V. BALAKRISHNAN

EMBER OF BOARD, INFOSYS LIMITED, HEAD

INFOSYS BP0, FINCALE, AND INDIA BUSINESS UNIT
'AND CHAIRMAR, INFOSYS LODESTONE

con
'MEMBER - EXECUTI/E COUNCIL IFOS'S LWITED

RAMDAS KAMATH
SENIORVICEPRESIDENT, HEAD OF INFRASTRUCTURE.
MERCIAL ACLTTES, ADMINISTRATION AND SECURTY,

RAJ KONDUR
CO-FOUNDER AND CHAIRMAN OF NIRVAVA
BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PVT, LTD.

BOARD OF ADVISORS

RAJENDRA BAB|

CHAIRMAN-ADVISORY BOAR:
FORMER CHIEF JUSTICE OF INDIA, FORMER.
CHAIRPERSON NHRC, CHAIR PROFESSOR, NLSUI
=S —

CHAIRPERSON, JSW FOUNDATION

SANGITA JINDAL J

RAVINDRA CHAMARIA
VICE CHARMAN: ADVISORY BOARD,
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR,

INFINITY INFOTECH PARKS LTD.

RAJENDRA J HINDUJA

MANAGING DIRECTOR, GOKULDAS EXPORTS LTD.

DR. DEVI SHETTY

(CARDIOLOGIST, NARAYANA HRUDAYALAYA

RAMESH RAMANATHAN
"CAMPAIGN CO-ORDINATOR
JANAAGRAHA COMMUNICATIONS

SUHEL SETH

MANAGING DIRECTOR, COUNSELAGE




" BOARD OF DIRECTORS | USA B

Gururaj “Desh” Deshpande,
Board Chairman,
The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA

Madhu Pandit Dasa, Chairman,
The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India

Chitranga Chaitanya Dasa,
— Programme Director, The Akshaya Patra — !
| Foundation, India

Prabhakar "PK" Kalavacherla,
l—  Member, International Accounting - 1
Standards Board

ADVISORY BOARD

Deepak Chopra, Founder,
The Chopra Center for Wellbeing

Narayana Murthy,
Founder & Executive Chairman,
Infosys Limited

Nitin Nohria, Dean, Harvard Business School

Fareed Zakaria, Author, Journalist |-
and Host of CNN’s ‘GPS’

ADDRESS

Akshaya Patra USA
92 Montvale Avenue, Suite 2500, Stoneham, MA 02180
Phone: 781-438-3090 Fax: 781-481-9155

Email: tapf.info@akshayapatrausa.org

| poarportrustEES | UK

Ravindra Chamaria
Chtlzirfman & Managing Director
Infinity Infotech Parks Ltd.

Harin Thaker

Chairman & Trustee,

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK

Abhishek Khaitan —
Partner, Bower Cotton Khaitan Solicitors

vmkharan Vv
Trustee

"' ADDRESS —

Akshaya Patra UK
— Broadgate West Phase II, 1 Snowden Street, London EC2A 2DQ —

| Tel: +44 (0) 300 3659 935 (Free Phone)

Email: info@akshayapatra.co.uk
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ADVISORY COUNCIL

Rajesh Goenka
Chairman & CEO, Axiom Group

Nirmal Banthia

Managing Director, Memo Group

 Yogesh Mehta
— Group Managing Director, TEAM Group B

Prashant Jhawar
Vice Chairman, Usha Martin Ltd —

Brijesh Bakhda

_ Managing Director, Imagine Enterprises

Nitin Singhal

Partner, Fresco Global
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CENTRAL AND STATE GOVERNMENTS:
GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
GOVERNMENT OF KARNATAKA
GOVERNMENT OF UTTAR PRADESH
GOVERNMENT OF RAJASTHAN
GOVERNMENT OF ODISHA
GOVERNMENT OF GUJARAT

[ GOVERNMENT OF CHHATTISGARH |

| GOVERNMENT OF ANDHRA PRADESH
GOVERNMENT OF ASSAM

>

L
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OTHER GOVERNMENT ORGANISATIONS:
BRUHAT BENGALURU MAHANGARA PALIKE (BBMP)

| JAIPUR NAGAR NIGAM




" OUR WELL WISHERS _

CORPORATES

ABBLTD
A R STANCHEM PVT LTD
A U FINANCIERS INDIA PVT LTD
AUMA INDIA PVT LTD
AXIS CAPITAL LTD
BALMER LAWRIE & COMPANY LTD
BHARAT FRITZ WERNER LTD
BONAI INDUSTRIAL LTD
CENTUM ELECTRONICS LTD
DEEPAK CABLES INDIA PVT LTD
DHADDA DIAMONDS PVT LTD
ENAM SECURITIES PVT LTD
ESTATE OF SMT SARLABEN JAYANTILAL SHAH
EURO INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES PVT LTD
G K C PROJECTS LTD
GENPACT INDIA
GUJARAT ALKALIES & CHEMICALS LTD
HDFC ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LTD
HDFC BANK LTD
HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORP LTD
INFINITY INFOTECH PARKS LTD
INFINITY TOWNSHIPS PVT LTD
INTERAKT ACTIVE COMMUNICATION INT'L PVT LTD
J S WSTEELS LTD
JANPAD TEXTILES PVT LTD
JEWELS EMPORIUM
JINDAL ALUMINIUM LTD
MMTCLTD
MAHESH HARDWARE & PIPES PVT LTD
MAPLE EXPORTS PVT LTD
METACUBE SOFTWARE PVT LTD
MICRO INTERNATIONAL
NATIONAL ENGINEERING INDUSTRIES LTD
P SATYANARAYANA SONS
PARITOSH REALITY
PHILIPS ELECTRONICS INDIA LTD
PODDAR PIGMENTS LTD
POWER GRID CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD
PRESTIGE ESTATES PROJECTS PVT LTD
PRIME ASSET SOURCE PVT LTD
R B SETH SHREERAM NARSINGDAS
ROBERT BOSCH ENGINEERING & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LTD
SAI FERTILIZERS PVT LTD
SANDVIK ASIA PVT LTD
SHANKAR PACKAGINGS LTD
TECHNO ELECTRIC & ENGINEERING CO LTD

THE SANDUR MANGANESE & IRON ORES LTD
TRANSCENDENT CONDOMINIUMS PVT LTD

*List not exhaustive

INDIVIDUALS

ARUN KUMAR KOTHARI
BALVANTRAI V DOSHI
BHADRA RANJITLAL SUKHADWALA
CHANDAIAH KALVA
HAFEEZ SORAB CONTRACTOR
HEMENDRA M KOTHARI
KAVITA NAVANI
N R NARAYANA MURTHY
R AMIT CHANDRA
RAJESH DHARAMPURIYA
RAJIV KUCHHAL
S N MISHRA
SANGITA JINDAL
SAWAN V RAVANI
SHANKAR MAHADEVAN
SHANKAR NARAYANA PLANJERY
SUDHA NARAYANA MURTHY
SUDHAKAR RAM
SUNANDA SEETHARAM
TV MOHANDAS PAI

PUBLIC SECTOR UNITS & BANKS

STEEL AUTHORITY OF INDIA LTD
OIL & NATURAL GAS CORPORATION LTD
GUJARAT STATE FERTILIZERS & CHEMICALS LTD
BHARAT HEAVY ELECTRICALS LTD
NATIONAL MINERAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD
GUJARAT INDUSTRIES POWER COMPANY LTD
HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORP LTD
GUJARAT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
UNION BANK OF INDIA
IFCI LTD
BHARAT DYNAMICS LTD
ANDHRA BANK
CENTRAL BANK OF INDIA
BANK OF BARODA
STATE BANK OF HYDERABAD
MMTCLTD

HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORP LTD - VISHAKAPATANAM

*List not exhaustive
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TRUSTS & FOUNDATIONS

RURAL INDIA SUPPORTING TRUST

HANS FOUNDATION

KUSUMA FOUNDATION

MICHAEL & SUSAN DELL FOUNDATION

CHARITIES AID FOUNDATION AMERICA

TOSA FOUNDATION

GIVE INDIA

ELCIA TRUST

CHARITIES AID FOUNDATION INDIA

P D PASARI FOUNDATION

CORPORATION BANK ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FOUNDATION
MONSANTO FOUNDATION

KENNAMETAL FOUNDATION

UNITED WAY OF MUMBAI

HALCROW FOUNDATION

SETH MURLIDHAR MANSINGKA CHARITY TRUST
KISAN SABHA TRUST

THE PRESIDENT, DISTRICT CONGRESS COMMITTEE

*List not exhaustive

‘Thad a dream to help the hungry. Whil
hungry, we were clueless as to how and
come true. Through my associati
a difference. Thig ig truly

e we thought of starting a community
where to begin. But, Akshaya Patra ha
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SHAN KAR MAHADEVAN
?mger& Music Composer,
700dwill Ambassadoy of The Akshaya Patra Foundatj
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“By building on successful programmes like the mid-day meal which is run by Akshaya Patra,

our nation’s hungry children can get the food they need to perform well in school and stay healthy.

Each of us should pledge to do something to end hunger in our own small ways; I am doing that

by supporting Akshaya Patra.”

Puneeth Rajkumar,

Sandalwood Actor

“Akshaya Patra has done wonderful work with its Mid-Day Meal Scheme and worked
among the poorest and marginalised. May you reach many more children and make
your scheme a model for many others to emulate. India needs many more

Akshaya Patras to make this country a more equal and compassionate society.”

Rajdeep Sardesai,
Editor-in-Chief of IBN18 Network

“Fach one of us, after having benefited from the society in which we are living, have a duty to pay
back to the same society. An organisation like Akshaya Patra provides a platform for planning
socially relevant projects with 100% transparency. The inception of the mid-day meals in early 2000s

caught my imagination and I have followed it with interest, especially its social impact — not only on —
the school children and their families. As expected, the impact was not only positive but also the -

implication on the future social capital of India was huge. Initially, I started with some humble
monetary contribution. After my superannuation in 2009, I decided to join Akshaya Patra

as a volunteer, in 2009.

There is lot more work to be done in society and Akshya Patra provides the
ideal platform. Having built a huge network of schools, school children and their
families, besides the kitchen infrastructure and distribution infrastructure, other
problems of society like health care, education, value building, local job
opportunities creation etc. can be addressed through this network. This calls
for the multiplication of the current offorts and resources by an order of
magnitude. But I am sure this will be done.”

S.B.Iyer,

Former Director, Contracts, ISRO
Volunteer Akshaya Patra

“The Akshaya Patra’s blue bus is a symbol of hope for thousands of children across the country.
The bus signifies that the child will not go hungry and we thought that the best way to be a part
of this programme is by donating the mid-day meal vehicle.”

Ajai Kumar,

\ Chairman & Managing Director,
\  Corporation Bank

1 was impressed by the cleanliness and hygienic way of cooking. It is indeed a boon to many children

studying in schools in Medak district. As a Collector & DM, it is my endeavour to support initiatives

like Akshaya Patra.”

A Dinakar Babu,

District Collector &

The Akshaya Patra TFoundation is now 13 years old. Its major goal of hunger elimination and promotion

of education is extremely important. The great Tamil Poet Mahakavi Subramania Bharathi said in

a poem that “nutrition and education are the two legs of 2 human being - nutrition for the body and
education for the mind”. Akshaya Patra is therefore devoted to the cause of improving human well being
and happiness in our country. No wonder it has been named by a famous journal published in Switzerland
as one among the top 100 NGOs of the world.

2013 is a significant year in our agricultural history since this year marks the transition of the ship

to mouth existence. We were leading from 50 years ago to one of conferring the right to food from home
grown food, enshrined in the National Food Security Bill currently before Parliament. The present
year’s conference of Akshaya Patra is being held on the occasion of the 70th anniversary of the great
Bengal famine. Akshaya Patra is trying to make hunger and illiteracy problems of the past.

T wish this important endeavour a great success.

Prof. M. S. Swaminathan,

District Magistrate of Medak

Member of Parliament (Rajya Sabha), Emeritus

Chairman, M S Swaminathan Research Foundation
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Centralised kitchens are large kitchen units that have the capacity to typically cook up to 1,00,000 meals.

These kitchens serve a set of schools located around the unit. They are automated and thus ensure hygiene

during the cooking processes. On the other hand, in locations where factors like difficult geographical terrain
and improper road connectivity do not support construction of large infrastructure, the decentralised kitchen

format is the ideal solution. These kitchens are run by the Women Self-Help Groups (SHGs) under the guidance

and supervision of Akshaya Patra’s kitchen process and operations module.
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Akshaya Patra’s centralised kitchens have the
capacity to prepare meals for large scale feeding.

We follow a strict and mandatory kitchen process

to maintain quality and hygiene of the prepared
mid-day meal.
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AKSHAYA PATIR A
HAVE ADOPTED SIX SIGMA —

METHODOLOGIES

Food Safety Management

Systems are employed in all

the kitchens to handle,

prepare and deliver food.

The cooking in the centralised units begins in the morning. All kitchens run by the Foundation follow

a scheduled menu. All the centralised kitchens are equipped with cauldrons, trolleys, rice chutes, dal/sambar

tanks, cutting boards, knives and other similar equipment that are sanitised before usage. The North Indian

kitchens are equipped with rice cauldrons and dal cauldrons. Each rice cauldron has a capacity of at least

500 litres; and each dal cauldron has the capacity to cook 1,200 litres to 3,000 litres of dal. As roti is an integral

11 CENTRALISED KITCHENS ARE
IS0 22000:2005 CERTIFIED AND THE

part of the North Indian menu, the kitchens are equipped with roti making machines, which have the capacity

REMAINING KITCHENS ARE IN THE

to roll out up to 2,00,000 rotis from 6,000 kgs of wheat flour.

PROCESS OF CERTIFICATION.

The South Indian kitchens are equipped with rice cauldrons and sambar cauldrons. Each rice cauldron

has a capacity of at least 500 litres; each sambar cauldron has the capacity to cook 1,200 litres to 3,000 litres

of sambar. All the vessels are of stainless steel 304 food grade material.
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Management

Personal hygiene-

The first step to maintaining
hygiene begins with personal
hygiene and cleanliness

of the kitchen staff.

A high standard of personal hygiene is essential to ensure hygenic cooking conditions. Hence each

staff member in the kitchen follows a routine hygiene chart to ensure personal hygiene before
stepping into the kitchen. Daily shower, use of clean uniforms, caps, masks, gloves, gumboots and

other protective gear, and hand sanitisation are the mandatory steps followed by each member of

the kitchen to maintain personal hygiene.

Quality starts with the design of the recipe. Hence, standardisation of recipes

is an important aspect in maintaining quality of nutrition and taste. In order
to maintain consistent quality, a well-structured Quality Assurance programme
is implemented at all stages of Operations, i.e, Pre-production, Production

and Post-production.
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To ensure procurement of

the best quality raw material,
a robust Supplier Quality
Management System

(SQMS) is implemented.

The SQMS process covers sub processes like Supplier Selection, Supplier Qualification,
Supplier Rating etc. to ensure that the right and best raw materials are procured.

Our Quality Control process ensures that raw materials are accepted only after thorough
Quality Inspection in order to meet all the requirements of our Raw Material Specifications,
which is generally taken and adopted from Food Safety Standards Act 2006 (FSSA).
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Fresh vegetables are procured on a daily basis. After procurement, sorting of vegetables is done to retain

the best quality. All the vegetables are cleaned with potable water and sanitised before the cutting process.

Cold storage is used to store ready-to-cook cut vegetables to retain freshness. Rice is supplied by the

Food Corporation of India (FCI). Before the cooking process, the rice is machine-cleaned and washed

thoroughly. In order to ensure all the raw materials are fresh, all the kitchens follow the FIFO

(First In First Out)and FEFO (First Expiry First Out) methods while issuing the raw material for

production.

By doing so, the kitchens are able to properly identify, store and retrieve the raw materials in an

appropriate manner.




Quality andt Satety during cooking = ¥

All the kitchens of Akshaya Patra follow a standard process for preparing the mid-day meals.

This process is charted out to ensure hygiene and quality of the cooked meal and also to adhere to the
food safety standards. All the cooking equipment like cauldrons, trolleys, rice chutes and sambar/dal tanks
ng boards, knives etc. are sterilised using steam before the cooking process begins. The vessels used

in the kitchens are made of stainless steel of 304 grade and is best for cooking and handling food.

The decentralised kitchen units are equipped with necessary cooking equipment like chapati pans

cooking vessels for rice and dal and vessels for transporting the cooked mid-day meals to the school

hygiene standards are met.

All the kitchens have well trained Cooks and Production Supervisors to man: nd supervis
the production. Critical Control Points Ps) like cooking temperature are checked and recorded at

periodic intervals to ensure the right quality of the meal.

To ensure food quality is maintained, Quality Check is done by the Quality Officers in each kitchen.
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The cooked food is packed in steam sterilised vessels, We use specially designed and customised

transport vehicles to deliver food which is packed in stainless steel 304 grade vessels.
These vehicles are steam sterilised before the loading process. These vehicles use a puffed body
to reduce the temperature loss and a honeycomb structure to hold the vessels upright and keep

the freshness of the cooked meal intact till it is served to the children.







~Continual Improvement ©

In order to consistently maintain quality of the meal, we take feedbacks from schools on a daily basis

1 M
while delivering the meal. The Quality Officers in the kitchens review the feedback and initiate or trigger r kg t h ()( ‘ S

appropriate corrective or improvement actions to improve the quality and delivery of food. We also circulate

‘Do’s and Don’ts’ pamphlets to all schools on a regular basis for creating awareness on food safety and hygiene

while serving the mid-day meals As we aim to maintain and better our services by sustaining the quality of the mid-day meals we provide

there is a need for continual improvement. We need to advance the performance of various processes

Audit & Review mechanisms play a key role in monitoring the key processes & systems and their performance continuously so that every cycle of improvement leads to the next level of achievement. We adopted

So, we have institutionalised Good Manufacturing Process (GMP) Monthly Audits, Surprise Audits on a holistic approach and designed a programme called ‘Akshaya Pragathi’. As a part of the programme
Food Safety & Quality, to name a few. Quality Metrics Performance is reviewed on a monthly basis. we are adopting and implementing Kaizen, CI Projects and Six Sigma methodologies to ensure and make
Detailed Customer Satisfaction Surveys are done by the Quality Staff at periodic intervals apart from every member a part of these initiatives.

the day-to-day feedback we take during the delivery of food. In certified kitchens, ISO 22000

Internal Audits are done twice a year by qualified Internal Auditors led by Quality & FSMS Managers Training is an integral part of the Continual Improvement Programme. The Financial Year 2012-13 saw
and our Certification body does the surveillance audits twice a year. The data from all the respective training on 58, GMP, Lean and Kaizen, and ISO 22000 Awareness for kitchen employees across all locations
audits are reviewed and appropriate improvement or corrective actions are taken. All actions for more than 6,000 man hours. The Quality Department aims to conduct 15,000 man hours of training on
are further monitored till effective implementation similar topics in the Financial Year 2013-14.
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KARNATAKA

State Profile: Karnataka is located in the south-west part of the
country. Bangalore is the capital city of Karnataka. Kannada is

the regional and official language of the state.
POPULATION: 61.13 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)
WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra journey began in Karnataka when its first kitchen,
capable of feeding 1,500 children, was set up at HK Hill, Bangalore, in 2000.
The growing need of the hour led Akshaya Patra to start kitchens in the
districts of Hubli, Bellary, Mangalore and Mysore, including a second unit at
Vasanthapura, Bangalore, further expanding the feeding programme in the
state. All the kitchens in Karnataka are centralised kitchen units.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN KARNATAKA

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen  |Establishment| Children Schools
Karnataka 4,60,046 2,627
Bangalore- | Centralised | June 2000 85,204 487
HK Hill Kitchen
Bellary Centralised | July 2006 115,945 575
Kitchen
Hubli Ig?t’”}:“”s‘fd July 2004 126,693 789
wecnen
Centralised
Mangalore ; December 19,043 145
8 Kitchen 2004
Mysore gentralised | August 2004 | 13,835 63
Bangalore- Centralised
Vasaéftthapura Kitchen July 2007 99,326 988




H.K HILL (BANGALORE)

H.K Hill is the first kitchen of Akshaya Patra, established in June 2000. This kitchen feeds 85,204 children
each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised kitchen unit. There are 35 custom designed meal

distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

HUBLI

Established in July 2004, Hubli is the second kitchen of Akshaya Patra in Karnataka. This kitchen feeds
1,26,693 children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised kitchen unit. 40 customised meal
distribution vehicles deliver the cooked mid-day meal to the beneficiary schools. This kitchen has also taken
up new initiatives like setting up lush green kitchen gardens, along with eco-friendly initiatives like an

effluent treatment plant, rain water harvesting pond, and vermicomposting.

MYSORE

Established in August 2004, Mysore became the third location of Akshaya Patra’s kitchen in Karnataka.
A centralised unit, this kitchen currently feeds 13,835 children each day. There are seven custom-made

meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

MANGALORE

Akshaya Patra expanded to Mangalore in December 2004. It is Akshaya Patra’s fourth location
in Karnataka. The kitchen currently feeds 19,043 children each day. There are 11 customised meal

distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

BELLARY

The Bellary kitchen was established in July 2006 and is the fifth Akshaya Patra kitchen in the state.
This kitchen feeds 1,15,945 children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised kitchen unit.
There are 32 customised meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

V.K HILL (BANGALORE)

The kitchen at Vasanthapura was established in July 2007. It is the second kitchen unit in Bangalore
and commonly known as V.K Hill kitchen. This kitchen currently feeds 99,326 children each day.

It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised kitchen unit. There are 35 custom-made meal distribution
vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools. The uniqueness of this kitchen

lies in its gravity flow mechanism.
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KARNATAKA STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

The Akshaya Patra kitchens in Karnataka saw many developments in 2012-13.
* Daily Food Temperature Monitoring was introduced on all routes

+ Lid sterilising and a vehicle washing bay were a couple of the other quality initiatives introduced

in some of the kitchens
* The kitchens saw the implementation of Kaizen and Phase 2 of ERP

* The Karnataka kitchens also took up other initiatives like supplying food to drought-hit areas

and evacuated slum dwellers

+ Akshaya Patra served its billionth meal, since inception, in August 2012. The celebration of this

significant milestone was held in Karnataka

* Dispensing chutes have been installed and cost effective trolleys have been designed to minimise

manual labour and improve the kitchen process

+ The kitchen also successfully prepared 28 variants of in-house sambar powder

+ Of the many steps taken to improve the taste of the food, the introduction of sweet corn in

rice preparations has been widely accepted and appreciated * Route optimisation has been successful in aiding the distribution teams to reach schools on

time and also in minimising the number of vehicles plying those routes

+ A food lab has been introduced in the V. K Hill Kitchen in Bangalore as a pilot project.
Presently, raw material analysis of pulses, spices, vegetable oils, ghee and flour are being done
to check for adulteration and colouring agents. Efforts are being made to ensure that the

microbial analysis of food and water can also be conducted in the near future

+ In collaboration with Mangalore Univeristy and AISEC, Akshaya Patra Mangalore took

part in ‘Umang’, an AIDS prevention programme







+ Akshaya Patra served food to the 5,000 students from the 70 schools that participated in the

Anti-Child Labour Day celebrations held by the Government of Karnataka at Bangalore’s

Kanteerava Stadium

+ Akshaya Patra in association with the Department of Public Education, Government of

Karnataka organised a day-long seminar on Food Safety and Standards Act (FSSA) titled
‘Suraksha’. 230 Mid-Day Meal officials from all over Karnataka participated in the seminar.
The seminar also discussed on the implication of the Mid-Day Meal Scheme and the challenges

in its implementation

VISITS BY DELEGATIONS & DIGNITARIES

* Narayan Murthy

+ Shankar Mahadevan

+ London Business School

+ Welingkar Institute of Management
* Nilkamal

+ NMIMS

+ Caterpillar

+ Goutham College

* National Productive Council
+ Jawaharlal Nehru College

+ KMF

Myanmar University

+ UB City

* RV Institute

* Don Bosco Institute

* Goldman Sachs & Co.

* Cisco

- IIMB

+ Citibank

* Lunch Box International

- .

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

* To further quality and process optimisation, the State plans to implement concepts of industrial

engineering like the Time and Motion study
* As a pilot project, the V.K Hill kitchen witnessed the successful implementation of a
Biogas plant. Karnataka, along with the other states, will also look at implementing this eco-friendly

initiative in their kitchens

* From the perspective of providing a hot and fresh meal to children, the Foundation will also look at the

possibility of packing and serving the mid-day meals in insulated boxes

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

| Karnataka Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013) |
Particulars ‘ % in Lakhs
Total Income ‘ 4,914.39 4‘
|
LTotal Expenditure ‘ 5,806.20 J
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SUCCESS STORIES

: ’U{VM alnes\Awari

Uma was just 11 when she participated in a District Level Science Festival held at a school
in Kumta. She conducted a science experiment representing her school at the festival.
Her Science teacher Kanyakumari says, “There has been a remarkable improvement in Uma’s
health since Akshaya Patra started providing mid-day meal here in 2007.

Earlier, she had difficulty in expressing herself. Today, her |
confidence and concentration in class have improved significantly.” —

Uma’s parents work in a farm some 20 kms from the

house and hence leave home in the wee hours of morning
every day. Uma assumes the responsibility of taking care of

her two younger siblings while her parents are away, readying

them for school and taking them with her. Almost always,
there’s no food at home when Uma and her siblings return

home and the little ones remain hungry till the parents return
late in the night.

Uma understands the importance of and the

difference the mid-day meal has made to her

performance in school and is very grateful for
that. “Science is my favourite subject since it

has a lot of experiments. I want

to become a teacher and help students
understand the subjects just the way my

teacher helps me,” says the bright child.
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Gurusheedappa Basappa Kumar was deputed at The Akshaya Patra
Foundation premises as a Security Official. Happy with his work and
sensing potential, the organisation soon offered him a job in the kitchen.
“My joy knew no bounds when I was offered a job in the kitchen!” beams

and now works in the Storage Maintenance Department.
“Akshaya Patra has helped me immensely in supporting my family.
My kids went to a Government school where Akshaya Patra provided

mid-day meals. Even today, they rave about the food and refuse

he exclaims.

cause — feeding our country’s children,” he says.

N When Maruthi L.R. was in Standard V, he knew he wanted to become a teacher. -

Over the past three years his resolve has strengthened and he knows exactly what

Gurusheedappa. He worked as a Housekeeping Supervisor for three years

to eat at home unless their mother prepares similar kind of food

needs to be done to achieve his goal. A student of Government Higher Primary School,
Ingalagi near Bellary, Maruthi says that the Akshaya Patra meals have helped not

J only him, but numerous other children in his class. “The fresh and nutritious food is

truly a blessing for many of us,” he says. -

“\ The advantages of just one meal per day are unimaginable when it comes ~ —
| to children who are often termed as the future of a country. Maruthi -

says this is one of the reasons he wants to become a teacher.

“Through all the hardships I have undergone as a child,

I realised the importance of food for education. The Akshaya Patra
programme has helped me gain confidence that I too can make it.
I want to teach and help as many kids as I can and get them to stand —

Gurusheedappa takes great pride in his job and believes that

M \/\ Cjz on their own feet,” says the determined boy.
aru|

‘service to children is service to God. “Every time someone

asks me what I do for a living, I happily say that I work for a

13-year-old Safina believes there is a world beyond the ocean, beyond the bounds

of her little town. Coming from a family of fishing folk, she dreams of going to the

city and studying Law. She is a student of Bengre Kasba Government Higher
Primary School located in Mangalore. Soft spoken and highly intelligent,
her teacher is all praise for this girl with a dream, and says, “I am sure
Safina will go places. She is a child with high ambitions, despite hailing
from an economically backward family. Moreover, she used to be of

poor health, but after eating the Akshaya Patra meals, her health has
improved greatly.”

Safina’s mother rolls beedis (cigarettes) to support her father
—  financially. Her parents sometimes cannot even afford her two
— square meals a day. During times like these, Akshaya Patra

mid-day meals come as a blessing. Safina says she cannot go

Mastaan H, a Standard VII student at the Government Higher Primary School,
Ingalagi near Bellary, is not your average 14-year-old. Owing to the ban on
mining, Mastaan’s father lost his job. Both his parents now work in a garment
factory 40 kms from their village and stay in a hutment near the factory.
They visit home once or twice a month. When they are away, Mastaan
runs the house and takes care of his three younger siblings.

“The responsibility he shows towards his siblings is astonishing. While at
school, he looks out for them and makes sure that the little ones eat all the
vegetables in the mid-day meals provided by Akshaya Patra,” says his
Head Master, G.L. Muthina.

When asked how he got to being so responsible at such a young age, Mastaan
says it comes to him naturally. “I want to become an Engineer when I grow
up, support my parents and help my siblings study further. T know that
education is the only solution to our hardships,” states the young lad.

through even a single day of school without having a hearty ‘E
Akshaya Patra mid-day meal. a A
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RAJASTHAN

RAJASTHAN

State Profile: Rajasthan is located in the north west region of India.
It is known as the land of kings’. Jaipur is the capital city of
Rajasthan and is also known as the Pink City’. Hindi is the official
language but Rajasthani, a dialect of Hindi, is also widely spoken by

the natives of Rajasthan.
POPULATION: 68.62 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation started its operations in
Rajasthan in February 2004 by setting up a centralised kitchen
in Jaipur. The need of the hour and terrain encouraged the
Foundation to initiate a decentralised kitchen in the remote
district of Baran in April 2005. The third kitchen came up in
Nathdwara in June 2006 as a centralised unit. These units
together provide mid-day meals to more than 1.5 lakh children
across the state.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN RAJASTHAN

L
State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children | Schools
Rajasthan 129,493 1,682
Jaipur Centralised | February 92,763 1,081
Kitchen 2004

Baran Decentralised | April 2005 11,456 166
Kitchen

Nathdwara | Decentralised | June 2006 25,274 435
Kitchen




JAIPUR

The centralised kitchen unit at Jaipur was established in February 2004. It is an ISO 22000:2005
certified kitchen unit. This kitchen currently feeds 92,763 Government school children each day.
There are 65 custom designed meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meal to the
beneficiary schools. Apart from the regular preparation of mid-day meals, this kitchen also prepares

food for the 5,000 daily wage earners of the Akshaya Kalewa programme and for Anganwadis.

BARAN

The decentralised kitchen format at Baran was established in April 2005. There are 100 such
kitchens in the district of Baran. This kitchen currently feeds 11,456 Government school children
each day. These kitchens are mainly run by Women Self Help Groups (WSHGs). There are two
customised meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

These units also prepare food for Anganwadi schools.

NATHDWARA

The centralised kitchen unit at Nathdwara was established in June 2006. It currently feeds
25,274 Government school children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified kitchen unit.
There are 22 custom designed meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals

to the beneficiary schools.

RAJASTHAN STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

* The kitchen in Jaipur has added baked items like cakes and cookies to the menu in a few schools

+ An MOU has been signed for using fortified dal analogue in MDM with ITHMR

+ The Nathdwara kitchen passed the ISO 22000:2005 audit and got a ISO certification, becoming
the 11th ISO certified Akshaya Patra kitchen

+ Apart from successfully implementing Six Sigma Project and Quality Control practices,

the Nathdwara kitchen also completed the first phase of ERP implementation

+ The number of schools the Nathdwara kitchen caters to increased from 226 to 435 schools

VISITS BY DELEGATIONS & DIGNITARIES

+ Virendra Beniwalji, Transport Minister, Government of Rajasthan

+ Dr. Rafael Reif, President of MIT University, USA

+ Dilip W Patil, Speaker of the Maharashtra Assembly

+ MDM administration officers from across Bihar

+ Pandit Krishn Murari Gangawat, State Minister of Devsthanam Vibhag, Government of Rajasthan
* Rajeev Arora, Vice President of Rajasthan Foundation

+ Ram Das Agarwal, Member of the Rajya Sabha

+ Lal Chand Aswal, MDM Commission, Government of Rajasthan

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14
+ Set up new kitchens in Jodhpur and Jhunjhunu

* More progress on local sourcing for procurement of raw materials

+ Work with concerned Government authorities to procure cooking gas cylinders at a subsidised rate

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Rajasthan Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013)

Total Income m
1,861.99

|

Total Expenditure
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SUCCESS STORIES

Shazama has been working at a Baal Shramik (Child Labour Recreation)
and teaches about 90 children. Part of her job involves visiting areas around

let them attend school.

“Parents are the biggest hurdle. They’d rather prefer their children work
and earn money instead of sending them to school. There have been times
when parents have vehemently opposed my attempts to convince them,”
says Shazama.

But, The Akshaya Patra Foundation has made her job easier.
'f’ lunch, they are more willing to let them attend school,” she

says. Shazama is a determined woman and says she will
continue to teach children despite the odds she faces.

school in Jaipur for three years now. She manages the school single-handedly

the school for children employed as labourers and convincing their parents to

“When parents hear that their children will be provided a free

Syed is a five-year-old studying in Standard I. He lives with his
family in the slums of Jaipur. His father works in a bottling

plant while his mother embroiders sarees. He is the youngest of

four children. 0

The family’s economic condition necessitates even little Syed to help his
mother by sticking chamkees onto sarees. Despite being only of five years =~
old, Syed’s parents make it a point to send him to school regularly. When
asked why he comes to school, Syed innocently replies, “to eat lunch.”
This is a classic example that the Akshaya Patra programme acts as an
important incentive for attendance in Government schools. ==

Gied -

12-year-old Sohail is hearing and speech impaired, and studies in
Standard III at a Government school in Jaipur. He has been coming
to school for about three years now.

-

“Sohail’s parents and siblings are labourers. He is sent to
school only because he is disabled and cannot contribute to the
family’s income. Also, they know he will be fed lunch at school”,
says his teacher.

B Sadly, what they don’t know is that Sohail is a bright
child and his teachers are proud of him. “He grasps
everything in class just by looking at them. Moreover,
the assured meals at school have made him healthier
i——  and smarter child,” they say.

- , go\/\a\\ ,

Taking care of a sibling is one of the many reasons children in the country stay away from
schools. Poor families expect older siblings to take care of the younger ones, while they are
away at work. Tabassum is one such child who takes care of her younger sister.

Tabassum was a regular student until two years ago, then she suddenly stopped coming
to school. The teachers later found out that her parents wanted her to stay home
and take care of her newborn sister.

Tabassum was a bright student and her teachers were rightfully worried. After
much persuasion, her parents agreed to send Tabassum to school only if her
baby sister could accompany her, because they knew she would be fed there.
“Tabassum does not even know her own age. To her all that matters is her
3-year-old sister. We don’t mind Tabassum getting her sistelT along because she /l/G\lO O\SSWN\ L
gets to attend school. Both of them are fed here, now. For children like Tabassum

the Akshaya Patra mid-day meals have helped resume their studies,” say her teachers. —

8
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UTTAR PRADESH

State Profile: Uttar Pradesh is located in northern India. Lucknow is the capital
of Uttar Pradesh. Hindi is the state-wide official language and Urdu is the

~ secondary official language of Uttar Pradesh. It is the most populous state in
— the country as well as the most populous country subdivision in the whole world.

— POPULATION: 199.58 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation started its operations in Uttar Pradesh in August 2004
by setting up a centralised kitchen in Vrindavan. This kitchen is an ISO 22000:2005
certified unit. It provides mid-day meals to 139,262 children every day.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN UTTAR PRADESH

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children | Schools
Uttar
Drutieah 139,262 1,874
Vrindavan | Centralised/ | August 2004 139,262 1,874
Decentralised
Kitchen

UTTAR PRADESH
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VRINDAVAN

SUCCESS STORIES

The centralised kitchen unit in Vrindavan was established in August 2004. This kitchen currently
feeds 139,262 Government school children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified kitchen.
There are 69 custom-made meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meal to the
beneficiary schools. Through Special Training Programmes (STP), this kitchen is working towards

eco-friendly initiatives.

UTTAR PRADESH STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

A two-day exposure-cum-training programme entitled ‘Towards a Healthier and Stronger Tomorrow’

was conducted on the premises of the Vrindavan kitchen. This training was conducted in association

with the Ministry of Human Resource Development, Department of School Education and Literacy,

Government of India. 24 Officials of the Mid-Day Meal Scheme from 12 states attended the

programme that focused on the smooth functioning of Mid-Day Meal Scheme (MDMS).

VISITS BY DIGNITARIES & DELEGATIONS

Akhilesh Yadav, Chief Minister of Uttar Pradesh, and other members.

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

In addition to the number of current feeding locations, Akshaya Patra aims to feed children in
four new locations in the state, namely Kanpur, Agra, Lucknow and Varanasi. With new kitchens

becoming operational, the number of children being fed will also increase.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS i

Uttar Pradesh Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013)

Particulars | Xinlakhs
Total Income 1,026547777 |

Kumkum is about ten years old. According to her teacher, she is one of the brightest kids in her
class. However, initially, when Kumkum started going to school, she faced opposition from her
father since he wanted her to stay back at home and help with work. But her mother always wanted

Kumkum to go to school and did her utmost to support Kumkum.

She aspires to be a teacher. But she also admits shyly that she aspires to be an actress. She is also
good in dancing and is one of the school’s favourites when it comes to cultural activities. Her teachers
have also spoken to her parents and have appreciated her performance in school. Kumkum says that
her father doesn’t oppose the idea of her going to school anymore, since he knows that she gets

Akshaya Patra mid-day meals at school.

Total Expenditure

1,420.93
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Pinky, once a bright student, had to drop out of school due to certain
family concerns. Her teachers were disheartened at this.
Pinky’s younger sister, Meena, also studies in the same school. -
Both the sisters are determined to complete their education, to
be able to decide their future.

The primary reason for the parents to send them to school is the —
freshly cooked, nutritious Akshaya Patra meals served in their
school. Both the girls are fond of this food and consider it a silver
lining in their lives.

@\«\\(\3 '

_ “I come to school because I get to eat tasty food every day” says a shy Machala, concealing her face !

behind a book. The mental growth of the 14-year-old girl from Mathura village is underdeveloped,
but thanks to her mother, Ramvati, Machala feels she’s no different from the rest.

Ramvati, the only bread-winner in the family, has always insisted that Machala
8o to school with her younger sister Neetu, since they get free mid-day meals _d
——— there. Ramvati lost her hushand a few years ago. She supports the family by
working as domestic help in the village.

Machala is a lively girl. She is not aware that her mental abilities are
slightly different from those of her friends. But going to school every day
has influenced her positively. She has made lots of friends at school.

Her teachers also say she is a smart kid.

Rohit, a seven-year-old boy, hails from a village in Uttar Pradesh where the concept of
education is not ‘popular’. A student of Government School, Vrindavan, Rohit dwells in
a village where 90 per cent of the population belongs to a socially backward community. E—

Ramvati is the reason Machala is able to live a life not very different from other
children in her school. Cases such as these emphasise the fact that parents,

not just in urban areas but in rural India as well, are realising that education
- is a powerful system and are encouraging their children to be educated.

B The nutritious and freshly cooked meals from The Akshaya Patra Foundation
are a strong reinforcing factor in fuelling this change.

He started attending school about two years ago only because Akshaya Patra

mid-day meals were being served there. He was not interested in education —

or attending classes. He would come to school and stay till lunch was served.
After lunch he would go back home and while away time.

But in due course, he developed interest in school since he was
exposed to various activities and games. Then he made friends.
He has been attending school regularly for the past two
years and can even write his name in Hindi and English.
Rohit also takes interest in Kho-kho, an outdoor team
game, and wants to become a Kho-kho player when he
SrOWS up. N

Rohit is an excellent example as to how the Akshaya
Patra mid-day meal programme is instilling an interest
in education in young minds. i
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ODISHA

State Profile: Odisha is located in the east coast region of India, by the
Bay of Bengal. The regional language is Oriya (officially spelled as OdLa.) '
but English is widely used for official purposes. Bhubaneswar is the capital city

of Odisha.

POPULATION: 41.94 million, 2011 census (Source:Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation started its operations in Odisha in June 2006 by setting
up a centralised kitchen in Puri. The need of the hour encouraged the Foundation to
initiate a decentralised kitchen in the remote district of Nayagarh in March 2007.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN ODISHA

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children | Schools
o Odisha 80,415 1,000
R
Puri Centralised June 2006 55,835 648
Kitchen
&, Nayagarh | Decentralised|  March 2007 | 24,580 352
’ = Kitchen

e ODISH.
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PURI

With the establishment of the centralised kitchen unit at Puri in June 2006, Akshaya Patra made
an eastern expansion. This kitchen currently feeds 55,835 Government school children each day.
There are 37 custom designed meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

NAYAGARH

The Nayagarh location in Odisha has a set of decentralised kitchen units. All the kitchens put
together currently feed 24,580 Government school children each day in this location.
These kitchens are mainly run by Women Self Help Groups (WSHGs). There are two custom-made

meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

ODISHA STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

* The kitchen units in this location have proven to be a model for other decentralised units
* Food consumption in this location is among the highest and the meal menu caters to the local palate

+ Rajma is served as a part of the mid-day meals and the food is prepared in a hygienic and clean manner,
keeping intact the quality of each meal prepared

+ Initiatives like minimisation of wastage are undertaken by these decentralised units

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

* Renovate the Puri kitchen
+ Convert the GOP block of the centralised Puri kitchen into a decentralised unit
* Set up new units in Bhubaneshwar and Rourkela

* Increase the reach of the Foundation to about 2.3 lakhs in the state

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Odisha Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013)
| Particulars ‘ X in Lakhs ‘

| 819.94

Total Expenditure ‘ 1,042.47

Total Income
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SUCCESS STORIES

Runiguru is a Standard III student in Brahmanpada Project Upper Primary School,

Satyabadi, a village about 25 kms from Puri. This school is located in an extremely

remote place, which has kept children away from all the updates in the city. Yet,
Runiguru and her siblings are aware of how education can change their lives. Her
elder sister studies in Standard X, her younger sister goes to an Anganwadi and
her younger brother studies in the same school, and are all beneficiaries of the

Eight-year-old Sonali Pradhan has partial visual impairment. She is -
studying in Zilla Parishad High School, Brahmanapura. Despite the
disability, Sonali is very active and energetic. She yearns for normal |
vision in both eyes, but doctors have advised that the surgery should I

Akshaya Patra mid-day meal programme.

be done only after she turns 15.

Her father, Ajaya Pradhan, works in a farm and earns about

Runiguru is very clear that she wants to serve the needy and this determination

is evident as she says “I want to serve people.” Her favourite subject is Literature.

% 100 per day. Akshaya Patra mid-day meals are a real blessing.

She says, “I like to help my mother in the farm in peeling and planting almonds

Sonali says, “Dalma or dal and vegetable and paneer mutter (cottage

during my summer holidays, by which she can earn few more rupees”.

cheese and peas) are my favourite.”

She admires her English teacher, Sarojini Mahapatra, and aspires to

Her English teacher, Rabinarayan Mohanty says, “Initially Runiguru

be a teacher herself. Sarojini Mahapatra says, “Sonali’s family is below

seemed malnourished due to lack of nutritious food. But,

she is much better now after eating the healthy food provided by

poverty line and a beneficiary of the Government BPL card scheme,

Akshaya Patra, and her favourite is paneer (cottage cheese).

where they get 30 kgs of rice at low prices. Yet, they can’t afford to cook R

a complete meal and hence, eat just rice and water most of the time.

Most of the parents are farmers. They earn very little and

Akshaya Patra provides a complete healthy meal to such needy children,

they mostly have big families to support. The mid-day meal
helps such families and reduces their responsibilities

by taking care of the nourishment of their kids, while also
supporting an education.”

and the parents too feel happy about the programme.”

Conglli @ma?\mm
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Jhopdi Basti is an area near Bhudan Nagar, Puri Municipality, where few
families below the poverty line live in small jhopdis’or huts. The brother-sister
— duo of Jitu Pradhan and Buli Pradhan come from one of these families. Jitu is a
student of Standard V and Buli of Standard VII in Sechan Bihar Primary School,
Bhudan Nagar, Puri Minicipality. They are each other’s best friend.

They lost their father many years ago and since then their mother, Sangita Devi
manages the family alone. She is a daily wage worker and leaves home by
6 am. But, there are days when she doesn’t get work and earns nothing.

Their mother returns only late in the evening but she can work peacefully
™. since the school is a safe place and lunch is also taken care of.

) Tapati Mukherjee, Head Mistress, Primary school says, “Children
will be very hungry by lunchtime since they would've come to
school with just a piece of bread or roti. Even during heavy rains
or some unfavourable conditions, children come to school since
they do not want to miss the mid-day meal.”

The children are eager to make the most of their education.

“We study using a kerosene lamp and sometimes, when there is
no kerosene, we try to read with the help of street light near the
main road,” says Buli. Jitu aims high to be an engineer, while
Buli wants to complete her Standard X first and find a job that will
support the family and provide for the education of her brother.

At the beginning of every academic year, the Government of Puri appoints a few people
to identify children who are school drop-outs and get them back to school, creating
awareness on education among parents and children alike. Tanku Behra, 11, and
Sankar Behra, 13, are two brothers who were brought back to a Primary School in
Bhudan Nagar. Since they didn’t know even the basics of reading and writing, teachers
enrolled them in the first standard. Gradually, the duo caught up with studies and is
now in Standard III.

A polio victim since birth, Tanku Behra manages on his own without any help. Their
mother, Domini Behra, and elder brother take care of the family income. Their mother
is a fish seller while the brother works in a factory. Their teacher, Prabhamani says,
“Tanku and Sankar have improved a lot in all aspects. Their health condition is much
better now and so is their cleanliness. Akshaya Patra provides nutritious food and they
look forward to it every day. This one meal has motivated them to come to school.”
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Oruali, a small village about 25 kms from Puri, is home to many economically backward families.
Nikina Pradhan, studying in Standard VII in Oruali, Project Upper Primary school is a topper in
her class and also excels in all extra-curricular activities. She is very gifted in the areas of music
and painting, though she’s most partial to dance. This self-taught dancer is everyone’s first

choice for a stage performance during cultural festivals at school.

Her Science teacher, Babita Rout, speaks highly
of the little girl, who pursues her passion despite
reservations from her conservative family.
“Despite all her familial pressures, Nikina continues
to excel in her studies and we hope that she will

achieve her dreams to study masters in Arts and

Literature,” says Bijaya Laxmi, Nikina’s History and
Literature teacher.

Nikina’s father is a farmer and earns a minimum wage.
Her brother works as a labourer in Cuttack and she stays
with her grandparents. School gives her the chance to
follow her own path, and she is happier here than at home.
The paneer (cottage cheese) that’s part of the mid-day meal
served by Akshaya Patra makes a day at school even

more delightful.
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GUJARAT

State Profile: Gujarat is located in the western coastal region of India.
Gandhinagar is the capital city of Gujarat and Ahmedabad is the state’s
largest city. Gujarati is the official language of the state.

POPULATION: 60.38 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation was set up in Gujarat with its first
kitchen in Gandhinagar in June 2007. Sensing a need to extend the reach
of the programme, a second kitchen was set up in Vadodara in November
2009. The most recent, and the third, kitchen in Gujarat was set up in
Surat in June 2012. All three kitchens are centralised and are well
equipped to cater to more than a lakh children.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN GUJARAT

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children Schools
Gujarat 400,158 1,653
Gandhinagar Centralised | June 2007 121,508 666
Kitchen
Vadodara Centralised |  November 113,593 616
Kitchen 2009
Centralised P
IS K;{"Ch’;’nl*‘ June 2012 165,057 371




GANDHINAGAR

The centralised kitchen unit at Gandhinagar was established in June 2007. This kitchen currently

feeds 1,21,508 Government school children each day. This kitchen is an ISO 22000:2005 certified unit.

There are 44 custom-made meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

VADODARA

The centralised kitchen unit at Vadodara was established in November 2009. This kitchen currently
feeds 1,138,593 Government school children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified unit.
There are 39 customised meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

SURAT

The centralised kitchen unit at Surat was established in June 2012. It currently feeds 1,65,057
Government school children each day. There are 25 custom designed meal distribution vehicles to

deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the beneficiary schools.

GUJARAT STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

* The kitchens at Vadodara and Surat have begun implementing Six Sigma Project and Quality

Circle principles for optimisation of resources

+ Since its inception, the kitchen at Surat has made ERP a part of its infrastructure

+ The installation of roof ventilators in the kitchen working area has improved efficiency

+ Close to 125 STP (Special Training Programme) classes were conducted in Gandhinagar to feed

2,799 children
The Gandhinagar kitchen also worked in coordination with the State Government to feed children
who are out of school. The Vadodara kitchen started ICDS (Anganwadi) in nearly 137 schools,

which now feeds around 2,500 children every day.

VISITS BY DELEGATIONS & DIGNITARIES

Ashwin Tirvedi, Deputy Collector, Ahmedabad

* Mrs. Vithlani, U.K. based donor

+ AJBS College students, Anand

+ CTI College students, Gandhinagar

* Deputy Commissioner, Deputy Collector and FCI Official

* Ramesh Parmar, President Primary Teacher Association - Surat

+ J.B. Bhora, Deputy Commissioner - Health and Hospital of ICDS - Surat
* Anju Sharma, ICDS Commissioner

+ Jawahar Jay Malhotra, President from Indo American News (U.S.A.)

* Arvind, Deputy Commissioner from Mumbai
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+ Work on getting the kitchen at Surat ISO certified has started

+ Begin work on an ICDS model that ensures needy children and mothers get wholesome and

+ Take steps to implement Six Sigma Project and Quality Circle practices in all kitchens in the state

+ With the help of a newly developed lab, increase focus on the quality of food related parameters
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PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

+ Set up a new kitchen in Ahmedabad. As a strategic development, ONGC has expressed interest

in aiding this initiative

nutritious meals every day. The Government of Gujarat has approached Akshaya Patra to take up the
feeding programme of a million ICDS beneficiaries

and kitchen processes

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

[ Gujarat Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013) 1
Particulars ‘ R in Lakhs

‘ |
h’otal Income 2,733.07

\J'otal Expenditure ‘ 2,911.37 j




SUCCESS STORIES

Rajput Pritesh Mahesh Bhai is a 13-year-old boy studying in the Standard VII at Pragati Vidyalaya,
—  Bhayli, near Vadodara. Due to his close resemblance to Mahatma Gandhi and his belief in Ahimsa

__ or non-violence, his schoolmates fondly address him as ‘Bapu’. Pritesh aspires to become a Software
Engineer in order to support his family of seven members. He has a slight difficulty in speaking fluently.

Pritesh comes from a humble dwelling called Jhumri Bavri’. He lives with his parents,

brother, sister and grandparents. He finishes his homework between 3 pm and 7 pm
before members of his family return home.

Sheetal Chawla loves to draw mehendi on others” hands and dance in her free time.
Due to the untimely demise of her father, she missed her Standard VII Annual

Examinations. Yet, she is determined to clear it.

Bharati Behn, Sheetal’s mother, is the only earning member in the family
now. She works as a domestic help in households. Sheetal’s brother, Piyush,
who is studying in the Standard X, aims to do his ITI Diploma. Bharati Behn
leaves for work by 6 am and hence the two kids have a glass of

milk for breakfast. This is why Sheetal looks forward to having the delicious
meal provided by Akshaya Patra. It is served before noon during day
school from 7 am to 1 pm. “Akshaya Patra mid-day meals
are a boon to families like ours, where it is difficult to have
such a nutritious meal every day,” says Sheetal, extending
her gratitude to the Foundation.

i C;\/\eej(al C\/\Q\Nlﬁ

His father rides a rickshaw and earns minimum wage, which is insufficient
for a family of seven. “But my grandmother is energetic and works in tobacco
fields. She supports my father and the family,” says Pritesh. The morning

breakfast in this household is usually a single roti (Indian flat bread) from

the previous day. Hence the children depend on the mid-day meal. With a soft
voice Pritesh says, “Akshaya Patra food is better than homemade food.
I like to eat Dal Dokhli and Moong khichdi every day.”

1 B\I\G\Y\NO\CQ @o\()ql &aw\'\\\ B\/\q'\ .

Bharwad Gopal Hamili Bhai, a student of Class VI at the Dr. Hansa Mehta

Primary School, Vadsar, speaks fluent Hindi, which is a rarity among
children studying in Gujarati-medium schools. His parents belong to

a community that rears cows and sheep for a living. He loves to eat moong

khichdi which is part of the Akshaya Patra mid-day meal programme.

By eating well, Gopal wishes to grow stronger and become a Police Officer.

His determination to go to school neat and tidy makes him wash his only
uniform every day. After school, Gopal takes the calves to graze in the fields.

Gopal and his three siblings depend on the afternoon meal provided by

Akshaya Patra. His mother, Jeeku Behn says, “Akshaya Patra has made our life
easier by giving freshly cooked nutritious meals to my four children. —
We cannot afford such a meal every day.” Jeeku Behn encourages her neighbours

to send their children to schools where Akshaya Patra serves mid-day meals.
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11-year-old Neelam Behn comes from Mali Street near Vadsar where most of the families

are into garland-making. Most of them send their children to school because their lunch is
taken care of. Neelam’s parents work in their small farm where they grow roses, jasmine

and other flowers. Their only source of income is selling malas (garlands) as per the orders

placed. They earn very little every day and find it difficult to make ends meet.

It is a common practice in this community that girls study only till the Standard X and later
help their parents at home. Neelam too is prepared for a similar future. When asked about
her ambition, she says, “I want to be happy.” She adds, “I love school and the Akshaya Patra
mid-day meal. My favourites are idlis and mixed vegetable sabji.”

| ee\O\W\Ee\M\

Vikas Solanki, studying in the Standard VII at Pragathi Vidyalaya, comes
from a village called Chhaparipura which is 10 kms away from Bhayli.

He cycles all the way to school and doesn’t miss classes even a single day.

Vikas is encouraged by his parents to proudly enjoy the nutritious meal
provided by Akshaya Patra. Vikas says, “My dream is to become a Civil
Engineer and work for construction projects and help my family.”

His father now works as a daily wage labourer for a construction company
and it is difficult for the family to meet the day-to-day expenses. Vikas’s

sisters too are beneficiaries of the Akshaya Patra mid-day meal.

His teacher says, “A mid-day meal reduces the burden of such
parents to pack lunch for their kids. The children are sent to school
mainly because lunch is taken care of. Vikas and his family set an
example for a positive impact of mid-day meals.
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ANDHRA PRADESH

State Profile: Andhra Pradesh is located in the south eastern part
of the country. Hyderabad is the capital city of Andhra Pradesh.
Telugu is the primary official language, followed by the co-official
language Urdu.

POPULATION: 84.65 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation expanded its reach in

Andhra Pradesh by starting kitchens in Hyderabad and
Visakhapatnam in October 2008. Both the kitchens provide
mid-day meals to Government schools and Anganwadi children.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN ANDHRA PRADESH

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children Schools

g:lgg::h 60,098 461
Visakhapatnam | Centralised | October 2008 5,249 7

Kitchen

Centralised

Hyderabad Kitchen October 2008 54,849 454
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VISAKHAPATNAM

The Centralised kitchen unit at Visakhapatnam was established in October 2008. This kitchen
currently feeds 5,249 Government school children and 34,241 Anganwadi children each day.
There are 25 custom-made meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools. A water harvesting pit is an eco-friendly initiative undertaken by this kitchen.

HYDERABAD

The Centralised kitchen unit at Hyderabad was established in October 2008. This kitchen currently
feeds 54,849 Government school children and 25,768 Anganwadi children each day. There are 23
custom-made meal distribution vehicles in this unit to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

ANDHRA PRADESH STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

Andhra Pradesh kitchens saw many developments and improvisations during 2012-13. The Hyderabad
kitchen’s capacity was enhanced from producing 50,000 meals to 1,00,000 meals. This kitchen also saw
an increase in feeding mid-day meals from 38,000 meals (7 mandals) to 62,500 meals (11 mandals) in
Medak District.

Witnessing the good work, we were approached to take up the initiative of feeding Anganwadi children too
Thus, Hyderabad began the Anganwadi feeding initiative from November 2012 and currently feeds 26,000
beneficiaries in Ranga Reddy district. It reached a significant milestone of providing over 2 crore meals
cumulative between 2008 to 2012.

Land has been identified to build a new kitchen in Narsinghi, Ranga Reddy District. This will be

significant in increasing the reach of Akshaya Patra in the state.

The kitchen in Hyderabad has the distinction of having won, three times in a row, the ‘Best Mid-day Meal
Provider’ award presented by EPICURUS.
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In addition to the mid-day meal programme, The Akshaya Patra Foundation in Andhra Pradesh
has begun many other unique initiatives like the ‘The Akshaya Life Skills and Medical Intervention

Programme’, ‘Ananth Akshaya Scholarship’, feeding children working in construction sites.

VISITS BY DELEGATIONS & DIGNITARIES

* S Ramachandra Rao- RDO & Sub-Divisional Magistrate, Sangareddy, Medak District

* S Mohan Reddy- DSP Intelligence, Sangareddy, Medak

* P Jyothi- Regional Joint Director, WCD & SC, Hyderabad

+ A Dinakar Babu- TAS, Collector District Magistrate, Medak Headquarters, Sangareddy
+ M.V.S. Krishnaji Rao- UPA-Lokayukta, Government of Andhra Pradesh

+ Nandeeswar Goud- Legislator

* Dr. N.K. Raju- Executive Director (P&A), Bharat Dynamics Limited

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

Some of the major plans the State has charted out are as follows:

+ Akshaya Patra will aim to increase feeding in Anganwadis by an addition of 20,000 beneficiaries,
apart from providing regular mid-day meals in Government schools

+ Route optimisation and reduction in production cost of meals by making strategic purchases
of commodities

* Implementation of GPRS system to track meal distribution vehicles

+ Construct a new kitchen with the capacity to feed around 1.5 lakh children every day

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Andhra Pradesh Financial Highlights (2012-2013)
Particulars R in Lakhs

Total Income 1,202.54

Total Expenditure 1,190.29
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SUCCESS STORIES

concentrate better in class.”

Manasa speaks English with enthusiasm and confidence, her eagerness to learn glossing over
minor mistakes. A student of Standard VII at the Zilla Parishad High School, Kanithi,

she is a class topper with great passion to learn English.

Manasa aspires to teach English to all Government school children with a quality

Y equivalent to that of any private school. Priyadarshini, her Computer Science teacher,
A praises her interest in learning English and also her ardent attempt to speak fluently.
. She says, “Manasa is a brilliant student and also very attentive in class. We feel very
motivated to teach such students and to encourage them in achieving their dreams.
| Akshaya Patra helps children get a nutritious meal and thus children are able to

\
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Manasa’s father runs a small corner shop near a
hotel. Her mother is a homemaker and manages
the house with the little money that is given to her
every day. Manasa loves to eat Akshaya Patra food

since such a variety of food is hardly cooked in

her house.

N\O\V\O\SG\
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_ Agifted painter, Bhanuprasad balances his ambitions and responsibilities
with equal enthusiasm. This Class IX student of the Zilla Parishad High
School, Aganampudi is the leader of the National Green Corps (NGC), a group
formed by the school to create awareness on the nutritional values of the

mid-day meal. Bhanuprasad is a topper in his class and a wizard at art and
crafts. He hopes to join the Armed Forces one day. Bhanu’s enthusiasm for
learning is immense.

“I always read the lessons before they are taught in class. That way,
I understand better and clear my doubts if any. My parents are very
- confident that I will study well and get a good job to settle

comfortably in life unlike our present condition,” he says.

Bhanu’s father does small welding jobs and his mother is a

homemaker. His brother Jagan, who also studied in the same
school and was a beneficiary of the Akshaya Patra programme,
is now pursuing his diploma and wants to be an engineer. With
a limited income, Bhanu’s mother tries hard to manage the

family of four with basic necessities.

Bhanu says, “My mother feels very happy since I get to eat
healthy food for lunch and that she need not worry about
packing food for me.” He likes the vegetable biryani (a form

of rice preparation) served as part of the mid-day meal

and ensures that all his friends eat their meal every day. ——

Anganwadi is the nursery school programme run byAthe Governmer;t,
in which mid-day meals are served to infants, lactating mothers an
school drop-outs. In Vizag, Akshaya Patra reaches out to arour'ld
40,000 children in 304 Anganwadi schools in and around the city.

i [N
Tarakarama Nagar I,
Anganwadi centre,
Kancharaplam is situated in
a residential area filled with
one-room houses. L. Kumari,
enrolled in this programme
during her pregnancy, and
now she and her 6-month-old
baby enjoy a freshly cooked
nutritious lunch every day.
It has boosted their health
manifold, without straining

The Anganwadi programme also supports adolescents who drop out of
school due to financial constraints. Jhansi’s mother is a widow and
her family feels that her education is unaffordable. This programme
at least ensures that she eats a nutritious meal; this, in turn, acts as
a stimulus for her to continue her education.

the limited income her
husband earns as a coolie
(porter) in the neighbouring
market.

1’\/\6 a,\?qv\\;vaae\ Y)Yog\_f amme
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A neat building with iron grills along the
compound, Upper Primary School, Chinna
Kanjarala, Patancheru Mandal has the look

of a private school in a city. But this school is in
a small village about 12 kms from Patancheru.

— Every child is dressed neatly with clean uniforms
— and high discipline is in the air here. This
transformation was made possible by the current
Head Mistress, T. Laxmi.

In July 2012, when Laxmi was appointed as

the Headmistress, she found that the strength

of the school was very low. Noting that a high

—  percentage of parents worked as migrant
labourers and looked at their children’s education
as a temporary arrangement, she campaigned

hard to change their mind-set.

Laxmi then went around the village with a few
teachers and created awareness about education
and its importance. During the past year, she has
taken up many initiatives including an Annual
Day celebration which motivated the parents

to send their children to this school. Impressed
by the proactive nature of the Head Mistress and
dedication of the teachers, parents started

sending their kids to school. Today, the school

has strength of 150 students in Chinna Kanjarala.

—  Akshaya Patra’s mid-day meal programme has
_ further incentivised parents to enrol their
children in school, which serves as a complete
home, with education, noon meals, snacks, and

a nurturing environment.

| Blanuchandar

Eight-year-old Bhanuchandar was diagnosed with polio at birth.

His mother abandoned him, and he’s now raised by his
‘Ammamma’ (grandmother) and uncle. All thanks to her,
Bhanu still has that twinkle in his eyes and there is hope

¢ for him. Bhanu’'s Ammamma is asthmatic. Despite her
sickness, the 55-year-old woman pushes his wheelchair twice

a day to drop him and pick him up from school.

Bhanu’s uncle works as coolie (porter) for daily wages. The days
when he fails to get a job, the family goes to sleep on an empty
stomach. Bhanu is also deprived of nutritious food at home,
which is vital for his physical stamina.

His Ammamma says, “My grandson is happy to go to school

since he gets nutritious food, snacks and fruits also. I can’t

afford any of these constantly.” Most of the time, the
food at home is only some porridge. Due to lack of
nutrition, Bhanu seems to have underdeveloped
maturity too. But his teacher Laxmi is confident that
with healthy food from Akshaya Patra, children like
Bhanu will grow better and gain confidence despite the

challenges they face.
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CHHATTISGARH

State Profile: Chhattisgarh is located in central India, with Raipur as the
capital city. Hindi is the official language but Chhattisgarhi, a dialect of

Hindi, is also used widely by the people of the state.

POPULATION: 25.54 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

Akshaya Patra began its operations in Chhattisgarh by setting up a centralised

kitchen in Bhilai in January 2009.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN CHHATTISGARH

State Type of Year of Number of | Number of
Location Kitchen Establishment| Children Schools
Chhattisgarh 23,674 160
Bhilai Centralised | January 2009 23,674 160
Kitchen
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BHILAI

The centralised kitchen unit of Bhilai was established in January 2009. Currently, this kitchen feeds
23,674 children in 160 government schools each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised

kitchen unit. There are eight customised meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals

to the beneficiary schools.

CHHATTISGARH STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

+ Phase 2 of ERP was recently implemented in the Bhilai kitchen

+ A media workshop was conducted to make the local media aware of the programme’s functions

+ As a CSR initiative, Cafe Coffee Day sponsored cookies for the beneficiary children

+ The kitchen staff was vaccinated for typhoid and provided with a free and complete health check-up,
in coordination with the CSR department of the Bhilai Steel Plant

VISITS BY DELEGATIONS & DIGNITARIES
* SAIL

MAJOR PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14
To further the quality and process optimisation, the state has already chalked out its plans for the

financial year 2013-14. They are as follows:

* Implement Kaizen and 5S
+ Conduct quality and continuous improvement training in 53, Kaizen, Quality Metrics, GMP, PDCA,

Food Safety and Hygiene and similar methods for the employees as a pilot project

+ Create an opportunity for the Production staff to meet school children, to enhance relations with

beneficiaries as well as motivate the team
+ Organise an awareness programme for school staff and children on personal hygiene and safe handling

+ Install Pressure Regulator System (PRS) to improve the production process

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Chhattisgarh Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013)
R in Lakhs

Particulars

Total Income 282.21

Total Expenditure ‘ 279.15




SUCCESS STORIES
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Young Sheetal was just nine years old when she had to move to a

Her parents had to move her from a private school to a Government school
where education and mid-day meal are provided.

Although Sheetal had some difficulty getting along with the kids
in her initial days at the Government school, she is now
accustomed to the environment there. The sole reason for this

is her strong ambition to study medicine. Sheetal wants to

become a doctor and help the economically backward classes.

Sheetal also takes great interest in the field of sport and loves
to play Kho-kho. Even though the current financial conditions
of Sheetal’s family are not very favourable, her parents want
her to study well and convert her dreams into reality.

Government school three years ago, due to an unforeseen financial collapse. |

Ashwini is a very emotional 14-year-old girl studying in Standard VIII. Unfortunately,
she has gone through a lot of trouble at a tender age due to a tragedy.

With the aim of settling down with his family, Ashwini’s father brought them all
to Bhilai in December 2012. However, he mysteriously disappeared in a couple of
weeks, leaving the family devastated. Her mother was forced to work as domestic ~ ——
help in a few households to support the family. Eventually, all her three sisters -
had to work as domestic aides to support the family.

If anything, the struggle has only motivated Ashwini to work hard.
A bright student, she wants to grow up and take up teaching as a
profession, so that all the kids in her town are well educated. The —
Akshaya Patra mid-day meal that is served at her school is her

'{ favourite food and she is very grateful that she has access to it.

Saraswati is a 16-year-old girl studying in the Standard VIII. From a
young age, Saraswati has been through a lot of hardship. Her family
has an irregular income. Her mother and grandmother support the
family by working as domestic aides in households.

Children working as a domestic help is a common occurrence in this
— location. Sarawati’s situation is no different. This has not deterred
her from dreaming big. Saraswati aspires to serve in the Indian
Police Services. But she says with a shy smile, “I plan to complete
studying till Standard XII at least.”

— She loves going to school and eagerly waits for the wholesome
mid-day meal provided by Akshaya Patra.

y
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She aims to be a teacher so that she can impart her
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14-year-old Sadhana studying in Standard VIII is a very smart

girl with a sweet smile. Sadhana comes from a low income
background. Her mother supports the family by working as
domestic help. Due to the heavy debt her family is in, she is
compelled to lend a helping hand to ease the burden. Despite
these hardships, she is determined to study.

life’s lessons to other children. Her mother is very

supportive of her education too.




ASSAM

State Profile: Assam is one of the Seven Sister States, tucked

away among lush green lands of the north-eastern part of India.

Dispur located at Guwahati is the capital of Assam. Assamese is the primary
official language of this north eastern state.

POPULATION: 31.16 million, 2011 census (Source: Wikipedia)

WHEN AND HOW WE STARTED

The Akshaya Patra Foundation established its presence in the north-east region
of India by setting up a centralised kitchen in Guwahati in February 2010.
This kitchen is one of the largest of its kind here and provides mid-day meals to
government school children in the Guwahati region.

AKSHAYA PATRA’S REACH IN ASSAM

State Type of |Year of Number of | Number of

Location Kitchen |Establishment| Children Schools

Assam 53,649 592
Guwahati Centralised | February 2010| 53,649 592

Kitchen




Guwahati - February 2010

The kitchen unit at Guwahati was established in February 2010. This kitchen currently feeds

53,649 Government school children each day. It is an ISO 22000:2005 certified centralised kitchen unit.

There are 28 customised meal distribution vehicles to deliver the cooked mid-day meals to the

beneficiary schools.

ASSAM STATE REVIEW FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2012-13:
ACHIEVEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2012-13

Akshaya Patra, Guwahati initiated a programme to distribute 47,000 steel plates to Government
school children, in phases. This initiative is meant to improve the impact of the mid-day meal
programme. Akshaya Patra held a media orientation at Guwahati. The workshop was well attended
by representatives from both print and electronic media. The objective of the workshop was to direct

attention to hunger and encourage debate on the way it impedes education, through the media.

VISITS BY DIGNITARIES AND DELEGATIONS

* BHEL representatives

+ A group of GNRC hospital staff along with Medical Director Dr. J. P. Sharma
+ Don Bosco School

* Royal Group of Institutions

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2013-14

Sensing a growing need to expand the programme in the region, Akshaya Patra plans to set up a
second kitchen in Assam, capable of preparing 1,00,000 meals. The Government of Assam has

extended its support by allotting land for this initiative and providing resources for the construction

and running of the new kitchen unit.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Assam Financial Highlights (2012 - 2013)

Particulars % in Lakhs
Total Income 428.97
Total Expenditure 510.18
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Durga Prasad a 13-year-old who hails from a humble
background in Guwahati. When he first came to school two years

ago, he suffered from anorexia and malnourishment.

It was the Akshaya Patra mid-day meal that drew him to the
corridors of the school, and it’s kept him here ever since.

Today, his teacher reports that his health has significantly improved.
Besides having a sumptuous meal at school, he also takes food home,
<o that he can share it at dinner time with the rest of his family.
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As we set foot into a new financial year, many dreams and aspirations for the programme also get initiated.

The mid-day meal is an enormous programme and its sustainability is always a task. This is so because

it directly impacts the lives of millions of children. These children are the beneficiaries of the

wholesome meal and rightful education. Thus, sustainability of this programme in current locations

and newer expansions should indeed be considered strategically and practically so that the lives of the
children are secure.
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Quality and Food Safety are primary ingredients at each of the Akshaya Patra kitchens. Learning from

the past, we have introduced various metrics in every area of operations and service delivery. We have also

tied up with different organisations to review the quality of the mid-day meals we prepare and serve to children.
To maintain the quality of the meal, standardisation of recipes across all locations has been undertaken.

To improve quality standards, improvement projects like Kaizen and 5S have been started in different

locations. Employee Health and Safety activities are conducted to further increase hygiene standards and

improve safety and health.

A detailed explanation on Quality and Food Safety measures has been provided in the section titled

‘Akshaya Patra Kitchen Infrastructure’.

We aim to further focus and improve our core cause of implementing the mid-day meal programme by
focusing on our Income-Expenditure ratio so that more money can be utilised towards feeding children.
We plan to have a system of fund allocation so that expenses are within an allocated budget. It is also

necessary that we utilise our infrastructure optimally and think of innovative ways to improvise the same.

The Financial Year 2013-14 will see comprehensive developments, improvisations and innovations in the

areas of Civil Design & Construction, Equipment Design, Planning and Project Management, Purchase &

Logistics, and Maintenance & Lean Management. The following is a mention of the charted out projects —

Develop Quality Assurance and Control Systems, an Economical Kitchen design m

Procedures for all key processes, 3D modelling software for equipment and kitchen design, Implementation

of Biogas plant, Automated vessel washer and Indigenous soap solutions across all kitchens, Cost-effective

Vehicle procurement, Route optimisation & maintenance solutions among other:

) —




e e@o @(O\MV\?
GW\CP go\w'\V\? Uy fogef\AeY :

1‘;.

|
. . ing i isti ach

— Sustainability is of prime importance when it comes to operating in the existing re

1 and also for the expansion plans of Akshaya Patra. ——
In appreciation of our good work, the Foundation has received requests from different states to start
the mid-day meal programme there. Akshaya Patra aims to expand by keeping sustainability in mind
so that once the children are fed, their hopes too can be sustained and nurtured. Thus, Akshaya Patra

1

will look to increase its reach only when adequate resources are available to erect kitchen infrastructure

and to cover the running cost for at least three years.
Akshaya Patra will also explore newer areas and initiatives within the Foundation that will support
|| the primary cause of sustaining the mid-day meal programme. In an effort to increase local awareness

and achieve sustainability, Akshaya Patra will initiate Local Kitchen Boards that will aid in local

resource mobilisation and better governance.

In Resource Mobilisation, a strategic shift will be made to focus on Individual donors and also to

encourage donations in kind. Recently, we have begun two new Resource Mobilisation offices, one each

in Mumbai and Hyderabad. To further improve the functionality of the Resource Mobilisation team

we plan to think innovatively and maximise our reach, so that more and more people become aware of

our cause and extend their much needed aid.

Akshaya Patra plans to spread its reach to new locations - Bhubaneswar and Rourkela in Odisha as well

as Kanpur, Agra, Lucknow and Varanasi in Uttar Pradesh

The enormity of our programme requires a Risk Management System to identify risks and draw

plans to mitigate them. We have partnered with solution providers to implement an integrated risk

management solution. Akshaya Patra has implemented a Grain Grant Accounting Policy for reporting

and maintenance of grain supply and usage. We plan to share these records in greater detail with the

Government to ensure higher transparency throughout the process.

In our efforts to run the mid-day meal initiative, the Public-Private Partnership model of functioning

has proved very vital. The significance of this model is visible in many of our developments that took

place during 2012-13. Akshaya Patra in association with the Ministry of Human Resource Development,

Department of School Education and Literacy, Government of India, organised a two-day

exposure-cum-training programme in Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh on smooth functioning of the

Mid-Day Meal Scheme (MDMS). Mid-day meal officials from 12 states attended the programme.
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Akshaya Patra intends to further improve stakeholder relationship and engagement by introducing

and initiating various tools and programmes for both external and internal stakeholders.

The employees, specially the kitchen staff, are a significant part of the Foundation. Programmes such

as Annual Day, Sports Day, Employee Recognition and other such employee engagement activities are

being conducted at all locations to motivate, encourage and applaud their constant valuable support

and involvement each day. The Foundation will further initiate celebrations and meets like

Teachers’ Day, Volunteers Meet and the like.

Each stakeholder has an important role to play and the above plans can be achieved only when

all of us work in unison. The global recognition of being the 23rd NGO among the Top 100 World NGOs

is a testimony to the combined efforts of all the stakeholders. Let’s continue to work together to achieve

our aspiration of feeding more and more children and to live up to our Vision and Mission.

_The employees, specially the mtchen
—staff are a significant part of the

Foundation.
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AKSHAYA LIFE SKILLS

— IMPACT STUDY i — Impact Study of Life Skills programme in all schools (Karnataka)
Impact of the Akshaya Patra Mid-Day Meal Programme ]
73.21% 75.90% 76.13%
1)|| Increased enrolment — The mid-day meal scheme has become a great incentive for children to s 58.81% Gt 58.84% (i
come to school. As it’s more often than not, childrens’ only meal for the day, parents prefer to ey /
send their children to school.
2)|| Increased attendance — Children look forward to coming to school every day due to the delicious
menu. In addition, regional delicacies are also a big draw for them to attend school.
3)|| Increased concentration — The nutritious and healthy food increases the child’s concentration in e ! A )
class and helps them perform better. RS N T e
4)|| Improved socialisation — The intermingling and eating together habit has increased the unity TN e i e e O A T S ol
among children of various religions and castes. It has helped in removing divisional hierarchy in
terms of social standing and has fostered a sense of equality among them.
5)|| Addressed malnutrition — Akshaya Patra is striving to meet the nutritional requirements of Impact Study of Life Skills programme in Akshaya Life Skills (ALS) schools has proved to be positive
children such as energy, carbohydrates, proteins and fat. throughout the years. When the SSLC result data of the year 2007 to 2012 is analysed the results depict
6)|| Empowered women — Women have been employed in different capacities in operations and that most of the ALS schools have successfully gained improved results when it is compared to Board

other areas as cooks, helpers etc., with the advent of the mid-day meal scheme. This vocational

results. Also the number of distinction holders have increased when compared to the previous year.

opportunity has given a boost to their self-esteem and improved their social standing

The Akshaya Life Skills programme has been very beneficial in improving academic performance of
the students and in ensuring that they continue their education. There has always been a significant

increase and improvement through the years.




AC NEILSON IMPACT STUDY

Impact on pass percentage and enrolment to higher studies

Impact of Akshaya Patra Mid-Day Meal Programme:

» Increase in school attendance

Socialisation among children

Empowerment of local women

74.96%

Improvement in nutritional status

Increase in enrolment by 28%

Decrease in drop-out rate by 8%

2011-12*%

2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11

Il SSLC pass results Il Enrolments to higher studies

*Enrolment figures not included for the academic year of 2011-12

The above graph represents the percentage of students who have cleared their Secondary School

Leaving Certificate (SSLC) examinations and are pursuing their higher studies across the different

academic years after the programme

The Akshaya Life Skills (ALS) is a programme in collaboration with EduMedia, aimed at holistic

development of school children. ALS trains ten important life skills outlined by WHO: Decision

Making, Problem Solving, Effective Communication, Inter-Personal Skills, Critical Thinking.

Creative Thinking, Self Awareness, Empathy, Coping with Stress and Self Management

MANIPAL UNIVERSITY STUDY

Nutritional Status In Akshaya Patra Schools In Bangalore

2006 2008 2010
underweight underweight underweight
23% 18%

Not Not
underweight underweight underweight
7% 79% 82%

—— Impact on attendance in Akshaya Patra schools in Bangalore ~————

Hunger, malnutrition, ill health, gender inequality are constraints for attainment of education

Akshaya Patra as a mid-day meal programme has tackled these problems as well as heightened the

702% 216 7150

expectations. “Malnutrition among school children receiving mid-day meals is very less as compared

to students who are not receiving mid-day meals.”

Excerpts of a Study conducted on measuring the impact of mid-day meals on a child’s

2005-2006 2009-2010

growth by Department of Public Health of Manipal University

M Boys M Girls Bl Total

1) P—




Impact on Nutritional Status in Akshaya Patra schools in Puri

2006 2010

oy 565 S04% -
70 0

m Boys  m Girls

B Not underweight

Impact on Attendance in Akshaya Patra Schools In Puri

( CLASS 1-VII)

86.7%
0,
71.8% 13.3% 83.1%

. 2005 2009

| W Boys W Girls
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— AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS —

1. Akshaya Patra nominated to be Member of National Steering
-cum-Monitoring Committee (NSMC) for Mid-Day Meal Programme.

2. ICAI Gold Shield Award for the 4th consecutive year for Excellence
in Financial Reporting: Feb-2013.

3. Gold Award for Annual Report 2011-12 by SAFA (South Asian
Federation of Accountants).

4. Ranked 23rd among the Top 100 NGOs by The Global Journal in
its 2013 edition.

5. LASSIB Society — Honorary Award on Social Responsibility

6. Akshaya Patra Jaipur wins Community Leadership Award 2012.

7. Featured as one of the 8 Indian game changers in the inaugural issue
of Innowin - India’s first magazine dedicated to innovation.

8. Participated in the International Congress titled ‘Rural Woman, Partner
of the Development Process’ held in Rabat, Morocco.

9. A documentary on Akshaya Patra was featured on National
Television- Doordarshan.

10. Ranked 30th among Top 100 Annual Reports Worldwide at LACP
(League of American Communications Professionals) 2011/12 Vision Awards.

11. Gold Award at LACP (League of American Communications
Professionals) 2011/12 Vision Awards.

12. Silver at Summit International Creative Award 2013 -
Recognition for creative representation of the 2011-12 Annual Report.

13. Gold Award at Public Relations Council of India (PRCI) Corporate

Collateral Awards 2013.
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Education gives the confidence to dream and achieve. It has the potential to break the

recurring cycle of poverty and promote self-sustainability. To improve primary education,
the Government of India has initiated Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan (SSA) - a flagship
programme meant to enable Universalisation of Elementary Education (UEE) in a time
bound manner.

But, without the assurance of food security to the children, the educational infrastructure
will not be able to achieve its full potential. Hunger will invariably force a child to work for
a square meal rather than attend school. In effect, many such children will miss out on the

benefit of their right to education.

This indicates that to ensure educational facilities are made use of optimally by the lowest
sections of the society, food is an important intervention. Taking this inference forward,

the Government introduced the Mid-Day Meal Scheme (MDMS), a programme that focuses on
providing free lunches to children at all Government schools in order to enhance enrolment,
retention and attendance, and also improve child nutritional levels.

The Mid-Day Meal (MDM) is an effective programme in the socio-economic context of India

for bringing children to school. It is an imperative pillar of support to the existing infrastructure
of education, which counters classroom hunger so that it does not impede children from coming
to school. Food security and education thus have the potential to uplift not only a family but the

entire society by breaking the vicious ‘poverty-hunger-illiteracy’ cycle.

Recognising the importance of the initiative, there has been an enhanced focus by the
Government on the Mid- Day Meal Scheme, with continued investment in MDMS and SSA.

In the past year, the education sector received a 17 % increase in budget allocation for the
Mid-Day Meal programme and currently 11 crore children across 12 lakh schools are benefitting
from the MDM programme. The Government has inferred that successful implementation of the
MDMS and SSA initiative can work as a panacea to a host of critical issues, which are also
listed under United Nations Millennium Development Goals, such as Eradication of Extreme
Poverty and Hunger and Achieving Universal Primary Education. This is the reason the
Government wants renewed community support and involvement, and more dedicated NGOs,

to improve the reach and impact of the MDM programme.

This is where The Akshaya Patra Foundation’s role becomes more evident. The advances

and developments in the MDM programme are testimony to the combined effort of the Central
Government and all the State Governments in conjunction with NGOs and community support.
The Akshaya Patra Foundation had deduced the connection between food and education and
had started serving mid-day meals in schools since 2000. Later, when the Mid-Day Meal
programme was mandated centrally by the Government of India in 2003, Akshaya Patra
partnered with the Government to serve cooked meals at all Government schools.

Working in association with the Government to tackle classroom hunger was a welcome

progression for the Foundation.
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This Public-Private Partnership with Akshaya Patra in implementing the Mid-Day Meal
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* Increasing school enrolment
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* Improving socialisation among castes

- \ + Addressing malnutrition
e O e
+ Women empowerment

Along with focussing on the primary Mid-Day Meal programme, Akshaya Patra has been able to
dedicate its resources towards disaster relief, feeding drought-hit families and children in special

schools etc.

The work of Akshaya Patra has been recognised by the National Steering-cum-Monitoring
Committee (NSMC) for Mid-Day Meal Programme. NSMC has accredited Akshaya Patra as

a part of the monitoring committee, and Chanchalapathi Dasa, Vice Chairman of The Akshaya
Patra Foundation, is one among the 13 nominated members to be part of this Committee.

As of March 2013, around 51% of funding (amounting to ¥ 40,668 lakhs) has been accounted for

by Central and State Government grants and subsidies, allowing us to focus on raising the rest.

The NP-NSPE guidelines have cited Akshaya Patra’s Centralised kitchen as a model
infrastructure for large scale production of mid-day meals. The success of this Public-Private
Partnership is being appreciated widely and is also being considered as a model partnership
worthy of adoption. The Foundation has also received global recognition by being ranked the 234
NGO among the Top 100 NGOs of the world, by The Global Journal.

In order to further increase the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery in this already
well thought out and constructive programme, Akshaya Patra has designed its Governance model

Stakeholder Satisfaction, Efficiency, Compliance and Awareness.

In précis, it predominantly surfaces that it is indeed very vital to transform food to be an enabler
of education. So, to achieve a society that reflects health, literacy and sustainability it is
important to support the children of today. Akshaya Patra thus will tread aggressively yet
cautiously to scale up this programme to keep the child, the most important stakeholder,

happy and hopeful by continuing to provide unlimited food for education’.

in a manner that will aid in achieving the objectives of its six focus areas - Quality, Sustainability,
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Mission

To reach out to 5 million children by 2020.

Vision
No child in India shall be deprived

of education because of hunger.

A successful Public-Private Partnership

The programme is conducted in-partnership with the Central

Government and various State Governments. They support us by

providing grain and cash subsidies to successfully run the Mid-Day

Meal Scheme. In addition, corporate houses and individual donors

also extend their generous support.
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Our Operation Model

Our Operation Model has been driven to optimum functioning by a chain of departments

In line with this philosophy, The Akshaya Patra Foundation continuously strives for excellence

coming together in a co-ordinated manner. Result: Excellence in Operations

through adoption of best governance practices.

HUMAN RESOURCE & MANAGEMENT

Infrastructure & Operations

Staff Details:

Resource

Communications

Gender ‘ Paid Part Time ‘ Paid Full Time ‘ Unpaid Volunteers

‘ Male 0 2571 974

\ Mobilisation
Human ‘

—Management

Resources

| Female | - @ 547 984
(e ERR <= = B - 5
Jotal 22 N 3118 1258

Finance &
1 Donor

Accounts
Care

REMUNERATION OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID STAFF MEMBERS —

Name Designation Remuneration earned in ¥
Shridhar Venkat Executive Director 4,322,435.00 i
Binali Suhandani Director — Resource Mobilisation 3,329,857.00 |
Venkatachalan B S General Manager — Human Resources 2,141,392.00 |
Somashekar Manjunath General Manager — Finance 2,090,821.00 |
Vinay N Kumar General Manager — Operations 1,632,432.00 |

Excellence tn Operations

* REMUNERATION OF THE LOWEST PAID STAFF MEMBERS:

The Governance Philosophy at Akshaya Patra refers to a set of laws, regulations and good

% 4,266 (as per the then Minimum Wages in the respective States or as per the Central

practices that enable an organisation to perform efficiently and ethically and create value for

Government Policy). The minimum wages are paid to the kitchen and distribution staff of the

all its stakeholders.

Foundation as per the prevalent Minimum Wages in the respective States or where not applicable,

as per the Central Government policy. Apart from this, the Foundation also adheres to various

At The Akshaya Patra Foundation, we are committed to the belief that the adoption of the best

other statutory laws such as the Employee State Insurance Act, 1948, Employees Provident Fund

governance practices will take us a long way. It’s also in us to not just aspire to be a truly

and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

world-class not-for-profit organisation, but also adhere to a governance model that’s world-class.

Average Salary- % 7,925; Median Salary- % 5,370

Our governance practices reflect the culture of the trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our

value system. The core philosophy rests on four basic tenets:

+ Board accountability to the Foundation and stakeholders

+ Equitable treatment to all stakeholders

+ Strategic guidance and effective monitoring by the Board

170

+ Transparency and timely disclosure
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DISTRIBUTION OF STAFF ACCORDING TO SALARY LEVELS

] Slab of gross salary (in )

plus benefits paid to staff Male Staff Female Staff

1 Less than 5,000 551 252 803

|| 5,001-10,000 1,657 232 1,889
10,001-25,000 264 35 299
95,001-50,000 64 14 78
50,001-1,00,000 20 13 33
Greater than 1,00,000 155 1 16
Total 2,571 547 3,118

Total Staff

TOTAL COST OF NATIONAL TRAVEL BY ALL PERSONNEL

Domestic Travel % in Lakhs
Air travel 56.00
Others 46.50
Total 102.50

TOTAL COST OF INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL BY ALL PERSONNEL

INCLUDING BOARD MEMBERS

Name of Person
1 Shridhar Venkat

1 Bharathi Ghanashyam

Somashekar S.M.

Rajeev Lochana Dasa

Total

Designation Amount in %
Executive Director 29,371
Head - Communications 17,039
General Manager - Finance 42,418
Unit President - Hubli 14,580
1,03,408

%
28%
16%
41%
14%
100%
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To The Stakeholders,

Your Foundation’s Trustees are pleased to

along with audited accounts under

Financial Performance

present the Annual Report of the 13th year of the Foundation,
Indian GAAP and IFRS for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2013.

Extract of

Income & Expenditure Account

For the year ended
31 March 2013

For the year ended
31 March 2012

Fiscal 2013 Vs. 2012

% (In Lakhs) % of Income

% (In Lakhs) % of Income

% Increase/ (Decrease)

Income from:

Donations 5,209.41 32.79% 5,191.57 38.10% 0.34%
Subsidies 10,365.65 65.24% 8,119.95 59.59% 27.66%
Others 313.11 1.97% 314.75 2.31% -0.52%
Total Income 15,888.17 100.00% 13,626.27 100.00% 16.60%
Expenditure towards:

Materials and utilities consumed 8,682.44 54.65% 6,839.80 50.20% 26.94%
Personnel cost 4,031.40 208 2,904.96 21.32% 38.78%
Other operating expenses 3,047.06 19.18% 2,281.26 16.74% 33.57%
Total Expenditure 15,760.90 99.20% 12,026.02 88.26% 31.06%
Operating Results 127.27 0.80% 1,600.25 11.74% -92.05%
Depreciation 1,586.42 9.98% 1,394.50 10.23% 13.76%
Net Operating Results (1,459.15) -9.18% 205.75 1.51% -809.19%

Extract of

Receipt & Payments Account

For the year ended
31 March 2013

For the year ended
31 March 2012

Fiscal 2013 Vs. 2012

% (In Lakhs) % of Receipts

% (In Lakhs) % of Receipts

Increase / (Decrease)

Opening Balance 3,767.02 2,262.27 1,504.75
Receipts from:

Donations 7,470.62 44.32% 6,817.61 47.99% 653.01
Subsidie: 9.077.34 53.85% 7.127.00 50.16% 1.950.34
Others 309.84 1.84% 263.02 1.85% 46.82
Total Receipts (A) 16,857.80 100.00% 14,207.63 100.00% 2,650.17
Payments towards:

Revenue Expenditure 13,932.19 82.65% 11,166.80 78.60% 2,765.39
Capital Expenditure 2,494.41 14.80% 1,506.12 10.60% 988.29
Others 75.48 0.45% 29.96 0.21% 45.52
Total Payments (B) 16,502.08 97.89% 12,702.88 89.41% 3.799.20
Excess of Receipts

over Payments (A-B) 355.72 2.11% 1,504.75 10.59%

Closing Balance 4,122.74 3,767.02 355.72
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Revenues

e recognised during the year 2012-13 has increased to

u .
The total reven 0% growth over the previous year.

¥ 15,888.17 lakhs, resulting in 16.6
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Chart 1: Revenue Analysis



This Y-0-Y growth in revenue by 16.60% is further analysed below:
Subsidies from Governments

The incremental revenue from the Governments during the year is ¥ 2,245.71 lakhs. This growth

of 28% is contributed by 17% increase in number of meals served over the previous year and the rest
due to increase in cash subsidy rates per meal. The cash subsidy rate per meal has increased
substantially in Gujarat, which is majorly contributing to the overall increase in subsidies from
Governments.

% in Lakhs
State-wise Subsidies (Cash & Grain)| 2012-13 2011-12 Incremental revenue
Karnataka 4,339.26 3,906.46 432.80
Gujarat 2,014.88 1,051.90 962.98
Rajasthan 989.11 878.59 110.52
Uttar Pradesh 881.21 836.57 44.64
Odisha 703.43 576.54 126.88
Andhra Pradesh 878.13 489.90 388.23
Assam 234.53 202.52 32.01
Chhattisgarh 166.04 177.47 (11.44)
New Delhi 159.07 - 159.07
Total Subsidies (Cash & Grain) 10,365.65 8,119.94 2,245.71

Table 1: Analysis of Subsidies (Cash & Grains)
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While the Karnataka Government continues to contribute significantly, the Gujarat Government has also
become a major contributor during the current year. In addition, the expansion of Anganwadi programme
_feeding in Andhra Pradesh has also contributed significantly to the Government Subsidies. In 2012-13, there
was a significant increase in the number of meals served in Gujarat, Odisha and Andhra Pradesh due to
addition of more schools under the MDM programme coverage and increase in Anganwadi feeding in Andhra
Pradesh and Gujarat.

Composition of Subsidies |

B KARNATAKA

Bl UTTAR PRADESH

B RAJASTHAN
B opIsHA
(8] GUJARAT
Ed ANDHRA PRADESH
fl CHHATTISGARH
[ assam
Eﬂ NEW DELHI
2012-13 19%
Chart 2: Composition of Subsidies Source: Income & Expenditure account
State-wise Subsidy (Cash & Grain) per meal Amount in
State-wise Subsidy per Meal 2012-13 2011-12
Karnataka 5.28 4.27
Uttar Pradesh 4.72 4.01
Rajasthan 4.78 3.79
Odisha 5.39 4.71
Gujarat 3.70 2.50
Andhra Pradesh 4.54 3.92
Chhattisgarh 5.13 441
Assam 4.54 3.70
New Delhi 4.41

Table 2: State-wise Subsidy per Meal

As can be observed from the above table, average subsidy per meal has increased in many states and significantly
in Gujarat, Rajasthan, Karnataka and Assam. The Foundation has immensely benefitted from the unstinted

patronage of Central and several State Governments in achieving the growth plans to a large extent. This support
and encouragement is enabling the Foundation to further accelerate the expansion of MDM programme to a larger

section of the society, thus helping in nation building.
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While the donation income recognised during the year is ¥ 5,209.41 lakhs, the actual receipts of donations

| 1s% 7,470.62 lakhs. The difference is mainly attributed to earmarked donations for capital expenditure for new

|l projects and for other programmes which will be largely utilised in the next year.

| While India contributed % 4,780 lakhs (previous year ¥ 4,586 lakhs), contributions from the USA have substantially

| increased to X 2,569 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1,713 lakhs) resulting in an increase of 50%.

The details of In Kind Donations are as follows: w

DONATIONS IN KIND

Rin Lakhs

®2012-13
®20711-12

L .
Seruvices

Fixed Assets Provi:

Chart 6: In Kind donations Source: Income & FExpenditure accoun




— 184

Other Incomes

Other income of the Foundation comprises largely of income generated from interest, sale of scrap,
sale of assets, etc. amounting to ¥ 313.11 lakhs during the year (previous year ¥ 314.75 lakhs).

Revenue Expenditure

The total revenue expenditure for the year 2012-13 was ¥ 17,347.32 lakhs as compared to

% 13,420.52 lakhs

Analysis of Reve
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Chart 7: Analysis of Revenue expenditure
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Chart 8: State-wise Revenue expenditure

Source: Income & Expenditure account
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Chart 9: Year-on-Year Revex break up
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Chart 10: Programme-wise expenditure

Source: Income & Expenditure account

Compared to the previous year, there was an increase of 17% in the overall meals served from 2,125 lakhs
to 2,476 lakhs.

During the year, materials and utilities consumed increased by 27% over the previous year with an
increase of ¥ 1,842.64 lakhs.

The consumption of provisions and groceries has increased by 26% over the previous year. The increase in
material consumption is due to increase in volume and prices of commodities. The effect of increase in
average prices of Dhal & Pulses over the previous year is 34%. However, some of the sourcing initiatives in
procurement of Spices & Condiments have contributed to marginal reduction in costs.

The increase in fuel costs by 30% is majorly attributed to a steep increase in Vehicle fuel & LPG fuel costs
and also an increase in logistical needs due to the expansion of programme coverage.

The increase in Power, Lighting & Water costs by 28% is attributable to the commencement of operations
in Delhi & Surat and a substantial volume increase in Hyderabad.

During the year, the personnel cost has increased by 39%. This is explained as follows:

1) 10% increase due to implementation of Minimum Wages Act
2) 8% due to annual increment and correction for long tenure workmen
3) 5% increase due to staff welfare
4) 10% increase due to head count, primarily in Surat, Delhi & Hyderabad
5) 6% increase due to increase in head count at HO due to new recruits and strengthening of
new departments such as Projects & Infrastructure, Central Strategic Sourcing and Process Excellence

On functional classification of costs, it can be noted that the Foundation has spent 84% mainly towards direct
feeding programmes. (Chart 9 — YoY cost break up)

It can be noted from Chart 10 that 90% of the total expenditure is incurred on the Mid-day Meal feeding
programme, 9% is spent on other feeding programmes and 1% of the total cost is incurred on other
programmes. Volumes in other feeding programmes increased significantly in Andhra Pradesh and Gujarat
due to the Anganwadi feeding programme.

During the year, the Foundation has incurred ¥ 2,703.97 lakhs towards increasing the asset base.
The following table illustrates the branch-wise capital expenditure incurred during the year:

Capital Expenditure % in Lakhs

Branch Name Capital Expenditure
Bhubaneswar 753.43
Surat 460.37
Ahmedabad 401.95
Rourkela 133.35
Head Office 118.80
Jaipur 102.46
Hyderabad 92.04
Other Locations 641.57
Total 2,703.97

Table 3: State-wise CAPEX

During the year, civil construction projects for new kitchens started in Bhubaneswar, Surat, Rourkela
and Ahmedabad covering about 65 % of the total capital expenditure for the year.

The Foundation set up a temporary kitchen in Surat with an installed capacity to feed about
1,50,000 children per day commenced its operations in June 2012.

The following table highlights the category-wise capital expenditure incurred for the new kitchen projects:

% in Lakhs
Branch Name Bhubaneswar Surat Ahmedabad Rourkela Total
Civil works & buildings 495.38 302.93 401.95 25.31 1,225.57
Kitchen & related equipment 159.08 5.08 272.68
Vehicles 77.34 3.50 - 102.06 182.90
Distribution vessels 17.09 38.61 - - 55.71
Others 4.53 6.79 - 0.91 12.23
Total 753.43 460.37 401.95 133.35 1,749.10
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In the Head Office, the Foundation has invested I 22.93 lakhs on civil works on the leased premises;

% 34.22 lakhs on computer hardware; ¥ 35.60 lakhs on computer software and ¥ 12.31 lakhs on other vehicles.
X 86.62 lakhs and ¥ 87.02 lakhs have been invested in Hyderabad and Jaipur respectively, and mostly on
distribution vessels, vehicles, kitchen and related equipment.

In New Delhi, the Foundation commenced mid-day meal feeding in July 2012 with an enrolment of 39,000
children. Due to unavoidable circumstances, the mid-day meal operations had to be discontinued in
December 2012.

Overall, the Foundation has been able to continue to substantially invest in asset base and develop

infrastructure needed to support the ambitious growth plans in the coming years. These investments were
largely possible due to the unstinted support from the Governments and generous donors.

Cash and Bank Balances:

The Foundation had total Cash and Bank balances of ¥ 4,122.74 lakhs as on 31st March 2013 including
% 647.39 lakhs in Fixed Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months. ¥ 647.39 lakhs of fixed
deposits have been disclosed in the financial statements under ‘Other non-current assets’ (Sch 2.11).

There is a nominal increase of 9% in the overall cash and bank balances over the previous year. Of the total

balances, % 2,709.37 lakhs was placed in fixed deposits. 64% of the above deposits are earmarked funds for

ongoing and future projects / programmes.

Reference is drawn to Schedule 2.29 of the Financial Statements about the earmarked funds of the
Foundation. This consists of funds contributed by donors to the upcoming projects of the Foundation and
expansion of the existing facilities in the Foundation, which are in various stages of completion. Considering
the duration of the projects, the funds so received are earmarked for the projects and are parked in separate
Fixed Deposits which cannot be used for any purpose other than those intended by the donors. The total of
such earmarked funds amounts to ¥ 1,729.41 lakhs as on 31st March, 2013.

Receivables:

The total amount of receivables from the Government as on 31st March, 2013 is ¥ 1,536.10 lakhs including
unclaimed cash subsidy of ¥ 965.23 lakhs. The unclaimed cash subsidy from the Government pertains to cash
subsidy against meals served during March 2013 which has been submitted in April 2013. The cash subsidy
income from Government and government bodies increased by 29% over the previous year while the
receivables increased substantially by 22%. 63% of the total receivables pertain to claim for March 2013.

Receivables outstanding for more than 90 days is ¥ 306.31 lakhs, out of which ¥ 74.43 lakhs is outstanding for
more than 365 days which is considered as doubtful and provided for. The Foundation is rigorously pursuing
the various State Governments to collect the overdue receivables and is confident of receiving the

same next year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management discussion and analysis report analysing the current circumstances and assessing the future plans
of the organisation are presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual report.

Awards and Accolades
e -

During the year the Foundation had received recognition from various quarters. These have been separately covered
in a section of the Annual Report.

Transparency
G DCUCLCYN

The continuous and rigorous focus on transparency has once again resulted in accolades and recognitions as in

the previous years. The organisation’s value systems have received their due recognition by receiving the ICAI Gold
Shield Award for ‘Excellence in Financial Reporting’ for the last four consecutive years and the CSO Partners Award
for the Best Annual Report in the NGO category for three years. We have also been recognised internationally
through the LACP (League of American Communications Professionals) Vision Award for the last two consecutive
years and South Asian Federation of Accountants (SAFA) Best Presented Accounts Award for three years
consecutively.

The Foundation continues to be at the forefront in adopting newer standards of accounting and financial reporting
to enhance the quality of presentations. This year, we have adopted the Revised Schedule VI format as per
Companies Act 1956 for the presentation of Financial Statements, to the extent applicable to the Foundation.

The IFRS reporting, which was adopted in 2008-09, has contributed substantially in building confidence amongst
the stakeholders of the Foundation.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report

Each branch of the organisation has a branch auditor who reports to the Management on a periodical basis;

these reports are in turn reviewed by the audit committee through the audit department of the Foundation.

M/s B S R & Co, Chartered Accountants, Registration No. 101248W, are the statutory auditors of the Foundation
and they have audited the financial statements that have been attached in the Annual Report and have expressed
an unqualified report which does not call for any further comments.

M/s KPMG are the Independent auditors of the Foundation for the financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards. They have audited the said financial statements and have
expressed an unqualified report which does not call for any further comments.

Trust Governance

Governance Philosophy

Trust governance refers to a set of laws, regulations and good practices that enable an organisation to perform
efficiently and ethically and create value for all its stakeholders.

We, at The Akshaya Patra Foundation, are committed to the adoption of best governance practices and its
adherence in the true spirit, at all times. It is our firm belief that as we move closer towards our set aspirations
of becoming a world class NGO, we also adhere to the highest standards of governance, for an NGO its own zeal
to grow is its competitor.

Our governance practices are self-driven, reflecting the culture of the trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our
value system and reflected in our strategic growth process.

Our governance philosophy rests on these four basic tenets:
* Board accountability to the Foundation and stakeholders
* Equitable treatment to all stakeholders

* Strategic guidance and effective monitoring by the Board
*Transparency and timely disclosure

In line with this philosophy, Akshaya Patra Foundation continuously strives for excellence through adoption
of best governance practices, the details of which for the year ended 31st March, 2013 are as follows:
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Board Composition & Related Information

Other Information Regarding the Board:

The Foundation’s Board of Trustees plays a primary role in ensuring good governance
and functioning of the Foundation. The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and
accountability are clearly defined.

The agenda and notes on the Agenda are generally circulated to the Trustees ahead of

BOARD OF TRUSTEES each mee.ting of tbe Board of Trustees. Where it is not practical to attach or send.the
relevant information as a part of agenda papers, the same are tabled at the meeting and

The Foundation’s Board presently comprises eight Trustees, all having considerable experience the presentations are made to the Board. The Members of the Board have complete

in their respective fields. freedom to express their opinion and the decisions are taken after detailed discussions.

The Board meets regularly and reviews the operations of the Foundation. The Foundation
— follows the regular process of submitting Monthly Financials to the Board of Trustees,
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD updating them on the performance of the Foundation and other important matters.
The Board also reviews the same and advises the management from time to time with
s their feedback / inputs. Apart from the above, additional Board Meetings are convened by
giving appropriate notice to address the specific needs of the Foundation. The members
do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation.

Name Age | Sex |Position Occupation Area of Meetings
On Board Competency attended - g . A X
- - — The Board of Trustees met four times during the year. The details of Board Meetings held during
Madhu Pandit Dasa 56 |Male |Chairman |Missionary Volunteer, Management / Governance 4

The Akshaya Patra Foundation FY 2012-13 are as under:

Chanchalapathi Dasa 49 |Male |Vice Missionary Volunteer, Management 4
Chairman |The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Chitranga Chaitanya Dasa 47 |Male |Programme|Missionary Volunteer, Operations 4
Wiy |1t Aleliepe i Numikiim Sr. No. | Date of Board Meeting City No. of Trustees Present
T.V. Mohandas Pai 54 |Male |Trustee Chairman, Finance/HR/Governance 4 1 17th Jun 2012 Bangalore 6
Manipal Global Education Services
- - 2 11th Nov 2012 Bangalore 6
Abhay Jain 53 |Male |Trustee Advisor,
Group Corporate Affairs of 3 20th Jan 2013 Bangalore 7
Manipal Education & Medical Group Government Relations 4 4 31st Mar 2013 Bangalore 7
Ramdas Kamath 51 |Male |Trustee |Senior Vice President Finance /Infrastructure 2

Head of Infrastructure, Commercial, Facilities,
Administration and Security, Member-Executive Table 5: Particulars of Board meetings held
Council, Infosys Limited

V. Balakrishnan 48 |Male |Trustee Member of Board, Infosys Limited,
Head - Infosys BPO, Finacle & India
Business Unit and Chairman of Infosys

Lodestone Finance /Governance 1
Raj Kondur 41 |Male |Trustee Co-Founder and Chairman of Nirvana
Business Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Management 3

Table 4: Composition of the Board
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Profile of the Board Members
Madhu Pandit Dasa:

Madhu Pandit Dasa (legal name Madhusudan S.) was born in Trivandrum, India
He completed his B.Tech in Civil Engineering from IIT-Mumbai in the year 1980.
While he was doing his M.Tech course in IIT-Mumbai in 1981, he dedicated himself
to the service of humanity by becoming a full-time member of ISKCON.

In 1994, he initiated an integrated social development project for the benefit of the rural
people of Mysore and Mandya districts. A model, prototype organic farm based on natural
and earth-friendly farming methods along with an internationally accredited farmer-training
centre has been setup in the 110-acre land on the banks of river Kaveri in Srirangapatam.

He designed the first centralised and mechanised kitchen of Akshaya Patra, to provide
mid-day meals to underprivileged children in the Government schools of Bangalore Rural
District during July 2000.

Chanchalapathi Dasa:

Chanchalapathi Dasa (legal name S. Chandrashekar), was born in Bangalore, India. While
an undergraduate student in PSG College of Technology, Coimbatore, he became interested
in the message and mission of Srila Prabhupada, the founder-acharya of ISKCON. Later he
joined the Indian Institute of Science, Bangalore for the Masters programme in Electrical
Communication Engineering. In 1984 he became a full-time dedicated member of ISKCON,
Bangalore and soon became the Vice President. He has been involved in the implementation
of the various programmes of ISKCON, Bangalore and presently serves as the

Vice Chairman of The Akshaya Patra Foundation.

Chitranga Chaitanya Dasa:

Chitranga Chaitanya Dasa (legal name V. V. Chandrasekharan), was born in Ernakulam,
India. He came in touch with the books of Srila Prabhupada, the founder-acharya of
ISKCON, while studying for his B. Tech at the College of Engg. Trivandrum. He later
worked briefly in a chemical industry in Mumbai as a design engineer. In 1988 he became a
full-time dedicated member of ISKCON at Mumbai. He served in ISKCON at Mayapur and
Coimbatore till 1993 and moved over to ISKCON, Bangalore. After the inception of the
Akshaya Patra Foundation, he became involved as the Programme Director, bringing his
experience of the catering and fund-raising to the mid-day meal programme.

T.V. Mohandas Pai:

T. V. Mohandas Pai is currently Chairman of Manipal Global Education Services. He was the
former Director, Human Resources at Infosys Technologies and also the former head of Infosys
Leadership Institute. He was also the Ex-chairman of the BPO arm of Infosys and served as a
director on the boards of Infosys China and Infosys Public Services, Inc. He joined Infosys

in 1994 and served as the Chief Financial Officer from 1994 to 2006. He serves as a member
of several committees constituted by the Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India and
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). He is also a trustee of the International
Accounting Standards Committee Foundation, the body that oversees the International
Accounting Standards Board. He also works with the Central and State Governments of India

in the field of education, IT and business.

Mohandas Pai has won the Best CFO in India award from Finance Asia in 2002 and was
named as Best Chief Financial Officer in India in the Best Managed Companies poll conducted
by Asia Money in 2004. He received a B.Com. degree from St. Joseph's College of Commerce,
Bangalore and a L.L.B. from Bangalore University. He is a Fellow Chartered Accountant (FCA).

Mohandas Pai has been serving as a trustee of the Akshaya Patra Foundation since its
inception. He is also a donor, apart from being strategic visionary of the Foundation.

V. Balakrishnan:

V. Balakrishnan is a Member of the Board of Infosys. He has more than 22 years of experience
in leadership positions in the finance domain. Mr. Balakrishnan is currently the Chairman of
Infosys Lodestone, the management consulting arm of Infosys, as well as Head of Infosys BPO,
Finacle and the India Business Unit.

Balakrishnan has received several accolades in the financial services industry. He was voted
the Best CFO by Finance Asia in its Asia’s Best Companies Poll for 2008, 2009 and 2011.

He won the CNBC TV 18 ‘Best performing CFO’ award for IT and ITES sector for 2008 and
2009 and he also won the Best CFO (Information Technology, Media, Communication and
Entertainment) award from the ICAI (The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India)

for 2008.

Balakrishnan has a bachelor’s degree from the University of Madras. He is an Associate
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and the Institute of Cost & Works Accountants of India.

He joined the Akshaya Patra Board of Trustees in June 2006. He presently also serves as
the Chairman of the Akshaya Patra Audit Committee.
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Ramdas U Kamath:

Ramdas Kamath, Senior Vice President, Head of Infrastructure, Commercial, Facilities,
Administration and Security, Member-Executive Council, Infosys Limited plays a vital role
in the management of Infosys’ facilities and administration worldwide. From managing the
company’s infrastructural growth to ensuring physical security across campuses, he has been
instrumental in ensuring that Infosys’ growth as a global IT leader has been reflected across
the locations and facilities from which it operates. He holds a BBM degree and is also

a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Ramdas Kamath has been
serving as a trustee of the Foundation since its founding days. He presently also serves

as a member of The Akshaya Patra Audit Committee.

Abhay Jain:

Born in Rajasthan, India, Abhay Jain completed his graduation in Science from St. Joseph’s
College and his Bachelor of Law degree from Bangalore University. He then went on to do his
PG Diploma in Management. He is one of the largest distributors for polymers in South India.
He has also served as the Vice President in the Birla Group of Companies. Presently,

he is the Advisor, Group Corporate Affairs of Manipal Education and Medical Group. He is also
currently the Member of the Board of Jain University, Bangalore.

He has been serving as a trustee of the Foundation since its inception. He brings in his
important strength of networking to the service of the Foundation.

Raj Kondur:

Raj P. Kondur is a Co-Founder and Chairman of Nirvana Business Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
Previously, he was the Director and a Member of the Board of Directors at Ascent Capital
Advisors. Kondur was a Co-Founder and Director of ChrysCapital which he left in 2002. He
worked in the Mergers & Acquisitions Group at Morgan Stanley, initiating and executing
transactions for private equity clients. Kondur also invested capital for Morgan Stanley's
Princes Gate Fund. He was a Management Consultant at A.T. Kearney where he worked on
projects in high technology, outsourcing services, and telecommunications. He served as
Analyst of A.T. Kearney, Inc. Kondur serves as Independent Trustee of The Akshaya Patra
Foundation. He served as Director of Ascent Capital Advisors and ChrysCapital. Kondur
received an M.B.A. from Harvard University and a B.B.A. in Finance and Accounting from
Georgia State University.

He has been engaged with The Akshaya Patra Foundation since April 2002. He is also a
member of Akshaya Patra Audit Committee.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(A) Composition of Audit Committee
Your Foundation has an Audit Committee at the Board level, which acts as a link between the
management, the statutory and branch auditors and the Board of Trustees, and oversees the
financial reporting process.
The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

1. V. Balakrishnan, Chairman

2. Ramdas Kamath, Member

3. Raj Kondur, Member
Statutory Auditors, Finance Head and certain senior key officers of the Foundation are
permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. The branch auditors of the Foundation are
also invited to the Audit Committee Meetings on a need basis.

(B) Meetings of Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met three times to deliberate on various matters
and the details of the composition, attendance by the Committee members are as follows:

Name Of Member No. Of Board Meetings

Held | Attended
V. Balakrishnan 4 3
Ramdas Kamath 4 4
Raj Kondur 4 4

Table 6: Particulars of Audit Committee meetings held

Committee members do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation.

(C) Charter of Audit Committee

The Foundation first published the Charter of Audit Committee in 2009-10. Any changes
in the Charter will be made part of the Annual Report. There were no changes in Audit
Committee charter during the year, hence the charter as published in the Annual Report
2011-12 is listed as follows:
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1.Preface

The Audit Committee’s role shall flow directly from the Board of Trustees’ function of
overseeing trust governance, which holds the Management accountable to the Board and
the Board accountable to the stakeholders. Acting as a catalyst in helping the Foundation
achieve its objectives, the Audit Committee’s review function will include the financial
reporting process, the system of internal control, the audit process and the Foundation’s
process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct.
The audit committee should also ensure accurate, timely and proper disclosures and the
transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

2. Authority

2.1. To investigate any activity within its charter/terms of reference

2.2. To seek information from any employee or trustee

2.3. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice from time to time

2.4. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered necessary
2.5. To have full access to information contained in the records of the Foundation

3. Composition

3.1. The committee shall comprise a minimum of three members, all of whom should be
independent trustees. All members of the Audit Committee shall be financially literate and
at least one member shall have accounting or related financial management expertise.

3.2. They should be diligent, knowledgeable, dedicated, interested in the job and willing to
devote a substantial amount of time and energy to the responsibilities of the committee,
in addition to Board of Trustees responsibilities.

3.3. The members of the committee shall be elected by the Board of Trustees and shall
continue until their successors are duly elected.

3.4. The duties and responsibilities of a member are in addition to those applicable to a
member of the Board of Trustees.

3.5. In recognition of the time factor associated with the service and with a view to bringing in
fresh insight, the committee may consider limiting the term of the audit committee service,
by automatic rotation or by other means.

3.6. One of the members shall be elected as the Chairperson, either by the full Board of
Trustees or by the members themselves, by majority vote.

4. Meetings

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

The committee shall meet periodically, but at least four times a year and not more than
four months shall elapse between two successive meetings.

One meeting shall be held before the annual accounts and quarterly/ half yearly accounts
are presented to the Board.

The quorum shall be either two members or one-third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher.

The Chairman or the Vice-Chairman, The Finance Controller and a Representative of
the External Auditor should be invited to be present as invitees for the meetings of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee may invite such executives, branch auditors and branch
operations managers as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the
Committee. The Audit committee may also on occasions meet without the presence of any
executive of the Foundation.

The committee may meet separately with the Vice Chairman and the Finance Controller
of the Organisation at such times as are appropriate to review the financial affairs of the
Foundation. The audit committee will meet separately with the independent auditors and
branch auditors of the Organisation, at such times as it deems appropriate (but not less
than quarterly) to fulfill the responsibilities of the audit committee under this charter.

Meeting agenda will be prepared and provided in advance to members, along with
appropriate briefing materials.

Minutes of every meeting will be maintained.

5. Responsibilities

The committee shall carry out the following responsibilities:

5.1.
5.2.
5.3.
5.4.
5.5.
5.6.
5.7.
5.8.
5.9.

Financial Reporting Process

System of Risk Management

System of Internal Control

Branch Audit Process

External Audit of the Financial Statements

Organisation’s Processes for Monitoring Compliance

Special Investigations and Whistleblower Mechanism

Audit Committee Management and Reporting Responsibilities
Related Party Transactions

5.10 Others
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5.1. Financial Reporting Process

5.2.

5.1.1. Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or
unusual transactions and highly judgmental areas, and recent professional and
regulatory pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.

5.1.2. Review with management, the external auditors, and the branch auditors
the results of the audit, including any difficulties encountered.

5.1.3. Review all significant adjustments proposed by the external financial statement
auditor and by the branch auditor.

5.1.4. Review all significant suggestions for improved financial reporting made by the
external financial statement auditor and by the branch auditor.

5.1.5. Review with the General Counsel the status of legal matters that may have an effect
on the financial statements.

5.1.6. Review the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval,
and consider whether they are complete, consistent with information known to
committee members, and reflect appropriate accounting principles. Review should
be done with specific reference to:

5.1.6.1.Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.
5.1.6.2.Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment

by management.
5.1.6.3.Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
5.1.6.4.Compliance with any legal requirements relating to financial statements.
5.1.6.5.Disclosure of any related party transactions.
5.1.6.6.Qualifications in the draft audit report

5.1.7. Review other sections of the annual report and related regulatory filings before release
and consider the accuracy and completeness of the information.

5.1.8. Review with management and the external auditors all matters required to be
communicated to the committee under generally accepted auditing Standards.

5.1.9. Understand how management develops interim financial information, and the nature
and extent of internal and external auditor involvement.

5.1.10. Review interim financial reports with management and the external auditors before
filing with regulators/publishing them, and consider whether they are complete and
consistent with the information known to committee members.

5.1.11. Review the statement of management responsibility for and the assessment of the
effectiveness of the internal control structure and procedures of the organisation for
financial reporting. Review the attestation on this management assertion by the
financial statement auditor as part of the financial statement audit engagement.

System of Risk Management

5.2.1. Ensure that the Foundation has a comprehensive policy on risk management.
5.2.2. Consider the effectiveness of the Foundation's risk management system,
including risks of information technology systems.

5.2.3. Consider the risks of business relationships with significant vendors and consultants.

5.2.4. Reviews management’s reports on management’s self-assessment of risks and
the mitigations of these risks.

5.2.5. Understand the scope of branch auditor’s and external auditor’s review of risk
management over financial reporting.

5.3.

5.4.

5.2.6. Understand the scope of the branch auditor’s review of risk management over all other
processes, and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together
with management's responses.

5.2.7. Understand the scope of any other external auditor’s or consultant’s review of
risk management.

5.2.8. Hire outside experts and consultants in risk management as necessary.

System of Internal Control

5.3.1. Ensure that the Foundation has a comprehensive policy on internal control and
compliance.

5.3.2. Review periodically the policy on ethics, code of conduct and fraud policy.

5.3.3. Consider the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control system, including
Information Technology security and control.

5.3.4. Consider any internal controls required because of business relationships with
significant vendors and consultants.

5.3.5. Understand the scope of branch auditor’s and external auditor’s review of internal
control over financial reporting, and obtain reports on significant findings and
recommendations, together with management's responses.

5.8.6. Understand the scope of the branch auditor’s review of internal control over all other
processes, and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together
with management's responses.

5.3.7. Review the role of the branch auditor’s involvement in the Trust governance process,
including trust governance documentation and training.

5.3.8. Ensure that contracts with external service providers contain appropriate
record-keeping and audit language.

5.3.9. Direct employees to cooperate with the committee's requests, or the requests of
internal or external parties working for the audit committee. These parties include
the internal auditors, all external auditors, consultants, investigators and any other
specialists working for the audit committee.

Branch Audit Process

5.4.1. Assure and maintain, through the organisational structure of the organisation and by
other means, the independence of the branch audit process.

5.4.2. Ensure that branch auditors have access to all documents, information and systems
in the organisation.

5.4.3. Receive and review all branch audit reports and management letters.

5.4.4. Review the responsiveness and timeliness of management’s follow-up activities
pertaining to any reported findings and recommendations.

5.4.5. Discussion with branch auditors with respect to the coverage and frequency of branch
audits as per the annual audit plan, nature of significant findings and follow up thereof.

5.4.6. Receive periodic notices of advisory and consulting activities by branch auditors.
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5.5.

5.5.1.

5.5.4.
5.5.5.

5.5.10.

5.5.11.

5.5.12.

External Audit of the Financial Statements

5.7.

Review the external auditor’s proposed audit scope and approach, including coordination
of audit effort with internal audit.

Review the performance of the external financial statement audit firm, and exercise final
approval on the request for proposal, and the appointment, retention or discharge of

the audit firm. Obtain input from management and other parties as appropriate.

Define the services that the external financial statement auditor is allowed to perform
and the services that are prohibited.

Pre-approve all services to be performed by the external financial statement auditor.
Review the independence of the external financial statement audit firm by obtaining
statements from the auditors on relationships between the audit firm and the
Foundation, including any non-audit services, and discussing these relationships with
the audit firm. Obtain from management a listing of all services provided by the
external audit firm. Obtain information from the Chief Audit Executive and other
sources as necessary.

Review and approve the audited financial statements, associated management letter,
attestation on the effectiveness of the internal control structure and procedures for
financial reporting, other required auditor communications, and all other auditor reports
and communications relating to the financial statements.

Review and approve all other reports and communications made by the external financial
statement auditor.

Review the responsiveness and timeliness of management’s follow-up activities
pertaining to any reported findings and recommendations.

On a regular basis, meet separately with the external financial statement audit firm to
discuss any matters that the committee or auditors believe should be discussed privately.
Provide guidelines and mechanisms so that no member of the audit committee or
organisation staff shall improperly influence the auditors or the firm engaged to perform
audit services.

Ensure production of a report of all costs of and payments to the external financial
statement auditor. The listing should separately disclose the costs of the financial
statement audit, other attest projects, agreed-upon-procedures and any non-audit
services provided.

Obtain and review a report by the independent auditor describing the firm's internal
quality-control procedures; any material issues raised by the most recent internal
quality-control review, or peer review, of the firm and assess the auditor's independence;

5.8.

5.9.

5.6. Organisation’s Processes for Monitoring Compliance

5.6.1.

Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and
regulations and the results of management's investigation and follow-up (including
disciplinary action) of any instances of noncompliance.

Review the findings of any examinations by regulatory agencies, and any auditor
observations, including investigations of misconduct and fraud.

Review the process for communicating to all affected parties the ethics policy, code of
conduct and fraud policy to Foundation personnel, and for monitoring compliance
therewith.

Obtain regular updates from management and Foundation legal counsel regarding
compliance matters.

Monitor changes and proposed changes in laws, regulations and rules affecting

the Foundation.

Special Investigations and Whistleblower Mechanism

5.7.1.
5.7.2.

Institute and oversee special investigations, as needed.

Provide an appropriate confidential mechanism for whistleblowers to provide
information on potentially fraudulent financial reporting or breaches of internal control,
to the audit committee.

Audit Committee Management and Reporting Responsibilities

5.8.1. Regularly report to the Board of Trustees about all committee activities, issues, and
related recommendations.

5.8.2. Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the Board of Trustees,
and report to the Board.

5.8.3. Provide an open avenue of communication between branch audit, the external financial
statement auditors, other external auditors, management and the Board of Trustees.

5.8.4. Review any other reports that the organisation issues that relates to audit committee
responsibilities.

5.8.5. The committee charter should be published in the Annual Report once every three years
and also whenever any significant amendment is made to the charter.

5.8.6. Confirm annually that all responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried out.
Report annually to the Board and beneficiaries, describing the committee's composition,
responsibilities and how they were discharged, and any other information required by
rule, including approval of non-audit services.

5.8.7. Evaluate the committee's and individual member’s performance on a regular basis,
and report to the Board.

5.8.8. Review and assess the adequacy of the committee charter annually, requesting Board

approval for proposed changes, and ensure appropriate disclosure as may be required by
law or regulation.

Related Party Transactions

5.9.1. Review and approve all related party transactions in the Foundation.

5.9.2. A statement of all transactions with related parties, including their basis shall be
placed before the Committee for formal approval / ratification with explanations where
there are interested transactions.

Details of individual material transactions with related parties which are not in the
normal course of business or are not on an arm’s length basis shall be placed before the
Committee, together with the Management’s responses.



5.10.

Others

5.10.1. Consider and, if deemed fit, pre-approve all permitted non-auditing services to be
provided by the independent auditor to the Organisation. For the purpose of this
clause, “non-auditing services” shall mean any professional services provided to the
Organisation by the independent auditor, other than those provided to the
Organisation in connection with an audit or a review of the financial statements of the
Organisation and includes (but not limited to):

a) Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records of financial
statements of the Organisation

b) Financial information system design and implementation

c) Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions, or contribution-in-kind reports

d) Actuarial services

e) Internal / Branch audit outsourcing services

f) Management functions or human resources

g) Broker or dealer, investment advisor, or investment banking services

h) Legal services and expert services unrelated to the audit

i) Any other service that the Board of Trustees determines impermissible

Delegation of authority

The Committee may sub-delegate any or all of its powers and authority as it thinks fit,
including, without limitation, the establishment of sub-committees from each party to analyse
particular issues or themes and to report back to the Committee.

The committee may delegate to one or more designated members of the committee the
authority to pre-approve audit and permissible non-audit services, provided such pre-approval
decision is presented to the full audit committee at its scheduled meetings.

I1. DISCLOSURES

(A) Basis of related party transactions:

The Foundation places all the relevant details before the Audit Committee periodically.
Considering the nature of the organisation, as a Foundation, it has specifically identified the
related parties which are trusts or societies having one or more common trustees.

A comprehensive list of related parties and the transactions held with them forms part of the
Note No. 2.25 (a) of Schedule 2 - Notes to the Accounts under Indian GAAP. These transactions
are not likely to have any conflict with the interests of the Foundation at large and have been
valued at arm’s length.

(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

In the absence of any authoritative, established accounting principles for the specialised
aspects related to charitable trusts that do not carry out any commercial activity, the
Foundation has prepared the financial statements in accordance to the significant accounting
policies described in Note 1.2 to Schedule 1 to the Financial statements prepared under the
Indian GAAP.

(D)

(E)

However the Financial statements prepared by the Foundation under the IFRS are prepared

in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, except for such modifications as have been considered
appropriate to reflect the objectives of the Foundation i.e., carrying out charitable activities with
effective use of resources rather than making profits and maximisation of members’ wealth.

(C) Trustees’ Responsibility:
Your Trustees, based on the representations from the Operating Management, confirm that:

a. In the preparation of annual accounts, accounting policies described in Note 1.2 to
Schedule 1 to the Financial statements prepared under the Indian GAAP have been followed
and there are no material departures;

b. They have, in selection of the accounting policies, consulted the statutory auditors and
applied these policies consistently, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Foundation as at
31st March 2013 and of the Income and Expenditure of the Foundation for the year ended
31st March, 2013;

c. They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Foundation
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

Remuneration of Trustees:

The trustees of the Foundation declare that they have not received any remuneration
from the Foundation for the year 2012-13. They have not received any sitting fees from
the Foundation for the Board meetings and Audit Committee meetings attended by them
during the year. The total amount spent for travel and other expenses, reimbursements
which are measured and valued at arm’s length are indicated in the table below:

Amount inX

SI. No Trustee Name ?;’;:Z?tic ITr;taeJeriational E&t(ﬂnt

1 Madhu Pandit Dasa 20,217 - 20,217
2 Chanchalapathi Dasa 1,82,484 - 1,82,484
3 Chitranga Chaitanya Dasa 46,458 - 46,458
4 T.V. Mohandas Pai 3,000 - 3,000
5 Abhay Jain 32,993 - 32,993

Totals 2,85,152 - 2,85,152

Management:

i. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

ii. No material transaction has been entered into by the Foundation with the Trustees or the
Management, their relatives etc. that may have a potential conflict with the interest
of the Foundation.
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
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Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Trustees of The Akshaya Patra Foundation

We have audited the attached balance sheet of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (“the Trust’) as at
31 March 2013 and the income and expenditure account of the Trust for the year then ended,
annexed lherclo These financial statements are the responsibility of the Trust’s management.
OQur responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these fi ial based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material mi An audit includ

on a lest basis, evidence supporting the and discl in the fi ial An
audit also includes assessing the accounting prmcuples used and sugmf'cant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fi p ion. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that;

(a) we have obtained all the i ion and exp which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Trust so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

(c)  the balance sheet and the income and expenditure account dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) as there are presently no authoritatively blished ing principles for the
specialised aspects related to charitable trusts not having any commercial activity,
these statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies referred to in
the Mote 1.2 1o the financial statements. On this basis, in our opinion and to the best of
our information, and ding to the explanations given to us, the said accounts give
atrue and fair view:

(i in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Trust as al
31 March 2013; and

(i) in the case of the income and expenditure account, of the excess of
expenditure over income for the year ended on that date,

JorBSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 10)248W

AT

Natrajh Ramakrishna
Parner
Membership No. 32815

Bangalore

28 July 2013
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Balance Sheet as at

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
FUNDS
Trust fund receipts
Excess of income over expenditure
Designated Funds

LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term provisions
Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

ASSETS

N 1 assels

Fixed asscts

- Tangibke assets

- Intangible asscts

- Capital work in progress

Long-term loans and advances
Other non-curment assets

Current assels
Inventorics
Cash and bank balances
Cash subsidy receivables from Government
Unclaimed cash subsidy from G
Short term loan and advances
Other current assets

Significant accounting policies & Notes on accounts
As per our report altached

Jor BSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration z' 101248W :

Natrajh Rﬂmlkﬂsll
Pariner
Membership No. 32815
Place:

Date : 28th July 2013

Rz in fakhis

Note 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

21 7,752.96 7.605.88

22 (1,074.22) 38493

23 3.823.59 1.441.58

10,502.33 943239

24 56,76 4284
25 3.58 -

6034 42384

26 1,066.46 417.99

27 1,032.39 822,14

28 104.44 71.56

2,203.29 1,311.69

12,765.96 10,786.92

29 4,633.99 4,796.87
29 72.18 94.56

1,173.42 194.61

5,879.59 5,086.04
2.10 60251 208.68
n 647.39 601.40

1,249.90 £10.08
212 469.51 338.48
213 347535 3,165.62
214 496.44 455.16
2135 96323 75948
216 109.18 96.54
217 120.76 75.52

563647 4,890.80

12,765.96 10,786.92
1&2

Sfor and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of
‘The Akshaya Patra Foundation

e

y . Redowd ra%wx:«
Madhy Pandit Dasa V Balakrishnan
Chais Trustee

Place:
Date : 28th July 2013
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Income and expenditure account for the period ended

INCOME
Income from operations

Income from donations
Grants and subsidy received from govemment

‘Other income:
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES
Materials and utilities consumed
Personnel cost
Depreciation / Amortization
Rent
Repairs and maintenance
“Security charges
Professional and consultancy charges
Travelling and conveyance
Scholarship and training expenses
Other operating expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Excess of income over expenditure

Significant accounting policies & Notes on accounts

As per our report attached
forBSR & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm registration no.: 101248W

i e

Partner
Membership No. 32815

Place: Bangalore
Date : 28th July 2013

Es in lakfis
Note 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
218 5.209.41 519157
2.19 10,365.65 £.11995
15,575.06 13311.52

220 313.11 314.75
15,888.17 13,626.27

221 868244 6,839.80
222 4,031.40 2,904.96
29 1.586.42 1,394.50
850,76 58477

77209 644.65

224.86 160.07

222.80 281.64

181.47 141.91

196.00 5338

223 599.08 414,84
17,347.32 13,420.52

(1,459.15) 205.75

1&2

Jor and on behall of the Board of Trustees of
The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Place: Bangalore
Date : 28th July 2013

N

V Balakrishnan

Trustee

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1. Significant accounting policies

Organisation overview

The Akshaya Patra Foundation (‘the Trust or TAPF') is registered under Indian Trust Act
1882 as a Public Charitable Trust. It was formed on 1* July 2000 and was registered on 16"
October 2001, The principal activity of the Trust is to implement the mid-day meal program
of Government of India through respective state governments for the children swdying in
government and municipal schools.

The Trust is also involved in various other i ivities such as providing i i
coaching for cligible students after school hours under “Vidya Akshaya Patra Program”,
providing subsidized meals to daily wage eamers under various schemes like “Akshaya
Kalewa Program™ and “Aap Ki Rasoi Program”, providing food for babies and mothers in
A dis and impl ing various other p for the relief of poor.

Significant accounting policies

(i) Basis of preparation of financial

The balance sheet and income and expenditure accounts are prepared under the
historical cost convention and the accounting is on accrual basis, In the absence of any
authoritatively established accounting principles for the specialised aspects related 10
charitable trusts which do not carry out any commercial activity, these statements have
been prepared in accordance with the significant ing policies as ibed
below. There are no other trusts or entities over which TAPF exercises controlling
interest, thus there is no requirement of consolidating other entities into the TAPF's
financial statements.

(i)  Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial in with the significant
accounting policies requires that the Board of Trustees of the Trust (‘Trustees’) make
eslimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenditure

of the year and reported balances of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ
5 < . s g

from those estimates. Any revision to g is recog prosp ly
in current and future periods.

(i)  Fived assers
Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or less lated

depreciation. The cost of fixed assets includes the purchase cost of fixed assets and any
other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for the
intended use. Borrowing costs, if any, directly anributable to acquisition or construction
of those fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use arc capitalised.

gible assels are ded at the i ion paid for acquisition of such assets
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

Fixed assets received as donation in kind are d and recognised at fair value on
the date of being ready for their intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets as at the balance sheet date are
i under long-term loans and ad
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1. Significant ing polici )

i)

w

(vi)

LR L

Depreciation
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a straight-line method basis over the
estimated useful life as follows:
Class of assets Estimated useful life in years
Buildings 15
Kitchen and related equipments
Office and other equipments
Computer equipments
Fumniture and fixtures
Vehicles

Distribution vessels
Intangible assets

[ PO A R % R

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on Ieasehold i is provided over the
primary lease term or the useful life of assets, w'hlchmr is lower.

Depreciation is charged on a proportionate basis for all assets purchased and sold during
the year,

Individual low cost assets, acquired for less than Rs 5,000 (other than distribution
vessels), are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

Inventery

Inventory comprises provisions and groceries which include food grains, dhal & pulses,
oils and ghee and other items like spares and fuel. Inventory is valued at cost,
determined under the First-In-First-Out method.

In case of Government grants of rice and wheat, the inventory cost is determined at the
lower of the market price or government regulated price.

Cost of inventory, other than those received as g grants, comj
cost and all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to its present lucauun and
condition.

d as donation in Kind are measured at fair value on the date of

receipt.

Revenue recognition

Donations received in cash, other than these received for depreciable fixed assets, are
recognised as income when the donation is received, except where the terms and
conditions require the donations to be utilised over a certain period. Such donations are
accordingly recognised rateably over the period of usage. The deferred income is
disclosed as “Deferred donation — feeding” under other current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Significant ing polici

(vii)

(viti)

d)

Donations received in kind, other than those received for depreciable fixed assets are
measured at fair value on the date of receipt and recognised as income only upon their
utilisation, Unutilised ions are deferred and di as kind donations or grain
arants received in advance under other current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Donations made with a specific direction that they shall form part of the corpus fund or
endowment fund of the Trust are classified as such, and are directly reflected as trust
fund receipts in the balance sheet.

Govemment grants related to subsidy received in cash or in kind are recognised as
income when the obligation associated with the grant is performed and right to receive
rrmrwy is cslabhshed and wﬂccmd as receivables in the balance sheetl. The value of

and ived in kind is ined based on the lower of market
price or government regulated price of those goods at the time of receipt.

Donation received in cash towards depreciable fixed assets, the ownership of which lies
with the Trust, are treated as deferred donation income and recognized as donation
income in the income and expenditure account on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful life of the assct,

The deferred ions towards depreciable fixed assets ived both in cash and in
kind), being identified as funds which provide long term benefits to the Trust, are
disclosed under the Designated Funds in the Balance Sheet.

Income from cultural events, if any, is recognised as and when such events are
performed.

Income from receipts for other programs is ised when the
performed and right to receive money is established.

is

Interest on deploy of funds is ised using the time-proportion method, based
on underlying interest rates.

Income tax

The Trust is registered under Section 12A of the Income tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act').
Under the provisions of the Act, the income of the Trust is exempt from tax, subject to
the compliance of terms and conditions specified in the Acl.

Consequent to the insertion of tax liability on anonymous donations vide Finance Act
2006, the Trust provides for the tax liability in accordance with the provisions of
Section 115 BBC of the Act, if at all there arc any such anonymous donations.

Foreign exchange transactions

Tr fon: Foreign exchang i 1 at a rate that approximates the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the h-ansacuon The difference between the rate
at which foreign ane d and the rate at which they are

realized is recognized in the income and expenditure account.

Tremslation: M y foreign assets and liabilities at the year-end are restated
at the closing rate. The difference arising from the restatement is recognized in the
income and expenditure account,
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1. Significant ing polici i )

fix)

)

(xi)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The provisions are recognised when, as a result of obligating evens, there is a present
obligation that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation.

The contingent liability disclosure is made when, as a result of obligating events, there
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources.

No provision or disclosure is made when, as a result of obligating events, there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow of
resources is remote.

Impairment of assels

The Trust periodically assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Trust estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount s reduced 10 its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the income and expendlmre account. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indicati rhaul‘a,, i i loss no
longer exists, the ble amount is and the asset is reflecwd at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Retirement benefits

Provident fund

All cligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the Trust make monthly contribution to the
fund, which is equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s basic salary.
The Trust has no further obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions.
Monthly contributions made by the Trust are charged to income and expenditure
account.

Gratuity

The Trust provides gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, to its eligible employees.
In accordance with the Payment of Gratity Act, I9?2 the gratuny plan pmvldes a
lump sum payment to the cligible employees at , death, incap or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the mpmwc employee's basic
salary and tenure of employment with the Trust. The gratuity liability is accrued based
on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, camried out by an independent
actuary.

Compensated absences

The employees of the Trust are entitled to compensated absences which are bm.h
accumulating and non-ammuranng in nature. The exp d cost of
compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation based on the additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has aocumulatcd as
at the Balance Sheet date. on P is
recognized in the peried in which the absences occur,

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1. Significant i li inued)

(xii) Leases

Assets acquired under lease, where the Trust substantially has all the risks and rewards
of ownership, are classified as finance lease. Such assets acquired are capitalised at the
inception of lease at lower of the fair value or present value of minimum lease
payments,

Assets acquired under lease where the significant portion of risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease rentals are
charged to income and expenditure account on a stiraight line basis over the lease term.
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2. Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013

The previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to the eurrent presentation,

2.1 Trust Fund Receipts

Corpus Donations
Corpus Donations
Add: Corpus donations received during the year

Endowment fund
End: fund

Add: Endowment fund received during the year

2.2 Excess of Income over Expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Balance carried forward during the year
Closing balance

2.3 Designated Funds

[}] ions related to depreciable assets
- Donation reccived in cash
- Donation received in kind

Closing Balance

2.4 Other long term liabilities

Others
Cash Grants received in advance

Other payables

money

2.5 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity

As at
31 March 2013

Rsin Lakhs
Asat
31 March 2012

7.452.64 6,180.86
11198 1,271.78
153.24 103.18

3510 50.06

7.752.96 7,605.88

384.93 179.18
(1,459.15) 205.75
(1,074.22) 38493

3,760.02 1,389.55

63.57 52.03
3,823.59 1,441.58
8,50 8.50
48.26 34.34
56.76 41.84
] Teltt.
358
3.58 -

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

Rs in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
2.6 Trade payables
Payables to related parties 18.42 8.87
Creditors for expenses 835.23 352.74
Creditors for capital goods 212.81 56.38
1,066.46 417.99
2.7 Other current liabilities
Grain Grant received in advance 171.33 143.07
Cash Grant received in advance 101.40 14.41
Ear Marked Donations - Others 130.53 176.07
Deferred Donation - Feeding 177.22 151.71
Other payables (specify nature)
Accrued salaries 183.07 113.00
Contribution to provident and other funds 38.56 18.10
Other liabilities 21033 201.04
Withholding and other tax payable 19.95 4.74
1,032.39 822.14
2.8 Short-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences 104.44 71.56
104.44 71.56
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)
Rs in lakhs
As at Asatl
2.10 Long term loans and advances
Secured, considered good
Capital advances for purchase of fixed assets 414.65 121.11
Doubtful
- — Less: Provision for doubtful advances
414.65 121.11
The Akshaya Patra Foundation
2. Nates on accounts for the year eaded 31 March 2013
29 Flxed assens Other loans and advances
Ry i lakiks .
Gross bieck T Tated depreciation et block Unsecured, considered good
{Fixed Assels Asat Addition: Disposals during| Asat Asat Charge for the | Deletions duriog) Asst Asat Asal -
AP 202 | ceringtheyear | ceyear | 31 nsarcha0t3 | 1 April 2012 year theyear | 31March 2013 | 31 March 2013 | 31 March 2012 Advance income tax
[Tasgible assets, Owaed Tax deducted at source 25.02 10.66
L 2478 010 s 2488 . R 5 - 2488 2478 Prepaid expenses 1.70 1.31
Buildings 295210 0161 s 318871 75422 21635 . 97057 221504 219788 Prepaid expenses under Gratuity Trust - 4.10
Lesschold improvements 1057.40 4578 3547 106771 mnn 1sss 567 43050 s86.81 8663 Electricity & other deposits 26.81 18.89
Plant and Equipment 2,680.55 42864 008 EXCXTH I 5364 - 257551 53360 ssa6e Rental deposits 115.34 331
it; i 7. g
Furniture and Fistures 300,35 3040 . s 17263 4391 z 20654 1461 23] Security deposits 1745 18.48
Teleph deposi 1.54 0.42
Vehicles 252405 39439 5.6 26328 | 1529 48154 468 21739 683.89 sz i
Unamontised expenses
lofice cquipment 13789 36.52 0.10 17431 99,82 2828 . 12610 %21 3807
| Computer Equipment 156.78 s - 21010 9592 3936 . 13578 B3 036 187.86 §7.57
Distribution Vesscls 105297 19038 6375 118660 92929 166:53 6375 103207 15453 13048
Total - tangible fixed assets: 11,093.87 141354 15456 1235285 | 629700 154896 12410 771886 463299 479687 602.51 208.68
Intangible assets, owned
Computer software 12965 15.08 3 14273 35.09 4046 5 75,55 7218 84,56 2.11 Other non current assets
Total - intaagible fixed assets 12965 18.08 . 14273 350 4046 ] 7555 218 9456 5 . g .
Bank deposits (with original maturity more than 12
238 1431.62 15456 1zso0ss | 633209 188642 1240 779441 470617 459143 months) 647.39 601.40
Previoss yeor : 9.527.46 172595 2090 122350 495284 139450 1495 833209 489142 457482
647.39 601.40
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“The Akslaya Patra Fousdation
ZNotes on secounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 {eontinued)

Ry tri lakles
Axat Asat
31 Muareh 2013 31 March 2012
212 Ioventorics
Provisions and groceries.
= Rice and wheal 20765 180.21
- Dial and pulses 7835 44.79
- Oils and ghee 36.79 .52
- Oehers 025 57.05
393.04 310,57
Fuel 19.91 1214
Stores and spases 56,56 1577
2647 2191
469.51 33848
203 Cush and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 010 047
Cash in transit 0.04 0.04
Balance with banks
In savings scoounis. 141320 1,263.30
In deposit socounts (with orignal maturity within 3 months) 76229 1,640.22
217563 250403
Other Bank balances
Bank deposits (with onginal maturity more than 3 manths bat less
thvan 12 months) 129072 261.59
347535 316562
2,14 Cash subsidy receivables from Goverameni
Unsecured, considered good
Govemment of Knmataka 240.90 10974
Government of Uttarpradesh 2005 132.28
Gevernment of Rajasthan M 40.84
Government of Orisss 3599 3183
Governiment of Gujarst 314 216
Government of Andhia Pradesh 3308 L9
Govermment of Chattisgarhy 204 202
Governmend of New Delhi 4578 -
Guvernment of Assam 8242 44.30
49644 45516
Unseenred, conidered donbiful
Government of Karnataka 510 -
Government of Rajasthan 520 -
Governmend of Gujamt 919 -
‘Government of Andhra Pradesh 5494 -
A3 -
570.87 455.16
Less: Provision for doubt(ul receivables from Ci A3 -
496.44 45516

The Akshayapatra Foundation
2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

2.15 Unelaimed Cash subsidy from Government

Government of Kamataka
Govemment of Uttampradesh
Government of Rajasthan
Government of Orissa
Govemment of Gujarat
Govemment of Andhra Pradesh
Govemnment of Chattisgarh
Government of New Delhi
Government of Assam

2.16 Short-term loan and advances

Loans and advances to related partics
Unsecured, considered good

Others

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses
Electricity & other deposits
Rental depaosits
Security deposits
Telephone deposits
Stafl advance

2.17 Other current assets

Accrued income
Interest accrucd
Advance Recoverable in cash or kind

Rs in fakhs
As at Asat
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
397.01 37185
75.05 77.30
9151 81,76
55.02 49.82
20235 89.95
9264 46.51
15.82 16.02
1.93 -
27.90 24.27
96523 15948
18.25 599
18.25 5.9%
75.15 4621
- B.51
.. 055
4.08 187
- 104
1L.70 10.37
90.93 90.55
109.18 96.54
0.13 0.73
41.06 27.26
19.51 47.53
120.76 7552
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2.Motes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

2.18 Income from Donations

Donations in cash
-received in India towards meals
-received in other countries towards meals
-received in India towards fixed assets
-received in other countries towards fixed assets

Donations in kind

- towards fixed assets

- others

Donation - Others

2.19 Grants and subsidy received from government

A. Grant of food grains from :
Government of Kamataka
Government of Uttarpradesh
Government of Rajasthan
Govemment of Orissa
Government of Gujarat
Government of Andhra Pradesh
Government of Chattisgarh
Govemment of New Delhi
Government of Assam

B. Cash subsidies from :
Government of Kamataka
Government of Uttarpradesh
Government of Rajasthan
Govemment of Orissa
Government of Gujarat
Government of Andhra Pradesh
Government of Chattisgarh
Government of New Delhi
Government of Assam

2.20 Other income

Interest income

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous Income

For the year ended
31 March 2013

Rs in lakhs
For the year ended
31 March 2012

2,948.54 2,970.05
1,428.02 1,683.87
291.86 237.60
65.70 62.61
24.29 28.97
212.62 12222
238.38 86.25
5,209.41 5,191.57
492.45 490,67
87.27 £9.19
107.04 70.10
94.77 81.29
214.84 155.78
62.65 36.61
18.67 2015
20.52 .
30.06 26.56
1,128.27 970.35
3,846.81 341579
793.94 747.37
882.07 808.50
608.65 49525
1,800.04 £96.11
81548 453.29
147.37 15732
138.55 -
204.47 175.97
9,237.38 7,149.60
10,365.65 §,119.95
201.30 199.12
- 1.30
3.38 61.52
108.43 52.81
313.11 314.75

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2.Notes on accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

2.21 Cost of material consumed
Materials and utlilities consumed
Provisions, groceries and spares consumed
Fuel
Power and lighting

2.22 Personnel Cost

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident and other funds
Contract staff

Staff welfare

Honorarium to administration volunteers

2.23 Other operating expenses

Printing and stationery

Couricr and postage

Statutory audit fees

Other audit fees

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Communication expenses
Advertisement

Promotion and inauguration expenses
Interest and bank charges

Office expenses

Loss on write off or sale of fixed assets, net

Provision for doubtful receivables from Government

Write offs - Other receivables
Miscellaneous expenses

Rsin lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
7,008.42 5,553.40
1,427:50 1,093.92
246,52 192.48
8,682.44 6,839.80
3,060.53 2,104.66
319.34 295.80
428,58 340.35
146.21 73.16
76.74 90.99
4,031.40 2,904.96
69.18 49.74
2584 24.23
12.01 11.51
45.35 35.76
23.19 16.62
90.81 52.08 .
83.83 58.98
5.52 11.63
88.84 50.99
10.57 9.86
21.23 34.75
16.56 -
74.43 9.75
0.89 242
30.83 46.52
599.08 414.84




The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts

2. Noies to accounts for the year ended 31 Marel 2013 (continued)

2.24 Capital C i and inge
Rs in Lakhs
As al As at
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 1,307.97 906.45
executed on capital account and not provided for,
net of advances
Outstanding bank guaraniee, in respect of the 150.00 NIL
guarantee given by bank in favour of others,
secured by equivalent fixed deposit with bank
Dues not acknowledged as debt by the Trust NIL 227

2.25 Related party transactions

The Trust has identified the following entities as related parties which are trusts or societies
having one or more of its trustees as the trustees of these entities and transactions with those

related parties have been disclosed below:

a.  Entities where significant influence exisis:

The Akshaya Patra Foundation Inc, USA (“TAPF USA™);
The Akshaya Patra Foundation Ine, UK (“TAPF UK™);
ISKCON Charities;

India Heritage Foundation ("1HF™);

Hare Krishna Movement - Vrindavan ("HKM - Vrindavan");
Hare Krishna Movement - Jaipur ("HKM - Jaipur");

Hare Krishna Movement - Ahmedabad ("HKM - Ahmedabad");
Hare Krishna Movement - Hubli ("HKM - Hubli");

Hare Krishna Movement - Bellary ("HKM - Bellary™);

Hare Krishna Movement - Chennai ("HKM - Chennai);
Basics Foundation

LI T R T T I R T I )

International Society for Krishna Consciousness, Bangalore (“ISKCON™);

b. The following is a summary of significant transactions with entities where significant

31 March 2012

influence exists:
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2013
Corpus fund donations received:
- ISKCON 1.50

Income from cash donations received towards

mid-day meal feeding programme:

-ISKCON 37.55
- TAPF USA 1,028.13

1.00

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the

Rs in Lakfis

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 Marel 2013 (continaed)

For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
- TAPF UK 98.33 23929
- HKM - Jaipur 2299 20.87
- HKM —- Ahmedabad - 762
- HKM - Bellary 4.50 025
- HKM — Vrindavan - 4.20
Income from cash donations received towards
fixed assets:
- TAPF USA 301.32 135.12
- ISKCON 14.17 -
Rent and other expenses paid
- ISKCON 194.20 17261
- HKM ~ Hubli 13.56 236
Provisions and groceries purchased
- ISKCON Charities 1.97 209
- HKM — Hubli 037 0.57
- Basic Foundation 0.05 -
Expenditure incurred on behalf of the Trust
- ISKCON 38.99 16.13
- ISKCON Charilies 0.56 -
- HKM Jaipur 274 3.52
- TAPF UK - 0.10
- HKM — Vrindavan 2048 =
Expenditure incurred by the Trust on behalf of
related parties:
- 1SKCON 9.41 227
- HKM = Vrindavan 38.18 0.02
- HKM — Jaipur 5.90 4.08
- HKM- Hubli 0.01 -
- TAPF UK 0.25 -




The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

Balances receivable from and payable to related parties:

Rs in Lakhs

As at Asat

Particulars 31 March 13 31 March 12

Sundry creditors for expenses:

- ISKCON 18.42 8.87
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind

- HKM = Jaipur - 5.00

- HKM — Vrindavan 18.00 0.02

- Basics Foundation - 0.97

- TAPF UK 0.25 -

226 The Trust has offices, kitchen facilities and vehicles under Il perating  lease

agreements. The Trust intends to renew these lease agreements in the normal course of its

business. Total rental under 1 ing leases for the year ended

31 March 2013is Rs 850.76 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 584.77 Lakhs)

2.27 Employee Benefit Plans
a. Defined contribution plans

Total contribution made by the Trust during the year towards provident fund and employee’s
state insurance, defined contribution plans is Rs 319.34 (Previous year Rs 295.80 Lakhs).

b. Gratuity - Defined benefit plan
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefil

obligation:
Rs in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Obligations at period beginni 122.38 81.92
Service cost 62.70 38.02
interest cost 10.04 702
Benefits settled (1.37) NIL
Actuarial (gain) / loss (3.18) (4.58)
Obligations at period end 190.57 122,38

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued) ——

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Change in plan assets:
5:;.: assels at beginning of the period, at fair 126.47 70.04 7
Expected return on plan assets 1110 T1.60
Actuarial gain / (loss) 0.57 (1.20) —
Contributions 50.22 50.03
Benefits settled (1.37) NIL
Plans assets at end of the period, at fair 186.99 126.47 —

value

100% of plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

Rs in Lakhs
Asat As at 7
31 March 2013 31 March 2012 |
Present value of the defined benefit obligations
a1 the end of the period o 19057 1228 I
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 186.99 126.48
Liability recognized in the balance sheet 3.58 - |
Asset recognized in the balance sheet - 4.10 —
Gratuity cost for the year: I
Rs in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended —
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Service cost 62.70 38.02 [
Interest cost 10.04 1.02 —
Expected return on plan assets (11.10) (7.60) |
Actuarial loss (3.75) (3.39)
Net gratuity cost 57.90 34.05 —
Actual return plan assets 11.66 6.40 I
Assumplions !7
Discount rate 8.25% 8.57% |
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 7
6.00% 6.00%

Salary escalation rate

230
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts

2, Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (comtinued)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of
inflation, seniorily, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in
the employment market.

¢.  Compensated absences

With effect from 1April 2009, the Trust has provided for compensated absences for all
employees who have worked for 240 days or more and who continue 1o be on rolls as on
31 March 2013, The liability is computed on actuarial basis on the gross wages for the earned
leave day balance available as on 31 March 2013, The liability as at 31 March 2013 is Rs
104.44 lakhs (Previous year Rs 71.56 lakhs).

2.28 Earnings and expenditure in foreign currency (on receipt and payment basis)

(2) Eamnings in foreign currency:
Rs in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
Donations received towards fixed assets 1,723.83 521.38
Donation received towards meals 1.401.40 1.701.41
Danation received towards other projects 104.04 9.21
Total earnings 3,229.27 z.zﬂ

(b) Expenditure in foreign currency:
Rs in Lakhs

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Trustees” travel NIL 022
Employees® travel 3 1.18 222
Delegates” travel NIL 14.34
Total expenditure 1.18 16.78

2.29 Fixed deposits included donations of Rs1,208.07 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 846.86 Lakhs) received
towards expansion but yet to be expended,Rs 188.43Lakhs(Previous year Rs 154.08 Lakhs)
towards Endowment Fund and Rs 182.91 Lakhs (Previous year Rs!60.95 Lakhs) 1owards Life
Skills and Health Imervention Programmes at Jaipur and Hyderabad and Lien of Bank Guarantee
Rs 150.00 Lakhs (Previous year Rs Nil)

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the accounts

2. Notes to accounts for the year ended 31 March 2013 (continued)

2,30 Travelling and conveyance incurred towards:

Rs in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2013 31 March 2012
International travel 1.03 6.81
Domestic travel
Air travel 56.00 87.82
Others 46.50 47.28
103.53 141.91
forBSR & Co. Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of
Chartered Accountants The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Firm registration no.: 101248W
. M
Natrajh Ramakrishna V Balakrishnan

Parmer Trustee

Membership No. 32815

Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: 28" July 2013 Date: 28" July 2013
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B SR & Co.

{Registerad)
Chartered Accountants
Maruth [nfo-Tach Centre Telephone  +31 80 3980 6000
11-12/1 Inner Ring Road Fax +31 B0 3880 6999
Koramangats

Bangalore 560 071 india

Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Trustees of The Akshaya Patra Foundation

We have examined the attached of receipts and payr of The Akshaya
Patra Foundation (‘the Trust') for the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013, signed by
us under reference 1o this report, with the books and records maintained by the Trust and the

fi ion and explanations given to us, we confirm that the said statement is in accordance
therewith,
Jor BSR & Co.

Chartered Aecountanis
Firm registration number: 101248W

| C
* &
Natrajh Ramakrishna

Paritner
Membership No. 32815

Bangalore
28 July 2013

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Receipts and payments account
Rs in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
Schedule 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Opening balance

Cash 0.51 2.55
Bank 3,766.51 2,259.72
3,767.02 2,262.27
Add : Receipts
Donations A 747062 6,817.61
Cash subsidies from government B 9.077.34 7.127.00
Other receipts C 295.93 246.78
Sale of fixed assets D 13.91 16.24
20,624.82 16,469.90
Less: Payments
Purchase of fixed assets E 2,494.41 1,506.12
Loans and advances F 61.12 2598
Utilisation of materials and other utilities G 6,837.23 5,927.07
Personnel Cost H 3.990.84 2,925.79
General Expenses I 3,104.12 2,313.94
Tax Deducted at Source J 14.36 3.98
16,502.08 12,702.88
Closing balance 4,122.74 3,767.02
Represented by
Cash 0.14 0.51
Bank 4,122.60 3,766.51
4,122.74 3,767.02
Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Trustees of
for BSR & Co. The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Chartered Accowntanis

Firm Registration No. : 101248W

Al
WIS N, Redomi oo
Natrajh Ramakrishn V Balakrishnan
Partner Trustee

Membership No. 32815

Place : Bangalore Place : Bangalore
Date : 28th July 2013 Date : 28th July 2013
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules 1o the receipts and payments account

Receipis:
Schedule A - Donations
Donations in cash
- received in India towards meals
- received in other countries towards meals
= received in India towards fixed assets
- received in other countrics wwards fixed sssets
= Donation Others

Change in corpus fund receipts
Change in endowment fund receipts
Change in deferred income from donations

- received lowards meals
- received towards fixed assets
Change in donation reccivable
dule B - Cash subsidies from go and g bodies
Cash subsidies from g and gy bodies
Change in cash subsidi ivable from g and g bodies
advance

Schedule C - Other receipts

Interest reccived

Miscellaneous income

Other program receipls

Change in Other receivables

Advance 1ax refund

Change in interest accrued and not due

Schedule D - Sale of fixed assets
Book value of assets sold, net
{Loss)/ profit on sale or write-ofT of fixed assets, net

The Akshaya Patra Foundarion
Schedules to the receipts and payments account

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to 1be receipts and payments account

Payments:

Schedule E - Purchase of fixed assets
Additions as per balance sheet

Assete received as donations

Change in sundry creditors for eapital goods
Change in retention monics payable
Creditors write back

Change in capital work in progress
Adjustment for asset transfer

Schedule F - Loans and advances

Rs in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 13 31 March 12
2,948.54 298479
1,428.02 1,683.87
291.86 237.60
65.70 62.61
238.38 71.50
111.98 1,271.78
3500 50.06
(20.02) (11.79)
2,37047 465.05
0.59 2.14
7.470.62 6,817.61
Siassel
9.237.38 7,149.59
(261.44) (22.59)
101.40 -
9,077.34 7,127.00
20130 199.12
10843 5282
(13.80) (5.16)
295.93 246.78
047 14.94
(16.56) 130
13.91 16.24

Change in salary advances
Change in deposits
dule G - U of material and other utilities
Consumption of materials and utilities as per income and expendilure account
Change in inventory of provisions and groceries
Denations received in kind
Change in grant of food grains from go and g
advance

Grants of food grains from government and government bodics
Change in Statutory Liabilitics

Change in aceruals & other cumrent liabilitics

Change in sundry creditors

Change in advance recoverable in cash or kind

Schedule H - Personnel Cost

Personnel cost as per the income and expenditure account
Change in Statutory Liabilities

Change in Aceruals & Other Current Liabilities

Change in provisions

Change in sundry creditors

Change in advance recoverable in cash or kind

Change in prepaid expenses for Gratuity trust

Sehedule I - General expenses

Other operaling expenses as per income and expenditure account

Change in prepaid cxpenses

Change in Statutory Liabilities

Change in aceruals & other cument liabilities
Change in provisions

‘Change in sundry creditors

Change in advance recoverable in cash or kind

Schedule J - Income (axes paid
Change in advance tax

Rsin Lakhs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 13 31 March 12
143161 1,725.94
{35.83) {24.05)
(156.43) 283
(13.92) 261
(338) (61.52)
127236 {139.69)
2,494.41 1,506.12
133 (0.20)
59.79 26.18
6112 25.98
#,682.44 6,839.80
13103 30.61
(212.62) (122.22)
128.26) {10.14)
(1,12829) (970.35)
(35.67) 17.27
(79.35) {123.72)
(492.05) 265.82
6,837.23 5,927.07
4.031.39 2,904.96
(36.43) 16.73
4.1 4.10
3,990.84 2,925.79
3,030.50 228125
2933 2007
44.29 1262
3,104.12 2,313.94
1436 398
1436 398

=
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IFRS FINANCIALS

Independent Auditors” Report

The Board of Trustees
The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (“the Trust™),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2013, and the Statements of Operation, Changes in Trust
funds and Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting

licies and other expl y information.

) 's Responsibility for the Financial §

Management is rcsponstble for the prl:pﬂmuon and fair presentation of these financial statements in

with Internati Fi I Reporting Standards as issued by International Accounting
Standards Board, except for such modifications as are considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of
the Trust i.e. carrying out charitable activities with effective use of resources rather lhan makmg profits
and maximisation of members’ wealth (refer to note 1.2, Basis of preparation of fi in
significant accounting policies), a.nd for such il | control as determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of 1 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with rel t ethical requi and plan and perform the audit to obtain bl ¢ wheth
the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An nud|l mvolves pcrforrmng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

e, The pro lected dcpcnd on our Judgment, including the
assessment oi‘ the risks of material of the lid. whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk we ider i | control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair p ion of the consolidated financial in order to design audit
p that are appropriate in the ¢i but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropri of
accourrlmg policies used and the reasonableness of nccountmg i made by aswell as
luating the overall p ion of the consolidated fi

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Trust as at March 31, 2013, and of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended m accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the | ional A

Board except for the modifications considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of the Trust i.e. carrying
oul charitable activities with effective use of resources rather Iharl making profits and maximisation of
members’ wealth (refer to note 1.2, basis of preparation of fi i ), as reflected in significant
accounting policies.

KPMe,

KPMG

August 2, 2013
Bangalore, India

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Balance Sheet as at March 31,
ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Other non current assets
‘Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Cash subsidi ivable from g and g badies

Unclaimed cash subsidy
Prepayments and other assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with banks

‘Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND TRUST FUNDS
Non-current liabilitics

Employee benefit obligation

Other non current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Payables
Other current liabilities
Short-term pro
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Trust funds
Corpus fund
General fund

Restricted fund
Endowment fund
Desi fund

Mid-day meal fund

Total trust funds

‘Total liabilities and trust funds

The acc

Note

21
2.2

23

24
25

2.6
23

28
29
2.10

2.18

1g noles form an infegral part of these financial statements

Rsin lakhs
203 2012
5.879.59 5.086.04
602.51 208.68
6.482.10 5,294.72
469.51 33848
496.44 455.16
965.23 759.48
229.81 171.33
1,413.34 1,263.81
2,709.40 2,503.21
6,283.73 5,491.47
12,765.83 10,786.19
3.58 -

48.26 3434
51.84 34.34
1,066.46 417.99
451.91 336.88
104,44 71.56
1,622.81 826.43
1,674.65 860.77
7.564.63 745264
{1.074.22) 384.93
6,490.41 7,837.57
188.34 153.24
3,823.59 1.441.58
588.84 493.03
4,600.77 2,087.85
11,091.18 9,925.42
12,765.83 10,786.19

241 ——




The Akshaya Patra Foundation

S of Operations for the year ended March 31,

Income from donations
Income from grants from governments and government bodies

Total income

Expenditure
Materials and utilities consumed
Personnel cost

Dep
Other operating expenses
Total expenditure

Net surplusf{deficit) before other income
Other income
Surplus/(deficit) before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net surplus/(deficit) transferred to general fund

Note

2.11
212

2.14

2.15
2.1

216

2,13

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

of changes in Trust Funds

Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Endowment Designated | Mid-day meal | Total Trust
2013 2012 Particulars Corpus fund General fund Fund fund fund Funds
Bal. ason 1 April 2011 6,180.87 179.18 103.18 975.82 483,75 7.922.80
520941 5,191,356 Less: Cash subsidies receivable from
10,365.65 8.119.95 and government bodies - opening balance - - - - (1,177.62) (1,177.62)
Add: Donation funds received during the year 1,271.78 - 50.06 770.89 4,724.88 6,817.61
15,575.06 13.311.51 Add: Assets received as donations during the year - - - 24.05 122.22 146.27
Add: Grant of food grains received during the year - - - - 980.49 980.49
Add: Subsidies received during the year - - - - 7,122.00 7,127.00
8,682.44 6,839.80 Add: Cash subsidi i from g
4,031.40 2,904.96 and government bodies - closing balance - - - - 455.16 455.16
Add: Unclaimed cash subsidy - - - - 759.48 759.48
;';ig;: ;':g‘:;g Less: Income recognised during the year - - = {329.18) {12,982.33) (13.311.51)
i o Add: Surplus/{deficit) for the year - 205.75 - - - 205.75
17,347.32 13,420.51 Balance as of 31 March 2012 7452.65 384.93 153.24 1,441.58 493.03 9,925.43
Less: Cash subsidi ivable from go
(1,772.26) (109.00) and government bodies - opening balance . . . . (455.16)) (455.16)
313.11 314.75 Less: Unclaimed cash subsidy - opening balance s . " . (759.48)) (759.48)|
(1,459.15) 205.75 Add: Donation funds received during the year 111.98 - 35.10 2.728.03 4,595.50 7,470.61
& o Add: Assets received as donations during the year - - - 35.83 21262 248.45
Add: Grant of food grains received during the year - - - - 1,156.53 1,156.53
(145915 205,75 Add: Subsidies received during the year - - ¥ “ 9,077.34 9,077.34
Add: Cash idi i from g
and government bodies - closing balance - - - - 496.44 496.44
Add: Unclaimed cash subsidy - - - - 965.23 965.23
Less: Income recognised during the year - - - (381.85) (15,193.21) (15.575.06)
Add: Surplus/(deficit) for the year - (1.459.15) - - - (1,459.15)
|Balance as of 31 March 2013 7,564.63 {1.074.22) 188.34 3.823.59 588.84 11,091.18

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements




The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,

Rsin lakhs
Particulars 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
D ions towards mid-day meal fund 4,595.50 4,724.88
Cash subsidies from government and government bodies 9,077.34 7,127.00
Other receipts 108.43 52.81
Utilisation of material and other utilities (6,837.23) (5,927.07)
Personnel Cost (3,990.84) (2.925.79)
Other operating expenses (3,104.12) (2.313.91)
Advances and deposits collected/(paid) (61.12) (25.98)
Cash generated from operations (212.04) T11.94
Income taxes paid (14.36) (3.98)
Net cash from operating activities (226.40) 707,96
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,494.40) (1,506.14)
A in deposits with banks (206.19) (980.90)
Interest received 187.50 193.96
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipments 13.91 16.24
Net cash wsed in investing activities (2,499.18) (2,276.84)
Cash flows from financing activities
Corpus fund donations received 111.98 1,271.78
Endowment fund donations received 35.10 50.06
Desi fund donati ived 2.728.03 770.89
Net cash from financing activitie 2,875.11 2,092.73
Net change in cash and cash equivalent 149.53 523.85
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 1,263.81 739.96
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 1,413.34 1,263.81

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
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Organisation overview and significant accounting policies
Organisation overview

The Akshaya Patra Foundation (‘the Trust or TAPF") is registered under Indian Trusts Act
1882 ac a public charitable trust. [t was formed on 1 July 2000 and was registered on 16
October 2001, The principal activity of the Trust is to provide mid-day meals to the
children studying in government and municipal schools (the *Akshaya Patra Programme’)
in various states in India.

The Trust is also involved in various other charitable activities like providing intensive
coaching for non meritorious students and food after school hours under “Vidya Akshaya
Patra Progr ", providing subsidized meals to daily wage eamers under “Akshaya
Kalewa Programme™, providing water in water starved slum areas under the “Akshaya
Jaldhara Programme™ and providing meals to prisoners at central prison and senior
citizens.

These financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Trust's Board of Trustees
on 28" July 2013.

Basis of preparation of financial statemenis

The financial statements have been prepared in d with | ional Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International A ing Standards Board
except for such modifications as have been idered appropriate to reflect the objectives

of the Trust i.c., carrying out charitable activities with effective use of resources rather
than making profits and maximisation of members’ wealth. IFRSs are not primarily
designed for non-profit organizations. Therefore, to properly reflect the objectives of the
trust, departures from certain IFRSs have been made in presenting these financial
statements, e.g. from IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 20 Accounting
for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. These financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2013 have been prepared under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
which have been measured at fair values.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial
statements.

Use of estimates
The prep of the financial in conformity with IFRS requires the Trustees
of the Trust (*Trustees’) to make esti jud and pi These esti

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and reported of and exp during the period. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those

Any revision to ing esti is gnised prospectively in current and
future periods.




The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1.4 Property, plant and equij including capital work-in-prog

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Property, plant and equipment received
on donation are recorded at fair value. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes
the purchase cost of fixed asscs and an) clhcr directly attributable costs of bringing the
assels 1o their workil for i d use. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. When parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are disclosed as
capital advances under non-current assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not
put to use as at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work in progress.
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Trust and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are

ized in the of operations when incurred. The cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the
assel and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of operations.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line method basis
over the estimated useful life of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment,
since this most closely reflects the exp 1 pattern of ption of the future economic
benefits embodied in the assets. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
period are as follows:

Class of assets Estimated
useful life
Buildings 15 years
Kitchen and related equipments 3 years
Office equipments 3 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures . S years
Vehicles 3 years
Distribution vessels 2 years
D iation is charged on a proporti basis for all assets purchased and sold during

the year. Depreciation rnelhods useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach
reporting date.

Frechold land is not d iated, Dy iation on leasehold i is provided
over the lease term or the userul lives ofassets, whichever is Iower

Individual low cost assets, acquired for less than Rs 5,000 (other than distribution vessels),
are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

13 Leases

Assets acquired under lease where the Trust assumes substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalised at the
inception of lease at lower of the fair value and present value of minimum lease payments,

Assets acquired under lease where the significant portion of risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease rentals are
harged to the of operations on accrual basis over the lease term.

1.6 Inventory

'y comprises provisions and groceries which include food grains, dhal and pulses,
oils and ghee and other items like spares and fuel. Inventory is valued at cost, determined
under the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Inventory cost, when received as government
grants is determined at the lower of the market price or government regulated price. Cost
of inventory, other than those received as government grants, comprises purchase cost and
all expenses incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition.
Inventories received as donation in kind are measured at fair value on the date of receipt.

1.7 Grants and donations

The Trust receives government grants as well as donations from non-gs sources
to carry oul the charitable activitics for which it is set up.

Grants and donati including no y grants and donations, are gnised when
there is reasonable assurance that the Trust will comply with the conditions attaching to
them, and that the donations will be received. On initial recognition, non-monctary granis
and donations are measured on gross basis i.c. non monetary grant of grains at regulated
prices and other non -monetary grants at fair value.

Corpus fund

Corpus fund is held as a capital fund. Donations with a specifi date that they should
be included in the corpus fund are credited to the “corpus fund”™ without recognition in the
statement of operations.

Endowment fund

Donations with a specific mandate that they should be considered as an endowment are
credited 1o the specific “endowment fund™ without recognition in the statement of
operauonm Income from investment of endowment funds and expenses incurred for

g the related obligation are recognised in the of op
Donati ds depreciable fixed assets
Donations in cash or in kind specifically towards depreciable fixed assets are credited to
“desi d fund”. As depreciation is charged every year on such assets in the statement
of operations, an equivalent amount is transferred from the ‘designated fund’ to the
statement of operations.
Mid-day meal fund

Donations towards mid-day meal scheme where the terms and conditions require
utilization over specified period are credited 1o “mid-day meal fund™ and are recognised as
income ratably over the period of usage.
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

1.8

Government grants of grains, cash subsidy from government and donations received from
other donors towards mid-day meal scheme are credited to “mid-day meal fund” and are
ised in of operati when the obligation associated with such
g is met. Gow grants of grains are measured at lower of market price
and regulated price of grains at the time of receipt. Grants of grains other than from
government are recorded at fair value at the time of receipt.

General fund
The balance in the statement of operations is transferred to general fund.

(-

Donations without specific mandate/usage period

Other donations without a specific mandate or a specified usage period are recognised as
income when received.

Others
Income from cultural events is recognised over the period of the related event.

Income from other program receipts is recognised when the associated obligation is
performed and right to receive money is established.

Interest on deployment of funds is recognised using the time-proportion method, based on
underlying interest rates.
Income tax

The Trust is registered under Section |12A of the Income tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act’) in India.
Income of the Trust is exempted from tax under the provisions of the Act, subject to the
compliance of specific terms and conditions specified in the Act.

Consequent 1o the inserlion of tax liability on anonymous donations vide Finance Act
2006 in India, the Trust provides for the tax liability, if any, in accordance with the
provisions of Section 115 BBC of the Act.

Foreign exchange transactions

The ional currency and the of the Trust is Indian Rupees. All
amounts are stated in Indian rupees, except as otherwise stated. Foreign exchange
transactions are recorded at a rate that approximates the exchange rate prevailing at the
date of the respective transaction. Exchange differences arising on forcign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of operations of the
year. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance
sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange
differences arc ized in the of operati
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1.10 Provisions and contingencies

112

A provision is recognised when, as a result of obligating events, there is a present
obligation that probably requires an outflow of economic benefits and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. The disclosure of contingent liability is
made when, as a result of obligating events, there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. No provision
or disclosure is made when, as a result of obligating events, there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.c. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of

ing the obligations under the exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it, are enised when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of
an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

N ivative financial i

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are presented as current
assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months afier the balance sheet date
which are presented as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are measured
initially at fair value plus ion costs and sut Iy carried at amortized
cost using the effective imterest method, less any impairment loss. Loans and
receivables are represented by prepayments and other assets, cash and cash
equivalents and deposits with banks. Cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash
and deposits held at call with banks.

(i) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

Employees benefits
Provideni find and emplayee s state insurance

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund and employee's state
insurance, which are defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Trust make
monthly contribution, which are equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s
basic salary. The Trust has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly
contributi Monthly ibuti made by the Trust are charged to the statement of
operations.

Gratuity

Liabilities with regard to the Gratity Plan, a defined benefit plan, are determined by
actuarial valuation at each balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The
Trust recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in the statement of balance
sheet as an asset or liability, respectively in accordance with IAS 19, Employee benefits.
The discount rate is based on the Government securities yield. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to the statement of operations in the period in which they arise.
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Compensated absences

The employees of the Trust are enfitled to compensated absences. The policies of the Trust
allow carry forward of certain leave days which can be utilized in the future period.
Liabilities for such compensated absence are provided based on actuarial valuation.

Fair value of financial instruments

A number of the Trust's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of
fair value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been
determined for measurcment and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.
When applicable, further infe ion about the pli made in di ining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to thal asset or liability.

a)  Other receivables - The fair value of other receivables is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

b)  Non-derivate financial fiabilities - Fair value, which is determined for disclosure
purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

L4 Impairment of assets

{a) Financial assets

The Trust assesses at each balance sheet date whether then: is abjective evidence that
a fnsncml ~assel or a group of financial assets is impaired. A ial asset is

ired if object id indi that one or more events have had a
negative effect on the l:sumalcd future cash flows of that asset. Individually mg,mrcant
financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics. Impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables measured at
amortized cost are calculated as the difference between their carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash I'Iows discounted at the onglnal effective
interest rate. Such impairment loss is ized in the ofop

(b) Non-financial assets

Property, plam and i are for ility cw:nls or
ges in indicate that their carying may not be

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the

fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset

basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of

those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the

CGU to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are idered to be impaired, the impai to be gnized in the
of ions is d by the amount by which the carrying value of the
assels exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.

(¢

£

Reversal of impairment loss

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occnrnng after the imp loss was ized. The
carrying amount of an asset is increased 1o its revised recoverable amounl. provided
that this amount does not :xcaed the r.arrymg amount that would have been

determined (net of any ac 1 or depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
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1.15 Cash flow statement

The Trust has prepared its cash flow statement under the direct method whereby major
classes of gross receipts and gross payments are disclosed. The cash flows from operating,
mw:snng and I‘nanc:ng activities of the Trust are scgrcgated Receipts towards corpus,

and d 1 funds are 1 as financing activities. Receipts towards
mid-day meal fund are considered as operating activitics.

o

New tards and interpr not yet

d. Jard

A number of new 1o and inl are nol yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2013, and have not been sppl!ed in preparing these
financial statements:

A number of new standards, 1y to dards and interpretations are not yer
effective for the year ended March 31, 2013, and have not been applicd in preparing these
financial statements. The Trust is in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of
these standards on the Trust's financial statements:

IFRS 9 Fi ial Instr In 1 2009, the International Accounting
Standards Board issued IFRS 9, Fi ial | : Recognition and M 10

reduce the complexity of the current rules on financial instruments as mandated in IAS 39.
The effective date for IFRS 9 is annual periods bcgmmng on or after January 1, 2015 with

carly adoption permitted. IFRS 9 has fewer classi and 1 calegories as
compared to [AS 39 and has ehrmnalcﬂ the categories of held lo maiumy. avaulablc for
sale and loans and ivables. Further it elimi the d of

segregating embedded dcnvauvcs and tainting rules pertaining to 'hLId to maturity
investments. IFRS 9 is not expected to be applicable for the Trust’s financial statements.

IFRS 10, C d Financial St IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements and IFRS
12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: In May 201 1, the International Accounting
Standards Board issued IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The effective date for IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 is annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 with early
adoption permitted.

IFRS 10C i i ial S builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept cl‘oontml w lhe daennlnlng factor in whether an cnmy should be included within
the of the parent Company. IFRS 10 replaces the

lidation requi in SIC-IZ (‘ lidation of Special Purposc Entities and [AS
27 C idated and S S The dard provides additional

guidance for determining of control in cases of ambiguity for instance in case of franchisor
franchisee relationship, de facto agent, silos and potential voting rights.

IFRS Il Joint Arrangements determines nature of arrangement by focusing on the rights
and ions of the ar rather than its legal form. IFRS 11 rcpia:ues IAS 31
Interests |n Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly lled Entities-N ¥
Contrit by Vi . IFRS 11 only forms of joint arrangements (joint
operations and joint ventures) where there is joint control whereas 1AS 31 had identified
three forms of joint ventures, namely jointly lled ions, jointly led assets
and jointly controlled entities. The i i ies in the reporting of
joint arrangements by requiring a single method to account for interests in jointly
controlled entities, which is the equity method.
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IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities is a new and comprehensive standard on
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles.
One major requirement of IFRS 12 is that an entity needs to disclose the significant
Jjudgment and assumptions it has made in determining:

2. Whether it has control, joint control or significant influence over another entity.

b. The type of joint arrangement when the joint arrangement is struciured through a
separate vehicle.

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 will not be applicable to the Trust’s

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: In May 2011, the International Accounting Standards
Board issued IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement to provide a specific guidance on fair

value and requires enhanced discl for all assets and liabilities
mmsumd at fair value, not restricting to financial assets and liabilities. The standard
d a precise definition of fair value and a i for fair

across assets and liabilities, with a few specified exceptions. The effective date for IFRS
13 is annual pcrwds bcg:nnlng on or after January 1, 2013 with early adoption permitted.
The Trust is ing the requi of IFRS 13, and has not yet determined

the impact on the Fnanclal smlements

TAS 1 (A ded) P ion of Fi ial Si In June 2011, thc [nternatmnal
Accounting Standard Board d to IAS 1 P of Fi 1
The d l.o IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, require

panies preparing financk in accord: with IFRS to group items within

other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to the profit or loss separately from
those items which would not be recyclable in the profit or lass section of the income
statement, The Trust has eval d the requi ts of 1AS 1 (A ded) and does not
believe that the adoption of IAS | (Amended) will have a material effect on our

IAS 19 (A ded) E In June 2011, International Accounting
Standards Board issucd IAS I9 (Amended), Employee Benefits. The effective date for
adoption of 1AS 19 (Amended) is annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,
though early adoption is permitted. 1AS 19 (Amended) has eliminated an option to defer
the recognition of gains and losses th h and requires such gain or loss
to be recognized |hrou5h ol]ler wmpm‘ncnswe income in the year of occurrence to reduce
volatility. The diate recognition of effects of any plan
amendments. Further it also requires asscl in profit or loss to be restricted to government
bond yields or corporate bond yields, idered for wval of Projected Benefit
Obli pective of actual portfolio allocations. The actual retum from the portfolio
in excess of such y:elds |s reoogmzed through other comprehensive income. These
the for defined benefit plans by requiring
infe ion about the cf istics of defined benefit plan and risks that entities are
posed to through participation in those plans. The amendments need to be adopted
rctrospoc:wely The Trust is required to adopt IAS 19 (Amended) by accounting year
commencing April 1, 2013. The Trust is y ing the req of IAS 19
(Amended), and has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.
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2. Notes fo financial statements

2.1 Property, plamt and equipment

The following tables present the camrying valwe of property, plant and equipment as at March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 and the changes to the carrying value of property, plant and equipment during

the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012:

194.62

Capital work-in-prog) 241043

117343

ot Adaiom| pispusis during C R st
Class of asset 1 aprii20p|re8 theverr e YA March 2013] 1 April 2012) _for the year|year
Land 2478 010 i 2088 s 3 s
ihdi 295210 23361 . 318871 78422 21635 .
Lease-hold improvemenis 105740 4578 3547 1.067.71 37072 11585 5.67
Kitchen and related equipment 2,680.55 428.64 0.08 ENLCAT 2,121.87 453.64 -
Furniture and fistures 300,35 3080 y 315 172.63 4391 :
Vehicles 2,524.04 19439 55,16 286327 1352.53 81,54 s1.68
Office equipments 13789 3652 a0 17431 99.82 28 2
c i 286,43 7140 o 35783 13101 1032 <
Distribution vessels 1,059.97 19038 | 8175 1,186.60 92929 166,53 .35
T.223.51 143162 1250057 G200 158642

: Represents amount capitalised.
During the year, the Trust has ified lease-hold i
depreciation expense which was comrectly computed in |l-c previous year.

Gross carrying Gross earrying Accumulated Disposals|
amount as at durin::l:::::: Dlsposlls“:i:;:: amount as at| depreciation as at|  Depreciation|  duirng the
Class of asset 1 April 2011 31 March 2012 1 April 2011 for the year, vear|
Land 23676 227 14.25 2478 = - -
Buildings 2,103.38 491.05 = 2,5904.93 48537 16261 -
Lease-hold improvements 1,394.11 2046 - 1414.57 320.89 147,07 =
Kitchen and related equipment 2,374.61 31555 .44 2,678.72 1.727.66 404.12 11.41
Furniture and fixtures 20942 9112 0.07 30047 137.74 3500 -
Vehicles 1.994.70 52697 324 251843 133193 42645 3
Office equipments 117.52 2788 019 145.21 6988 2835 005
Computer equipments 162.95 124.19 071 286.43 8248 48.78 025
Distribution vessels 933.51 126,46 = 1.039.97 787.59 141.62 -
9,527.46 1,725.95 1122351 495254 1,394.50
352.86 il 194.62

to Rs 357.17 lakhs to buildings which was incorrectly classified in the previous year. However, there was no impact of’

Ry in lakhs —
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2.2 Ofther non-current assets
Other non-current assets consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs

Capital advances for purchase of fixed assets
Unsecured, considered good 414.65
Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good
Tax deducted al source 25.02
Prepaid expenses 170 |
Advance to gratuity trust - |8
Electricity and other deposits 26.81 |I
Rental deposits 11534
Security deposits 17.45 |
Telephone deposits 1.54 |48
Total 602.51 |
Financial assets in prepayments and other assets 186.16 |1

2.3 Inventories
Inventories consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs

Food grains and other consumables
Fuel and spares held for consumption
Total

2.4 Prepayments and other assets
Prepayments and other assets consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses
Electricity & other deposits
| Renal deposits
Security deposits
Telephone deposits
Staff advance
Loans and advances to related parties
Unsecured, considered good
Interest acerued
Advance Recoverable in cash or kind
Total
Financial assets in prepayments and other assets

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: Rsin Lakhs

0.14
1.413.20 |

| Total 1.413.34

2.6 Employee benefits:
Gratuity
Employee benefit obligati P payable for gratuity plan of the Trust as of March 31, 2013
and March 31, 2012 respectively. The plan is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit
abligation:

_Rs in Lakhs

Obligations at period beginning
Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits settled

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Obligations at period end

Plans assets at beginning of the period, at
fair value

| Expected returnonplanassets |

Actuarial gain / (loss

Contributions

Benefits settled

Plans assets at end of the period, at fair

value

100% of plan assets are maintained with Life I Corporation of India.
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Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

Rs in Lakhs

Present value of the defined benefit
obligations at the end of the period

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the
period 186.99 |

Liability recorded in the balance sheet 358

Assel recorded in the balance sheet -b

Gratuity cost for the year:

Service cost
Snterest cost
Expected return on plan assets L
Actuarial loss
Net gratuity cost
Assumplions Rs in Lakhs
Discount rate 8.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets £.00%
Salary escalation rate = 6.00%
The estimates of future salary i considered in ial valuation, take account of lnﬂ»auan,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the
employment market.

Leave encashment

Effective April 1, 2009, the Trust has communicated the revised leave policy which permits carry
forward of leave and encashment on termination. The liability is computed on actuarial basis on the
£ross for the eamed leave day balance available as on March 31, 2013. The liability as at
March 31,2013 is Rs 104.44 lakhs (Previous year Rs 71.56 lakhs)
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Provideni fund and employee state insurance

The Trust has contributed Rs 319.34 lakhs and Rs 295.80 lakhs to the Provident Fund and
Employee State Insurance during the year ended March 31,2013 and March 31, 2012 respectively.

Employee costs include: Rs in Lakhs

Salaries, bonus snd honorarium
Defined contri plan 319.34 |

| Defined benefit plan 9748 |
Total 3.602.82 |

2.7 Other non-current fiabilities

Other Nen Current Liabilities consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs
Other les - retention money
Total
Financial liabilities included in Other Non Current
Liabilities
2.8 Payabies

‘Trade and other payables consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs

Creditors for capital goods
Creditors for
Total
Financial liabilities included in payables

2.9 Other current linbilities

Other Current Liabilities consist of the following: Rs in Lakhs

Salary liability
Contribution to provident and other funds
Provision for expenses

Withholding and other tax payable

Total

Financial liabilities included in other current
liabilities
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2.10 Shart-term provisions

Short-term provisions consist of the Tollowing: ©

Rs in Lakhs

Pravision for employee benefits (
Compensated absences 104.44 |
Total 104.44 |
Financial liabilities included in Short Term :
Provisions 10444 i

2.11 Income from denations

Income from donations comprised of: Rs in Lakhs

Donation in cash for mid-day meal scheme 4.376.56 |0 466
Donation in cash towards fixed assets 357.56 [F I
Donations in kind towards fixed assets 2429 = =
Donations in kind - others 21262 [N 12
Donations — others 23838 | i
Total 5,209.41

2,12 Grant income from governments and governmeni bodies

{ncome from govemment grants comprised of: Rs in Lakhs

Grant of food grains from governments and 1,12827
govemment bodies for mid-day meal scheme
Cash subsidi ived from g 8,032.62
government bodies for mid-day meal scheme
Cash subsidics received from govemments and 1,204.76
government bodies for other than mid-day meal
scheme
Total 10,365.65
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2.13 Other income

Other Income consists of: Rs in Lakhs
interest income 20030 19942
Liabilities no longer required written back 338 _ 615
Profit on sale of assels, net - [ =
Mi income* 10843 SRS
Total 313.11

*Miscellancous income primarily comprises of receipts from sale of scrap, bags and other waste

materials.

2,14 Muterials and utitities consumed

Rsin Lakhs

Consumption of materials comprised of:
Provisions, groceries and spares d T008.42
Fuel 1,427.50
246,52

Power and lighting
Total

8,682.44 |

2.15 Personnel cost
Personnel cost comprised oft

Salaries, wages and bonus 3060.53
Contributions to provident and other funds 319.34
Contract staff 428.58
Staff welfare 146.21
¥ ium to administrati 76.74
@t 4,031.40

Rs in Lakhs
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Liquidity risk:
2.16 Other aperating expenses Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet the
Other operating expenses comprised of: Rs in Lakhs cause of the Trust. Prudent liquidity risk 10 implies maintaining sufficient cash, the
e availability of funding through an adequate amount of itted credit facilities and the ability to
e raise sufficient donation income. The Trust aims 10 maintain its committed stream of donors and
St B fexibility in funding by keeping committed short term loan available.
Repairs and maintenance 77209 Fair Value:
Rent and vehicle hire / parking charges 850.76 alr vale:
Securily charges 22486 Fair value is the amount for which an item could be exchanged, or a liability is settled, between
Priig and sTlione — knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The fair values of all financial
Couricfand L2 69.18 | instruments are detailed below by class.
Professional a.ndcignsuilancy charges f;.&d - The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2013 and
, 22280 | March 31, 2012 were as follows:
Statutory l.ll.ldll fees 12,01 Rsin Lakhs
Other audit fees 4535 s As at March 31, 2013
Rates and taxes 23.19 [ As at March 31, 2012
Insurance 90381 |
Travelling and conveyance 18147 |
Communication expenses 83.83 ;
Advctimmont 352 = a3 141334 | 141334
Promotion and inauguration expenses 38.84 Cash and cash equivalents Wké_;%?' — - = = jﬁ& = ¥
Interest and bank charges 1057 2;0640 > L hLedes ] 2'-}0”0
Office expenses 2123 | Deposits with banks %&,; — - :
Scholarship and training expenses 196.00 — ]4082 S 34082
Loss on write off or sale of fixed assels, net 16.56 Prepayment and other assets e .
Write offs - Government receivables 74.43 _ e
Write offs - Other receivables 0.89 f@:ﬂﬁ&? Towl 4‘“1.56 - . el .-
Miscellaneous expenses 30,83 |l —
Total 304706 | Liabilities:
Employee benefit obligation
2.17 Financial risk management
The Trust’s financial instruments include financial assets (cash and cash equivalents, and Payables
prepayrncnls and other assets), and ﬁm.ncml liabilities (payables Ihat arise directly from
). The Trust has exp o g risks from its use of financial instruments: Other liabilities
« creditrisk ' Total
* liquidity risk
Thls note presents information about the Trust’s exposure 1o each of the above risks, the Trust's
j P and p for ing and ing risk.
Credit Risk:

Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to the Trust and therefore
cause a loss, The Trust is not exposed to any material concentrations of credit risk other r.han its

10 various ge and g bodies. Receivable bal are itored on an
orlgmng basis with Ihe result that lhc Trust’s exposure to non recoverability is insignificant. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet.




The Akshaya Patra Foundation

2,18 Trust funds

Trust funds of the Trust are classified based on the mandate received from the donors. Presently,
the trust funds comprises of corpus fund, endowment fund, designated fund, mid-day meal fund and
general fund.

Corpus fund

Corpus fund are donations received with specific mandate to form part of corpus of the Trust.
Corpus fund can be diluted only in case of liquidation of the Trust and the donation once received
towards corpus fund cannot be refunded in any other case. Further, these funds are available for use
at the discretion of the trustees in furtherance of the general objectives of the charity. Accordingly,
these donations are treated as unrestricted capital veceipts and credited directly to corpus fund of the
Trust.

Endowment fund

End

E fund are donations received with specific mandate to form part of endowment fund of
the Trust. These donations are generally given with a specific instruction to invest in an income
generating assel like fixed deposit. Such donation are received on fundable basis and hence
treated as capital receipt.

Designated fund

Donation received in cash or in kind specifically for depreciable fixed assets are recognised as
designated fund. Such funds are recognised as income ratably over the useful life of the related
asset.

Mid-day meal fund

Food grains and subsidies received from governments and government bodies and donations
received in cash towards mid-day meal scheme are recognised as mid-day meal fund.

General find

General fund represents the amount of accumulated income over expenditure / expenditure over
income of the Trust.

Voting power
All the trustees of the Trust are entitled to one vote each.
Dissolution

The trust deed requires that, in the event of dissolution of the Trust, the assets remaining as on the
date of dissolution shall be transferred to another charitable trust whose objects are similar to those
of the Trust and which enjoys recognition under section 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961 of India.
The assets remaining on the date of dissolution shall under no circumstance be distributed among
the trustees or the managing commitlee.
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2.19 Related par(y fransactions

The Trust has identified the following entities as related parties which are trusts or societies having
one or more truslees as trustees of these entities and iransactions with those related parties have
been disclosed below.

a.  List of trusts having one or more trustees as trustees of these entities is as follows:

International Society for Krishna Consciousness (ISKCON)
ISKCON Charities

India Heritage Foundation (“1HF")

Hare Krishna Movement - Vrindavan ("HKM - Vrindavan")
Hare Krishna Movement - Jaipur (*"HKM - Jaipur")

Hare Krishna A = Al Jabad ("HKM - Al ]
Hare Krishna Movement - Hubli ("HKM - Hubli");

Hare Krishna Movement - Bellary ("HKM - Bellary");

Hare Krishna Movement - Chennai ("HKM - Chennai")
Basies Foundation

The Akshaya Patra Foundation Ine, USA ("TAPF USA™)
The Akshaya Patra Foundation Inc, UK (“TAPF UK")

b.  The following is a sunmary of transactions by the trust with related pariies:

Corpus fund donations received:
- ISKCON 1.50
Cash donations received towards mid-day meal fund:

- ISKCON 37.55

- TAPF USA 1,028.13 |

-TAPF UK 98.33

- HKM Jaipur 2299

- HKM Bellary 4.50

- HKM Ahmedabad -l

- HKM Vrindavan “

- HKM Chennai i z
Cash donations received towards fixed assets:

- TAPF USA 301.32

- ISKCON 14107 |
Rent and other expenses

- ISKCON 194.20

- HKM Hubli 13.56
Purchase of provisions and groceries: ]

- ISKCON Charities 1.97 |&

- HKM Hubli 037

- Basics Foundation 0.05
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Rs in Lakhs

Mareh 31,
2012/
.}I"'—pcnw incurred on behalf of the Trust BB
- ISKCON 38.99 16.13
- ISKCON Charities 0.56 -
- HKM Jaipur 2.74 352
- TAPF UK - 0.10
- HKM Vrindavan 20.48 -
‘Expenditure incurred by the Trust on behalf of the refated |
parties:
- ISKCON 0.41 227
- HKM Vrindavan 38.18 0.02
- HKM Jaipur 590 4,08
- HKM Hubli 0.01 -
- TAPF UK I — | 0.25 =

Further, the Trust uses certain land and premises of other related parties free of cost.
Additionally, certain utility expenses incurred by other related parties are not cross charged to
the Trust,

e The balances receivable from and payable 1o related parties are as follows:
Rs in Lakhs

Year ended March 31,0
12013 2012
Payables:

- ISKCON 18.42 8.87

.].’-ﬁ:pa,\'mums and other assets:
- HKM Jaipur - 5.00
- HKM Vrindavan 18.00 0.02
- Basics Foundation - 0.97
=1, 1) _035 =

2.20 Operating leases
The Trust has offices, kitchen facilities and vehicles under cancellable operating lease agreements.
The Trust intends 1o renew these lease agreements in the normal course of its business. Total rental
expense under cancellable operating leases for the year ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012
were Rs 850.76 lakhs and Rs 584.77 lakhs respectively.

2.21 Contractual commitmenis

The contractual commitments, net of advances for capital expenditure were Rs 1,307.97 lakhs and
Rs 906.45 lakhs, net of advances as of March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 respectively.

2.22 Contingencies
Outstanding Bank guarantee in respect of the guarantee given by bank in favour of others, secured
by equivalent fixed deposit with bank was 150.00 lakhs as on March 31, 2013 and Nil as on
March 31,2012,
Dues not acknowledged as debt by the Trust is Rs Nil as on March 31, 2013 and Rs 2.27 lakhs as
on March 31, 2012, The Trust has 6 facilities taken on rent-free basis from government bodies
based on mutual verbal understanding.
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FCRA FINANCIALS

NATH ASSOCIATES 1330 3" Cross, 7" Block Weat.
Chartered Accountants Jayanagar, BANGALORE 560082

Ph 26765764 - 9880395018
bsmanjunatheaa gmailcom

NACTAPF:FC6/2012-13/ 9% August 2013
CERTIFICATE

We have audited the accounts related to ‘Foreign Contributions’ receipts and
utilisation of THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION, HK Hills, Chord Road,
Rajaji Nagar, 1* Block, BANGALORE 560010, (a registered charitable Trust
and having FCRA Registration No.094421037 TT6468P) for the
year ending 31 March 2013 and we have examined all relevant books and
vouchers and certify that according to the audited accounts:

(i)  the bronght furward foreign contribution at the beginuing of the
year was Rs 13,59,27,856 ;

(i) foreign contribution of /worth Rs 47.27,55, 228(including interest of
R5.1.38.99,985 and credit of NEFT/RTGS transfer of Rs 27.325 ) was
received by the TRUST during the vear ending 31 March 2013;

(iii) the balance of unutilised foreign contribution with the TRUST
al the year end 315 March 2013 was Rs. 18.31,24,529/-

(iv) Certified that the TRUST has maintained the accounts of foreign
contribution and records relating thereto in the manner specified
in section 19 of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act, 2010
(42 of 2010) read with rule 16 of the Foreign Contribution
(Regulation) Rules, 2011,

(v) The information in this certificate and in the enclosed Balance Sheet
and Statement of Receipt and Payment is correct as checked by us.
FOR NATH ASSQCIATES,
Chartered Accountants,
T FRN . 024268

&
" s

Place: Bangalore Membership No F 9743
Date: 9 August 2013 Partmer

NATH ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
433/C, 5th Cross,
7th Block West, Jayanagar,
Bangalore-560 082.

rengwvIY SUYV V0L

A |

THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION

ILK Hill, Chord Road, Rajsjinagar, Bangalore - 560 010

FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

Receipts & Payments as at 31st March 2013

FURA Registration Mo: 094421037

Anvawiis Bs in Lakhy
31 Mar 2013 3 Mar 2012
Opening Balance
Investment in fixed depasit 1.22853 S83.10
Balance with Axis Bank 130,75 1266
1.359.28 595.76
Add : Recelpts
Denanons received into
Forelgn Contribution Remittatcs Account during the year A 322937 223200
Interest on FIY 139,00 78.13
4,727.55 2.905.89
Less : Payments
Wellure of Children :
Utilisation of materials and other wtilities B 55203 61315
Personnel Cost C 487.37 259,84
General Expenscs n HIB.R3 3806
Loans and ndvances E 42,55 L.00
Income tixes poid I 546 279
Purchase of fixed assets G 1.200.06 351.67
2 H96.30 1.546.61
Closing Balance 183125 1,359.28
Represented By
Investment in fixed deposit 1,765.39 1.228.53
Balance with Bank 65.86 130,75
1,831.25 1,359.28

The Schedules referred 1o above form an integral pan of the Receipts & Payments Account

As pet our audit report of even date.
Jor Nath Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Rngisb?mﬁ

Membership No, F9743

Place : Bangabore
Dnte : 9 August 2013

NATH ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
433/C, 5th Cross,
7th Block West, Jayanagar,
Bangalore-560 082,

Jor Th
-
7
2
hi Dass
Vige Chairman
Place :

Date : 9 August 2013

kshaya Patra Foundation
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THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION

ILK Hill, Chord Read, Rajajinagar, Bangalare - 560 010
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

[ Balance Sheet as on 315t March 2013

FCRA Registrntion No: 094421037

Amionent R i Lakhs

31 Mar 2013 31 Mar 2012
Sources of Funils
Asset Fund 161688 732,79
Designated Fund itk 660,833
General Fund TH0.06 71363
A518.05 2,127.25
Application of Funds
Fixed Assels G
— Opening Balance 1.808.29 143661
Additions during the vear 1, 20006 351.67
3.008.35 1.808.29
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,391.47 1.055.49
— Net Block 1.616.88 5079
Oiher Advances H 69.93 15.18
Investment in fixed deposit 1.765.39 1,228 53
Balance with Bank 65.86 1360.75
351805 2,127.25

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet

As per our audit report ol even date.
Jfar Nath Associates

Chartered Accountunts

Firm Registration No:

er

! Membership No. F9743

Place : Bangalore
Date : 9 August 2013

" NATH ASSOCIATES
Chartered Acco ns

433/C, 5th Cre

gar,

7th Block West. layan
Bangalore-500 Ldd

Sfor The Akshaya Patrs Foundation

Place : Bangalore
Date : 9 August 2013

THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION
I8 Chord Road, Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 560 010
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

FURA Registration No: (F4421087

of Income and Expenditure -F € R Account - for the vear ending 31 Mar 2013
Amirtt Ry in Lakhs

Schedule 31 Mar 2013 31 Mar 2012
Income
Donmtions income from foreign contributions 1,914,950 1.686.54
Interest on FD 145.74 871.24
2,060.64 1,770.78
Set-aly
Expenditure
Materials and utilities consumed } 55203 613.1%
Personnel cost 1 48737 259.84
Deprecintion and amontization B 33598 24971
Other opemting expenses K 60883 31806
EIZE 036
Excess of income over expenditure TeA3 amn
Balance in income and expenditure sccount hrought
forvard Ti3.63 380,71
Balunce carried forward J90.06 J13.63

Sfor The Akshays Patrs Foundation

As per our sudit report of even dat
for Nath Assocates

Chartered Accountants

Fimy Registration Mo

Membership No, FI743

Place : Bangalore Ploce : Bangulone
Date ;9 August 2013 Diate ¢ 9 August 2013

NATH ASSOCIATES
Chartersd Aceauntants
433/C, 5th Cross,
7th Block West, jayanagar,
Bangalore-560 082
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the Accounts

Amrount By in Lakhs

31-Mar-13 31-Mar-12
Schedule A - Donations received through Foreign Contribution
Account during the year
Donations received from
India 35R.85 41697
Singapore 1.87 212.59
UUnited Kingdom 11824 235.00
United States of America 2,748.34 1,328.96
Hong Kong 034 17.82
Others 11.63 20.66
3,229.27 223200
Schedule B - Utilisation of material and other utilities
Consumption of materials and wiilities as per income and
expenditure account 552,03 613,15
552.03 61315
Schedule C - Personnel Cost
Personnel cost as per the income and expendiure aceount 487.37 259.84
487.37 259.84
—nnnL
Schedule D - General expenses
Other operating expenses as per income and expendi account 608,83 31816
608,83 31816
Schedule E - Loans and advances
Change in salary advances - -
Change in deposits 42.55 1.00
4155 1.00
Schedule F - Income taxes paid
Change in advance tax 546 278
546 2.78

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Schedules to the Accounts

Schedule G - Fixed Assets

Amount Rs in Lakhs

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation
As at Additions Deductions Asat Asat Additions Deductions Asat

Assets l-ALr-lz durring the year durring the year 31-Mar-13 1-Apr-12 durring the year | durring the year 31-Mar-13
Land . . - = - . - B o
Buildings 536.66 666.68 - 1,203.34 103.45 58.00 - 161.45
Lease Hold Improvements - - - - - - - -
Kitchen and related equipment 41473 236.93 - 651.66 292.98 102.56 - 395.54
Office Equipment 970 2030 - 30,00 3.75 609 - 98| —
| Computer equipment 5599 3209 N 38,08 30.68 2079 - 5147
Furniture and fixtures 11.75 526 - 17.01 582 237 - 819 ——
Vehicles 502,12 162,54 - 664.66 358.38 113.52 N 471.90
Distribution vessels 277,34 7626 . 353,60 260.43 32.65 - 20308 | ———
Intangible asset ) = = - N = - -
Total 1.808.29 1,200.06 - 3.008.35 105549 335.98 - 139047 | ———
|Previous Year 1.456.61 35167 = 6.016.69 805.78 249.71 105549
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Schedules to the Accounts
fmount Rx in Lakhs
For period ended
31-Mar-12

e Schedule H - Loans and advances
Depaosits
Interest accrued but not due

Advance Taxes

Schedule | - Materials and utilities consumed

Provisions and groceries 512.9%9 585.54
Fuel 2607
Power, Lightning and Water 1.54

T 552,03 613.15

e Schedule J rsonnel cost
Salaries and wages 144,39 21044
Contribution W Provident Fund 42.08
Contribution to ESI

T Stall welfare 0.27
Volunteers expenses .05

48737 159.84

Schedule K - Other operating expenses
Repairs & Maintenance 2775 12.81
Rent 101.41 51.26
Security charges 638 291
Printing & Stationery 1011 9.09
Courier & Postage Charges 13.12 1143
Professional Charges 24318 104.65
Audit Fees 2033
Insurance 0.76
Travelling & Conveyance expenses 13.49
Communication Expenses 10.75
Promotion & Inaugaration exper 4.04
Office Expenses 7.0
Scholarship and training expenses 4245
Interest & Bank Charges 252

Other expenses
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these are not mere numbers. This is a reflection of the
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sincerity, determination and willpower of numerous children who hail from humble backgrounds. It’s the mirror

From these achievements, we draw our motivation to continue being the vital connection between food and
education; and tread forward with further enthusiasm and zeal. This Annual Report brought across to you the
achievements and developments of the past year. It also presented to you the future plans of the Foundation.
nourished. To achieve this, we will strategically plan our expansions, keeping in mind the sustainability of the
every day. We believe that with the continued support of the Government of India and all the State Governments,
donors, volunteers, and society, providing unlimited food for education’to 5 million children by 2020 is an

On behalf of millions of children, I thank each one of you for being with us and inspiring us to move forward.

T also take this opportune moment to welcome new members to support our growing movement and partake in

Sustainability requires real resources in terms of finance, community participation and social responsibility.
supporters and stakeholders are the strength that enable us to serve the mid-day meal to 1.3 million children

In the plans, it becomes evident that there is no time to take a pause. There are many more aspirations to be
programme not only in the locations we are currently serving in but also where we will begin to serve.
We are proud to say that the Central Government and all State Governments, along with our well-wishers,

image of what each child aspires to be! These are the many silent promises that were lived!
the constructive cause of building the nation with healthy and educated generations.

Let us together build a promising future for the nation.

98.88%, 95.04%, 94.40%, 93.12%, 90.88%, 89.60%...
We welcome you to join us in this momentous cause.
Let us together nourish and educate our children.

- T.V. MOHANDAS PAI

achievable dream.
Independent Trustee

LOOKING AHEA
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AKSHAYA £
PATRA

Unlimited food for education

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Regd Office:

H. K. Hill, Chord Road

Bangalore - 560 010, India

" Head Office:

No.72, 3rd Floor, 3rd Main,

1st & 2nd Stage, Yeshwantpur Industrial Suburb,
Rajajinagar, Ward No.10

Bangalore - 560 022, India

Ph: 91-80-30143400/23471956/23578346

Fax: 91-80-23578626

E-mail: infodesk@akshayapatra.org
www.akshayapatra.org

Toll-free No: 1800- 425- 8622

ﬂ https:/ /www.facebook.com /TheAkshayapatraFoundation

https:/ /twitter.com /akshayapatra

For online donations:

Sponsor for printing this Annual Report:
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